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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

 
   March 31, 2015  December 31, 2014 
   (Unaudited)     
Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 151,319   $ 176,499  
Short-term investments    14,330    11,577  
Restricted cash    2,774    1,395  
Accounts receivable, net    89,323    80,244  
Prepaid expenses    9,875    5,783  
Deferred tax assets, net    4,921    4,455  
Advance income tax, net    9,305    9,905  
Other current assets    13,241    12,533  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets  295,088   302,391  
    

 
   

 

Fixed assets, net  47,467   45,369  
Restricted cash  3,367   3,258  
Deferred tax assets, net  8,288   11,985  
Intangible assets, net  60,085   46,979  
Goodwill  172,097   139,599  
Other assets  24,626   23,975  

    
 

   
 

Total assets $ 611,018  $ 573,556  
    

 

   

 

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 5,510  $ 4,663  
Short-term borrowings  5,000   —    
Deferred revenue  13,246   7,690  
Accrued employee cost  21,021   37,606  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  39,386   40,206  
Current portion of capital lease obligations  743   803  

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities  84,906   90,968  
    

 
   

 

Long term borrowings  75,000   50,000  
Capital lease obligations, less current portion  424   560  
Non-current liabilities  13,727   12,870  

    
 

   
 

Total liabilities  174,057   154,398  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 16)
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 15,000,000 shares authorized, none issued  —     —    
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 34,605,579 shares issued and
33,294,828 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2015 and 34,203,352 shares issued and 32,905,467
shares outstanding as of December 31, 2014  35   34  

Additional paid-in-capital  239,311   233,173  
Retained earnings  278,991   269,424  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (53,015)  (55,509) 

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders’ equity including shares held in treasury  465,322   447,122  
    

 
   

 

Less: 1,310,751 shares as of March 31, 2015 and 1,297,885 shares as of December 31, 2014, held in
treasury, at cost  (28,361)  (27,964) 

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders’ equity  436,961   419,158  
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 611,018  $ 573,556  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 
   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Revenues, net   $ 143,510    $ 121,797  
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)    93,125     74,922  

    
 

    
 

Gross profit  50,385   46,875  
    

 
    

 

Operating expenses:
General and administrative expenses  18,621   14,800  
Selling and marketing expenses  11,243   10,232  
Depreciation and amortization  7,053   6,356  

    
 

    
 

Total operating expenses  36,917   31,388  
    

 
    

 

Income from operations  13,468   15,487  
Foreign exchange income / (loss)  1,134   (833) 
Other income, net  1,178   958  

    
 

    
 

Income before income taxes  15,780   15,612  
Income tax expense  6,213   4,465  

    
 

    
 

Net income $ 9,567  $ 11,147  
    

 

    

 

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.29  $ 0.34  
Diluted $ 0.28  $ 0.33  

Weighted-average number of shares used in computing earnings per share:
Basic  33,236,259   32,523,490  
Diluted  34,051,971   33,428,544  

See accompanying notes.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Net income   $ 9,567    $ 11,147  

Other comprehensive income/(loss):     
Unrealized gain on effective cash flow hedges, net of taxes $453 and $1,608    1,806     5,402  
Foreign currency translation adjustment    302     4,828  
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $6 and $(2), respectively    151     (40) 

Reclassification adjustments     
Realized loss on cash flow hedges, net of taxes $126 and $496(1)    183     1,758  
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $3 and $8(2)    52     29  

    
 

    
 

Total other comprehensive income  2,494   11,977  
    

 
    

 

Total comprehensive income $ 12,061  $ 23,124  
    

 

    

 

 
(1) These are reclassified to net income and are included in the foreign exchange gain/(loss) in the unaudited consolidated statements of income. See Note

7 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.
(2) These are reclassified to net income and are included in the computation of net periodic pension costs in the unaudited consolidated statements of

income. See Note 10 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.

See accompanying notes.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 
   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015   2014  
Cash flows from operating activities:    
Net income   $ 9,567   $ 11,147  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    7,053    6,356  
Stock-based compensation expense    4,255    4,176  
Unrealized foreign exchange loss    284    1,895  
Deferred income taxes    2,804    1,863  
Others, net    (13)   22  

Change in operating assets and liabilities:    
Restricted cash    (1,477)   (502) 
Accounts receivable    (5,779)   (1,713) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    (2,799)   (4,187) 
Accounts payable    (984)   (124) 
Deferred revenue    3,834    902  
Accrued employee cost    (16,398)   (11,493) 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities    (497)   (985) 
Advance income tax, net    544    (1,822) 
Other assets    (257)   (570) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities  137   4,965  
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets  (8,845)  (10,679) 
Business acquisition (net of cash acquired)  (44,419)  —    
Purchase of short-term investments  (5,995)  (1,005) 
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments  3,079   —    

    
 

   
 

Net cash used for investing activities  (56,180)  (11,684) 
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on capital lease obligations  (223)  (288) 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings  25,000   —    
Proceeds from short-term borrowings  5,000   —    
Payment of debt issuance costs  (50)  —    
Acquisition of treasury stock  (397)  (459) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options  1,883   1,673  

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by financing activities  31,213   926  
    

 
   

 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (350)  1,420  
    

 
   

 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (25,180)  (4,373) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  176,499   148,065  

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 151,319  $ 143,692  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization

ExlService Holdings, Inc. (“ExlService Holdings”) is organized as a corporation under the laws of the state of Delaware. ExlService Holdings,
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), is a leading provider of business process solutions that integrate operations management with
analytics and business transformation to deliver actionable business insights and long-term business impact. The Company’s clients are located principally in
the U.S. and the U.K.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“US GAAP”) for interim financial information, the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and footnotes required by US GAAP for annual financial statements and therefore should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (of a normal and recurring nature) that management considers
necessary for a fair presentation of such statements for the interim periods presented. The unaudited consolidated statements of income for the interim periods
presented are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year or for any subsequent period.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of ExlService Holdings and all of its subsidiaries.
All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the unaudited
consolidated financial statements and the unaudited consolidated statements of income during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best assessment of the current business environment, actual results may be different from those estimates. The significant estimates and
assumptions that affect the financial statements include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful receivables, service tax receivables, assets and
obligations related to employee benefit plans, deferred tax valuation allowances, income-tax uncertainties and other contingencies, valuation of derivative
financial instruments, stock-based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization periods, purchase price allocation, recoverability of long-term assets
including goodwill and intangibles, and estimates to complete the fixed price contracts.

In accordance with its policy, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of its fixed assets on an ongoing basis. This review indicated that
the actual lives of certain fixed assets were longer than the estimated useful lives used for depreciation purposes in the Company’s financial statements. As a
result, effective January 1, 2015, the Company changed its estimates of the useful lives of its certain fixed assets to better reflect the estimated periods during
which these assets will remain in service. The effect of change in estimated useful life of assets reduced depreciation expense by $468, increased net income
by $281 and increased basic and diluted earnings per share by $0.01, during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

 
a) Revenue Recognition

As part of reimbursing the Travelers Indemnity Company (“Travelers”) for certain of their transition related expenses (the “disentanglement
costs”), the Company recognized $2,471 of such reimbursements as a reduction of our revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2014, in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification topic 605-50-45, “Revenue Recognition.” The Company did not incur any reimbursements of disentanglement costs
during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and also does not anticipate incurring any additional reimbursements of disentanglement costs going forward.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 
b) Investments

The Company’s investments consist of time deposits with financial institutions which are valued at cost and approximate fair value.
Interest earned on such investments is included in interest income. Investments with original maturities greater than ninety days but less than twelve months
are classified as short-term investments. Investments with maturities greater than twelve months from the balance sheet date are classified as long-term
investments.

The Company’s investments in open ended mutual funds represent investments in mutual fund scheme wherein the mutual fund issuer
has invested these funds in debt and money market instruments of various maturities in India. The Company manages mutual fund investments on a fair value
basis in accordance with its documented risk management, investment strategy and information provided to the management. The Company accounts for
these investments in accordance with the fair value option under ASC topic 825-10 (“ASC No. 825-10”) and change in fair value is recognized in the income
statement. The fair value represents original cost (on the acquisition date) and the net asset value (“NAV”) as quoted, at each reporting period. Gain or loss on
the disposal of these investments would be calculated using the weighted average cost of the investments sold or disposed.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“ASU 2014-09”). The new standard is effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and early adoption is not permitted. The comprehensive new standard will supersede existing
revenue recognition guidance and require revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules could affect the timing of
revenue recognition for certain transactions of the Company. ASU 2014-09 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2017 using either one of
two methods: (i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within ASU 2014-09;
or (ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying ASU 2014-09 recognized at the date of initial application and providing certain
additional disclosures as defined per ASU 2014-09. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption and the implementation approach to be used.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s
Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement” (ASU 2015-05”). The amendments add guidance to Subtopic 350-40, Intangibles – Goodwill
and Other – Internal-Use Software, which will help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement. The
amendments will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is currently evaluating the method of adoption and impact
this standard will have on its financial statements and related disclosures.

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:
 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Accrued expenses   $ 27,500    $ 24,451  
Derivative instruments    1,349     2,385  
Client liability account    2,987     9,241  
Other current liabilities    7,550     4,129  

    
 

    
 

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 39,386  $ 40,206  
    

 

    

 

 
8



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 
Non-current liabilities

Non-current liabilities consist of the following:
 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Derivative instruments   $ 398    $ 576  
Unrecognized tax benefits    4,239     2,878  
Deferred rent    6,324     5,977  
Retirement benefits    1,544     1,544  
Other non-current liabilities    1,222     1,895  

    
 

    
 

Non-current liabilities $ 13,727  $ 12,870  
    

 

    

 

Other income

Other income (expense), net consists of the following:
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Interest and dividend income*   $ 1,402    $ 877  
Interest expense    (283)    (113) 
Others, net    59     194  

    
 

    
 

Other income, net $ 1,178  $ 958  
    

 

    

 

 
* Includes unrealized gain of $42 on investments carried under fair value option.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares plus the potentially dilutive
effect of common stock equivalents issued and outstanding at the reporting date, using the treasury stock method. Stock options, restricted stock and restricted
stock units that are anti-dilutive are excluded from the computation of weighted average shares outstanding.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Numerators:     
Net income   $ 9,567    $ 11,147  

Denominators:     
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding    33,236,259     32,523,490  
Dilutive effect of share based awards    815,712     905,054  

    
 

    
 

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding  34,051,971   33,428,544  
    

 

    

 

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.29  $ 0.34  
Diluted $ 0.28  $ 0.33  

Weighted average common shares considered anti-dilutive in computing diluted
earnings per share  188,044   205,888  
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 
4. Segment Information

The Company’s business is divided into two reporting segments: Operations Management (previously called Outsourcing Services) and Analytics
and Business Transformation (previously called Transformation Services). The Company changed its reporting segment nomenclature in 2014 in order to
more accurately reflect the changing nature of its engagements with the clients. For comparability with the prior periods, the business composition of each
segment remains unchanged.

The Company provides various types of business process solutions utilizing operations management, analytics and technology. These services
are provided in an integrated manner to clients in various industries. The chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) generally reviews financial information
at the consolidated statement of income level disaggregated by our two segments, but does not review any information except for revenues and cost of
revenues of these individual segments. Therefore, the Company does not allocate or evaluate operating expenses, interest expense or income, capital
expenditures, and income taxes to its reporting segments. Consequently, it is not practical to show assets, capital expenditures, depreciation or amortization by
segment. The recent acquisition of RPM Direct, LLC and RPM Data Solutions, LLC (collectively, “RPM”) by the Company’s subsidiary ExlService.com,
LLC (“ExlService.com”) is classified within the Analytics and Business Transformation segment.

Revenues and cost of revenues for each of the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 for the Company’s Operations Management and
Analytics and Business Transformation segments, respectively, are as follows:
 
   Three months ended March 31, 2015    Three months ended March 31, 2014  

   
Operations

Management   

Analytics and
Business

Transformation   Total    
Operations

Management   

Analytics and
Business

Transformation   Total  
Revenues, net   $ 110,661    $ 32,849    $143,510    $ 100,091    $ 21,706    $121,797  
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)    70,466     22,659     93,125     58,899     16,023     74,922  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Gross profit $ 40,195  $ 10,190  $ 50,385  $ 41,192  $ 5,683  $ 46,875  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Operating expenses  36,917   31,388  
Other income  2,312   125  
Income tax expense  6,213   4,465  

        
 

        
 

Net income $ 9,567  $ 11,147  
        

 

        

 

5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Assets
 

a) Overland Holdings, Inc.

On October 24, 2014, ExlService.com acquired all of the outstanding shares of Overland Holdings, Inc. (“Overland”) pursuant to a Plan of Merger (the
“Merger”).

The aggregate consideration for Overland’s acquisition was $65,940 (the “Merger Consideration”), which included working capital adjustments of
$12,940. The Merger Consideration was paid with existing cash on hand. A portion of the Merger Consideration otherwise payable in the Merger was placed
into escrow as security for post-closing working capital adjustments and the indemnification obligations under the Merger Agreement.

Overland, now a subsidiary of the Company is a leader in underwriting support services for Property & Casualty (“P&C”) insurers. It leverages
proprietary workflow and automation technology, alongside transaction-based-pricing models to offer Business-Process-as-a-Service (“BPaaS”) solutions.
Overland’s longstanding client relationships, experienced leadership team and technology-enabled services will enhance the Company’s market leading
position in Operations Management to P&C insurers and also strengthens the Company’s onshore delivery capabilities. Overland’s technology and data
directly connects and interfaces with its clients providing an integrated Operations Management solution. The acquisition presents an opportunity to leverage
the Company’s analytics capabilities to enable Overland’s clients to increase the effectiveness of their underwriting. Accordingly, the Company paid a
premium for the acquisition which is being reflected in the goodwill recognized from the purchase price allocation of the total consideration paid by the
Company.
 

10



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company finalized its purchase price allocation for the acquisition, which is as follows:
 

   Amount  
   (In thousands) 
Net tangible assets   $ 18,873  
Identifiable intangible assets:   

Customer relationships    12,200  
Developed Technology    4,800  
Trade Names & Trademarks    1,400  

Goodwill    28,667  
    

 

Total purchase price* $ 65,940  
    

 

 
* Includes amount of $4,550 deposited in escrow accounts in connection with the acquisition.

The customer relationships, trade names and trademarks and developed technology from the Overland acquisition are being amortized over a useful life
of twelve, ten years and five years, respectively.

The Company’s results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015 includes $16,873 of revenues from Overland. It is not practicable to
disclose the net earnings of Overland in particular, because management does not allocate or evaluate operating expenses and income taxes to its domestic
entities.

The amount of goodwill recognized from the Overland acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

 
b) RPM Direct LLC and RPM Data Solutions, LLC

On March 20, 2015 ExlService.com completed its acquisition of RPM Direct LLC and RPM Data Solutions, LLC (each a “Target Company” and
together the “Target Companies” or “RPM”), pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 23, 2015 (the “Purchase Agreement”). Under the
terms of the Purchase Agreement ExlService.com acquired all of the issued and outstanding limited liability company membership interests of the Target
Companies (the “Securities”) from the security holders of each of the Target Companies.

The initial purchase consideration consisted of $47,000 in cash, subject to adjustment based on the closing date final working capital amount and
shortfall in financial performance of the Target Companies for 2014, if any, contingent cash consideration of up to $23,000, as described below, and 122,131
restricted shares of common stock of the Company.

The purchase agreement allows sellers the ability to earn up to an additional $23,000 (the “earn-out”) based on the achievement of certain
performance goals by the Target Companies during the 2015 and 2016 calendar years. The earn-out has an estimated fair value of $2,844. As noted above, the
Company issued 122,131 restricted shares of common stock with an aggregate fair value of $4,150 to certain key members of the Target Companies, each of
whom have accepted employment positions with the Company upon consummation of the combination. The Company also granted 113,302 restricted stock
units with an aggregate fair value of $3,850 to certain employees of Target Companies, who have also accepted employment with the Company. The fair
value of these grants will be recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period.

RPM, now as a subsidiary of the Company, specializes in analyzing large consumer data sets to segment populations, predict response rates,
forecast customer lifetime value and design targeted, multi-channel marketing campaigns. RPM has focused on the insurance industry, including P&C, life
and health, since its inception in 2001. RPM maintains its own database and supports data on over 250 million consumers and 120 million U.S. households.
The quantity and combination of data attributes managed by RPM drives optimal, data-driven decision-making and enables it to build models that analyze
prospects individually. RPM employs proprietary predictive analytics and domain-specific pattern recognition algorithms to deliver results through a flexible,
on-demand service model. Accordingly, the Company paid a premium for the acquisition which is being reflected in the goodwill recognized from the
purchase price allocation of the total consideration paid by the Company.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 

The Company made a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the net tangible and intangible assets based on their fair values as
mentioned below:
 

   Amount  
   (In thousands) 
Net tangible assets   $ 2,419  
Identifiable intangible assets:   

Customer Relationship    12,063  
Trade Names    1,231  
Developed Technology    1,249  
Non-Compete Agreements    609  

Goodwill    32,280  
    

 

Total purchase price* $ 49,851  
    

 

 
* Includes amount of $4,125 deposited in escrow accounts in connection with the acquisition.

The customer relationships from the RPM acquisition are being amortized over the weighted average useful life of 5.7 years. Similarly, trade
names, developed technology and non-compete agreements are being amortized over a useful life of five years each.

Under ASC topic 805, “Business Combinations,” the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the tangible and intangible assets and
liabilities acquired may change up to a period of one year from the date of the acquisition. Accordingly, the Company may adjust the amounts recorded as of
March 31, 2015 to reflect any revised valuations of the assets acquired or liabilities assumed. The Company’s purchase accounting as of March 31, 2015 was
incomplete due to final adjustments to the fair value of tangible assets, intangible assets and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015 the Company recognized $303 of acquisition related costs. Such amounts are included in general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income. The Company’s results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015
includes $1,191 of revenues of RPM since March 20, 2015, the date on which the acquisition was consummated. It is not practicable to disclose the net
earnings since management does not allocate or evaluate operating expenses and income taxes to its domestic entities.

The amount of goodwill recognized from the RPM acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

Goodwill

The following table sets forth details of the Company’s goodwill balance as of March 31, 2015:
 

   
Operations

Management   

Analytics and
Business

Transformation   Total  
Balance at January 1, 2014   $ 90,622    $ 16,785    $107,407  

Goodwill arising from Blue Slate acquisition    —       4,554    $ 4,554  
Goodwill arising from Overland acquisition    28,667     —      $ 28,667  
Currency translation adjustments    (529)    —       (529) 
Allocation on sale of a business unit (1)    (500)    —       (500) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 118,260  $ 21,339  $139,599  
Goodwill arising from RPM acquisition  —     32,280   32,280  
Currency translation adjustments  218   —     218  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Balance at March 31, 2015 $ 118,478  $ 53,619  $172,097  
    

 

    

 

    

 

 
(1) Relates to the sale of a business unit (acquired with the OPI acquisition) during the year ended December 31, 2014. The net loss recognized from the

sale of this business unit was $149 and was included under “other income/ (expense)” in the consolidated statements of income included in the
company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Intangible Assets

Information regarding the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:
 

   As of March 31, 2015  

   
Gross

Carrying Amount   
Accumulated
Amortization   

Net Carrying
Amount  

Customer relationships   $ 63,670    $ (18,292)   $ 45,378  
Leasehold benefits    2,952     (2,074)    878  
Developed technology    12,063     (2,851)    9,212  
Non-compete agreements    1,974     (1,330)    644  
Trade names and trademarks    6,221     (2,248)    3,973  

    
 

    
 

    
 

$ 86,880  $ (26,795) $ 60,085  
    

 

    

 

    

 

   As of December 31, 2014  

   
Gross

Carrying Amount   
Accumulated
Amortization   

Net Carrying
Amount  

Customer relationships   $ 51,598    $ (16,836)   $ 34,762  
Leasehold benefits    2,927     (2,004)    923  
Developed technology    10,814     (2,402)    8,412  
Non-compete agreements    1,365     (1,323)    42  
Trade names and trademarks    4,990     (2,150)    2,840  

    
 

    
 

    
 

$ 71,694  $ (24,715) $ 46,979  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Amortization expense for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $2,059 and $1,536, respectively. The weighted average life of
intangible assets was 8.9 years for customer relationships, 8.0 years for leasehold benefits, 6.5 years for developed technology, 4.9 years for non-compete
agreements and 6.8 years for trade names and trademarks excluding indefinite life trade names and trademarks. The Company had $900 of indefinite life trade
names and trademarks as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
 

2016 $10,633  
2017 $10,629  
2018 $10,501  
2019 $10,405  
2020 $ 8,395  
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6. Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

The following table sets forth the Company’s assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014. The table excludes short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses for which fair values
approximate their carrying amounts.
 

As of March 31, 2015   Level 1    Level 2    Level 3   Total  
Assets         
Money market and mutual funds*   $103,424    $ —      $ —      $103,424  
Derivative financial instruments    —       5,864     —       5,864  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total $103,424  $5,864  $ —    $109,288  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments $ —    $1,747  $ —    $ 1,747  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total $ —    $1,747  $ —    $ 1,747  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

As of December 31, 2014   Level 1    Level 2    Level 3   Total  
Assets         
Money market and mutual funds   $127,347    $ —      $ —      $127,347  
Derivative financial instruments    —       4,579     —       4,579  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total $127,347  $4,579  $ —    $131,926  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments  —     2,961   —    $ 2,961  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total $ —    $2,961  $ —    $ 2,961  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

 
* Includes investments carried on fair value option under ASC 825 of $4,844.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company’s derivative financial instruments consist of foreign currency forward exchange contracts. Fair
values for derivative financial instruments are based on independent sources including highly rated financial institutions and are classified as Level 2. See
Note 7 for further details on Derivatives and Hedge Accounting.

7. Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative instruments and hedging transactions to mitigate exposure to foreign currency fluctuation risks associated with
forecasted transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies and to minimize earnings and cash flow volatility associated with changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company’s derivative financial instruments are largely forward foreign exchange contracts that are designated effective and that
qualify as cash flow hedges under ASC topic 815, “Derivatives and hedging” (ASC No. 815). The Company also uses derivatives consisting of foreign
currency exchange contracts not designated as hedging instruments under ASC No. 815 to hedge intercompany balances and other monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (“fair value hedges”). The Company’s primary exchange rate exposure is
with the Indian Rupee, the U.K. pound sterling and the Philippine peso. The Company also has exposure in Czech koruna and other local currencies in which
it operates.

The Company had outstanding foreign exchange contracts totaling $282,577 and GBP 13,256 as of March 31, 2015 and totaling $276,018 and
GBP 10,889 as of December 31, 2014. The Company estimates that approximately $1,004 of net derivative gains included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss (“AOCI”) could be reclassified into earnings within the next twelve months based on exchange rates prevailing as of March 31, 2015. As
of March 31, 2015, the maximum outstanding term of derivative instruments that hedge forecasted transactions was forty-five months.

The Company evaluates the hedge effectiveness at the time a contract is entered into as well as on an ongoing basis. If during this time a contract
is deemed ineffective, the change in the fair value is recorded in the unaudited consolidated statements of
 

14



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 
income and is included in foreign exchange loss. For hedging positions that are discontinued because the forecasted transaction is not expected to occur by the
end of the originally specified period, any related derivative amounts recorded in equity are reclassified to earnings. No significant amounts of gains or losses
were reclassified from AOCI into earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

The following tables set forth the fair value of the foreign currency exchange contracts and their location on the unaudited consolidated financial
statements:
 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Other current assets:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 2,324    $ 1,243  
Other assets:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 3,437    $ 3,193  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 1,320    $ 2,385  
Other non-current liabilities:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 398    $ 576  

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Other current assets:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 103    $ 143  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:     

Foreign currency exchange contracts   $ 29    $ —    

The following tables set forth the effect of foreign currency exchange contracts on the unaudited consolidated statements of income for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:
 

Derivatives in Cash Flow
Hedging Relationships   

Amount of Gain/
(Loss) Recognized in

AOCI on
Derivative

(Effective Portion)    

Location of Gain/(Loss)
Reclassified from

AOCI into Income
(Effective Portion)   

Amount of Gain/
(Loss) Reclassified from

AOCI into Income
(Effective Portion)   

Location of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income

on Derivative
(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from
Effectiveness Testing)   

Amount of Gain/
(Loss) Recognized in
Income on Derivative

(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from
Effectiveness Testing)  

   2015    2014       2015   2014      2015    2014  
Foreign exchange contracts   $ 2,259    $ 7,010    Foreign exchange loss   $ (309)  $ (2,254)  Foreign exchange loss   $ —      $ —    
 

Derivatives not designated as Hedging Instruments
  Location of Gain or (Loss)   

Amount of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income on

Derivatives  
  Recognized in Income on Derivatives   2015    2014  

Foreign exchange contracts   Foreign exchange loss   $ 2,096    $ 2,714  
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8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:
 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Owned Assets:     

Network equipment, computers and software   $ 88,238    $ 83,140  
Buildings    1,273     1,262  
Land    833     826  
Leasehold improvements    27,943     26,416  
Office furniture and equipment    12,902     12,218  
Motor vehicles    535     542  
Capital work in progress    2,637     3,029  

    
 

    
 

 134,361   127,433  
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (87,701)  (82,947) 

    
 

    
 

$ 46,660  $ 44,486  
    

 
    

 

Assets under capital leases:
Leasehold improvements $ 956  $ 961  
Office furniture and equipment  194   219  
Motor vehicles  888   848  

    
 

    
 

 2,038   2,028  
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (1,231)  (1,145) 

    
 

    
 

$ 807  $ 883  
    

 
    

 

Fixed assets, net $ 47,467  $ 45,369  
    

 

    

 

Depreciation and amortization expense excluding amortization of acquisition-related intangibles for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014 was $4,994 and $4,820, respectively.

Capital work in progress represents advances paid toward acquisitions of fixed assets and the cost of fixed assets not yet ready to be placed in
service.

9. Capital Structure

The Company has one class of common stock outstanding.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company acquired 12,866 and 18,256 shares of common stock, respectively, from
employees in connection with withholding tax payments related to the vesting of restricted stock for a total consideration of $397 and $459, respectively. The
weighted average purchase price of $30.83 and $25.14, respectively, was the average of the high and low price of the Company’s common stock on the
Nasdaq Global Select Market on the trading day prior to the vesting date of the shares of restricted stock. The shares acquired are held as treasury stock.

Repurchased shares have been recorded as treasury shares and will be held until the Company’s board of directors designates that these shares be
retired or used for other purposes.
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10. Borrowings

On October 24, 2014, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with certain lenders and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent. The Credit Agreement provides for a $50,000 revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”), including a letter of credit sub-
facility, for a period of five years. The Company had an option to increase the commitments under the Credit Facility by up to an additional $50,000, subject
to certain approvals and conditions as set forth in the Credit Agreement. On February 23, 2015, the Company exercised its option to increase credit
commitments by another $50,000 upon the same terms and conditions which were available in the Credit Agreement The credit facility has a maturity date of
October 24, 2019 and is voluntarily prepayable from time to time without premium or penalty.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility may be used for working capital, general corporate purposes and for acquisitions. The Company has
borrowed $80,000 under the Credit Facility as on March 31, 2015. For the additional borrowing of $30,000 during the three months ended March 31, 2015,
the Company incurred $50 as debt issuance costs, which are deferred and amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the term of the Credit Facility
on a straight line basis.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to the specified prime rate (alternate base rate) or adjusted LIBO rate, plus, an
applicable margin. The applicable margin is tied to the Company’s leverage ratio and ranges from 0.25% to 0.75% per annum with respect to loans (“ABR
Loans”) pegged to the specified prime rate, and 1.25% to 1.75% per annum on loans (“Eurodollar Loans”) pegged to the adjusted LIBO rate (such applicable
margin, the “Applicable Rate”). The revolving credit commitments under the Credit Agreement are subject to a commitment fee. The commitment fee is also
tied to the Company’s leverage ratio, and ranges from 0.20% to 0.30% per annum on the average daily amount by which the aggregate revolving
commitments exceed the sum of outstanding revolving loans and letter of credit obligations. The Credit Facility carried an interest rate of 1.56% per annum
during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its material domestic
subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants including a restriction on indebtedness of the Company.

11. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company’s Gratuity Plans in India and the Philippines provide a lump-sum payment to its vested employees upon retirement or upon
termination of employment in an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the
Gratuity Plans are determined by actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Current service costs for the Gratuity Plans are accrued in the year
to which they relate. Actuarial gains or losses or prior service costs, if any, resulting from amendments to the plans are recognized and amortized over the
remaining period of service of the employees.

Net gratuity cost includes the following components:
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Service cost   $ 423    $ 378  
Interest cost    142     139  
Expected return on plan assets    (100)    (43) 
Actuarial loss    55     37  

    
 

    
 

Net gratuity cost $ 520  $ 511  
    

 

    

 

The Gratuity Plans in India are partially funded and are managed and administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India and HDFC Standard
Life Insurance Company. They calculate the annual contribution required to be made by the Company and manage the Gratuity Plans, including any required
payouts. Fund managers manage these funds on a cash accumulation basis and declare interest retrospectively on March 31 of each year. The Company
estimated a return of approximately 9% on these Gratuity Plans for the year ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Plan assets at January 1, 2015 $4,752  
Actual return  109  
Benefits paid  (197) 
Effect of exchange rate changes  41  

    
 

Plan assets at March 31, 2015 $4,705  
    

 

The Company maintains the Exl Service 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the
“Code”), covering all eligible employees, as defined. The Company may make discretionary contributions of up to a maximum of 3% of employee
compensation within certain limits. The Company has made provisions for contributions to the 401(k) Plan amounting to $768 and $503 during the three
month periods ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, respectively.

During the three month periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company contributed the following amounts to various defined contribution
plans on behalf of its employees in India, the Philippines, Romania, Bulgaria and the Czech Republic:
 

Three months ended March 31, 2015 $1,465  
Three months ended March 31, 2014 $1,398  

12. Leases

The Company finances its use of certain leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles under various lease
arrangements provided by financial institutions. Future minimum lease payments under these capital leases as of March 31, 2015 are as follows:
 

Year ending March 31,
2016 $ 825  
2017  291  
2018  132  
2019  52  

    
 

Total minimum lease payments  1,300  
Less: amount representing interest  133  

    
 

Present value of minimum lease payments  1,167  
Less: current portion  743  

    
 

Long term capital lease obligation $ 424  
    

 

The Company conducts its operations using facilities leased under non-cancelable operating lease agreements that expire at various dates. Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable agreements expiring after March 31, 2015 are set forth below:
 

Year ending March 31,
2016 $10,768  
2017  6,704  
2018  4,743  
2019  2,889  
2020  1,688  
2021 and thereafter  334  

    
 

$27,126  
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The operating leases are subject to renewal periodically and have scheduled rent increases. The Company accounts for scheduled rent on such
leases on a straight line basis over the non-cancelable lease period determined under ASC Topic 840 Lease Accounting (“ASC No. 840”). Rent expense under
both cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases was $4,985 and $4,481 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Deferred rent
as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 was $6,921 and $6,544, respectively, and is included under “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” and
“Non-current liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets.

13. Income Taxes

The Company determines the tax provision for interim periods using an estimate of its annual effective tax rate adjusted for discrete items, if any,
that are taken into account in the relevant period. Each quarter, the Company updates its estimate of its annual effective tax rate, and if its estimated tax rate
changes, the Company makes a cumulative adjustment.

The Company recorded income tax expense of $6,213 and $4,465 for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
effective tax rate increased from 28.6% during the three months ended March 31, 2014 to 39.4% during the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase
in effective tax rate was primarily due to immaterial errors related to prior years (individually as well as when aggregated) which was recorded during the
three months ended March 31, 2015, and resulted in an increase in income tax expense of approximately $1,800 (including $1,285 related to the taxability of
certain foreign income in those prior years for which the Company recorded a reserve for an unrecognized tax benefit). In accordance with ASC Topic 250,
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, the Company evaluated the effects of the errors on its financial statements for those prior years and the expected
full year financial results for the year ending December 31, 2015 and concluded that the results of operations for these periods are not materially misstated. In
reaching its conclusion, the Company considered qualitative and quantitative factors. The effective tax rate further increased due to the expiration of tax
holiday in one of the Company’s operating centres registered with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (“PEZA”).

The following table summarizes the activity related to the gross unrecognized tax benefits from January 1, 2015 through March 31, 2015:
 

Balance as of January 1, 2015 $2,761  
Increases related to prior year tax positions  1,239  
Decreases related to prior year tax positions  —    
Increases related to current year tax positions  —    
Decreases related to current year tax positions  —    
Effect of exchange rate changes  15  

    
 

Balance as of March 31, 2015 $4,015  
    

 

The unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31, 2015 of $4,015, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company has recognized interest of $99 and $55 respectively, which are included
in the income tax expense in the unaudited consolidated statements of income. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company has accrued
approximately $1,224 and $1,117, respectively, in interest relating to unrecognized tax benefits.

The unrecognized tax benefits may increase or decrease in the next twelve months depending on the Company’s tax position.

14. Stock-Based Compensation

The following costs related to the Company’s stock-based compensation plan are included in the unaudited consolidated statements of income:
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Cost of revenue   $ 1,103    $ 1,013  
General and administrative expenses    1,483     1,514  
Selling and marketing expenses    1,669     1,649  

    
 

    
 

Total $ 4,255  $ 4,176  
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Stock Options

Stock option activity under the Company’s stock plans is shown below:
 

   
Number of

Options    

Weighted-
Average Exercise

Price    
Aggregate

Intrinsic Value   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual Life

(Years)  
Outstanding at December 31, 2014    1,433,179    $ 16.23    $ 17,889     4.47  

Granted    —       —       —       —    
Exercised    (122,202)    15.42      
Forfeited    (2,730)    24.77      

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at March 31, 2015  1,308,247  $ 16.29  $ 27,361   4.17  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Vested and exercisable at March 31, 2015  1,216,856  $ 15.67  $ 26,195   4.01  
    

 
      

Available for grant at March 31, 2015  621,225  
    

 

      

The unrecognized compensation cost for unvested options as of March 31, 2015 is $577 which is expected to be expensed over a weighted
average period of 0.8 years. The Company did not grant any options during the three months ended March 31, 2015. The weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the three months ended March 31, 2014 $9.77. The total grant date fair value of options vested during the three months ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $1,126 and $1,192 respectively.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity under the Company’s stock plans is shown below:
 

   Restricted Stock    Restricted Stock Units  

   Number    
Weighted-Average

Intrinsic Value    Number    
Weighted-Average

Intrinsic Value  
Outstanding at December 31, 2014*    46,950    $ 29.29     1,189,691    $ 26.54  

Granted    122,131     35.91     448,228     34.98  
Vested    —       —       (288,041)    25.01  
Forfeited    —       —       (29,133)    26.46  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at March 31, 2015*  169,081  $ 34.07   1,320,745  $ 29.74  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

 
* Excludes 136,016 and 128,000 vested restricted stock units as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, for which the underlying common

stock is yet to be issued.
 

20



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continued)

March 31, 2015
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
 

As of March 31, 2015, unrecognized compensation cost of $40,382 is expected to be expensed over a weighted average period of 3.17 years.

Performance Based Stock Awards

Performance restricted stock unit (the “PRSU’s”) activity under the Company’s stock plans is shown below:
 

   Revenue Based PRSU’s    Market Condition Based PRSU’s  

   Number    
Weighted Avg
Intrinsic Value   Number    

Weighted Avg
Intrinsic Value  

Outstanding at Dec 31, 2014    47,725    $ 25.63     47,725    $ 33.60  
Granted    62,788     34.75     62,787     54.63  
Vested    —       —       —       —    
Forfeited    (1,250)    25.63     (1,250)    33.60  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at March 31, 2015  109,263  $ 30.87   109,262  $ 45.68  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

As of March 31, 2015, unrecognized compensation cost of $7,283 is expected to be expensed over a weighted average period of 2.51 years.

15. Geographical Information
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
Revenues, net     
United States   $ 111,865    $ 90,413  
United Kingdom    25,835     23,421  
Rest of World    5,810     7,963  

    
 

    
 

$ 143,510  $ 121,797  
    

 

    

 

   
March 31,

2015    
December 31,

2014  
Fixed assets, net     
India   $ 26,625    $ 24,186  
United States    9,531     8,293  
Philippines    10,824     12,391  
Rest of World    487     499  

    
 

    
 

$ 47,467  $ 45,369  
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

Fixed Asset Commitments

As of March 31, 2015, the Company had committed to spend approximately $7,937 under agreements to purchase fixed assets. This amount is
net of capital advances paid in respect of these purchases.

Other Commitments

Certain units of the Company’s Indian subsidiaries were established as 100% Export-Oriented units or under the Software Technology Parks of
India (“STPI”) scheme promulgated by the Government of India. These units are exempt from customs, central excise duties, and levies on imported and
indigenous capital goods, stores, and spares. The Company has undertaken to pay custom duties, service taxes, levies, and liquidated damages payable, if any,
in respect of imported and indigenous capital goods, stores and spares consumed duty free, in the event that certain terms and conditions are not fulfilled. The
Company’s management believes, however, that these units have in the past satisfied and will continue to satisfy the required conditions.

The Company’s operations centers in the Philippines are registered with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (“PEZA”). The registration
provides the Company with certain fiscal incentives on the import of capital goods and requires Exl Philippines to meet certain performance and investment
criteria. The Company’s management believes that these centers have in the past satisfied and will continue to satisfy the required criteria.

Contingencies

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations require that any international transaction involving associated enterprises be at an arm’s length price.
Accordingly, the Company determines the appropriate pricing for the international transactions among its associated enterprises on the basis of a detailed
functional and economic analysis involving benchmarking against transactions among entities that are not under common control. The tax authorities have
jurisdiction to review this arrangement and in the event that they determine that the transfer price applied was not appropriate, the Company may incur
increased tax liability, including accrued interest and penalties. The Company is currently involved in disputes with the Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing policies for some of its subsidiaries. Further, the Company and its U.S. subsidiary, ExlService.com LLC are
engaged in tax litigation with the income-tax authorities in India on the issue of permanent establishment.

The aggregate disputed amount demanded by Indian tax authorities from the Company related to its transfer pricing issues for various years
ranging from tax years 2003 to 2011 and its permanent establishment issues ranging from tax years 2003 to 2011 as of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014 is $20,208 and $22,866, respectively, of which the Company has already made payments or provided bank guarantees to the extent of $15,425 and
$14,666, respectively. Amounts paid as deposits in respect of such assessments aggregating to $13,305 and $12,564 as of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, respectively, are included in “Other assets” and amounts deposited for bank guarantees aggregating to $2,120 and $2,102 as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectively, are included in “Restricted cash” in the non-current assets section of the Company’s unaudited consolidated balance sheet
as of March 31, 2015 and consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014.

Based on advice from its Indian tax advisors, the facts underlying the Company’s position and its experience with these types of assessments, the
Company believes that the probability that it will ultimately be found liable for these assessments is remote and accordingly has not accrued any amount with
respect to these matters in its consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect any impact from these assessments on its future income tax
expense. It is possible that the Company might receive similar orders or assessments from tax authorities for subsequent years. Accordingly even if these
disputes are resolved, the Indian tax authorities may still serve additional orders or assessments.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in connection with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere
in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Some of the statements in the  following discussion are forward looking statements. See “Forward Looking
Statements.” Dollar amounts within Item 2 are presented as actual, approximated, dollar amounts.

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward looking statements. You should not place undue reliance on these statements because they
are subject to numerous uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which
are beyond our control. These statements often include words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate”
or similar expressions. These statements are based on assumptions that we have made in light of our experience in the industry as well as our perceptions of
historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and
consider this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of performance or results. They involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Although we believe that these forward looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you
should be aware that many factors could affect our actual financial results or results of operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from
those in the forward looking statements. These factors include but are not limited to:
 

•  our dependence on a limited number of clients in a limited number of industries;
 

•  worldwide political, economic or business conditions;
 

•  negative public reaction in the U.S. or elsewhere to offshore outsourcing;
 

•  fluctuations in our earnings;
 

•  our ability to attract and retain clients;
 

•  our ability to successfully consummate or integrate strategic acquisitions;
 

•  restrictions on immigration;
 

•  our ability to hire and retain enough sufficiently trained employees to support our operations;
 

•  our ability to grow our business or effectively manage growth and international operations;
 

•  increasing competition in our industry;
 

•  telecommunications or technology disruptions;
 

•  our ability to withstand the loss of any significant customer
 

•  regulatory, legislative and judicial developments, including changes to or the withdrawal of governmental fiscal incentives;
 

•  technological innovation;
 

•  political or economic instability in the geographies in which we operate;
 

•  unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential client and customer data; and
 

•  adverse outcome of our disputes with the Indian tax authorities.

These and other factors are more fully discussed elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. These and other risks could cause actual
results to differ materially from those implied by forward looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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The forward looking statements made by us in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or elsewhere, speak only as of the date on which they were
made. New risks and uncertainties come up from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. We have no
obligation to update any forward looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except as
required by federal securities laws.

Executive Overview

We are a leading provider of business process solutions to Fortune 500 and Global 2000 companies. Working as a strategic partner, we help our
clients simplify and streamline business operations, manage compliance, create new channels for growth, and better adapt to change. Our solutions integrate
operations management with analytics and business transformation to deliver actionable business insights and long-term business impact. We help shape our
clients’ operating environments through process and technology interventions and analytics driven insights into business performance with the goal of
increasing quality and productivity while improving risk management and control.

We changed our reporting segments nomenclature in 2014 to Operations Management (previously called Outsourcing Services) and Analytics
and Business Transformation (previously called Transformation Services) in order to more accurately reflect the changing nature of our engagements with our
clients. For comparability with our prior periods, the business composition of each segment remains unchanged.

Our global delivery network, comprising highly trained industry and process specialists across the United States, Europe and Asia, is a key asset.
We have operations centers in India, the U.S., the Philippines, Bulgaria, Romania and the Czech Republic. We also established a new operating center in India
during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Consistent with our growth strategy, on March 20, 2015 we acquired RPM, which, prior to the acquisition focused on the insurance industry,
including property & casualty (“P&C”), life and health, and specialized in analyzing large consumer data sets to segment populations, predicting response
rates, forecasting customer lifetime value and designing targeted, multi-channel marketing campaigns.

On July 1, 2014 and October 24, 2014, we acquired Blue Slate Solutions, LLC (the “Blue Slate acquisition”) and Overland Holdings, Inc. (the
“Overland acquisition”), respectively. The Blue Slate acquisition increases our Business Process Management and Technology Solutions capabilities that
specialize in transforming operations through business process automation, use of innovative technologies, data integration and analytics. The Overland
acquisition increases our underwriting support services capabilities for our clients in the P&C insurance industry.

Revenue

As part of reimbursing the Travelers Indemnity Company (“Travelers”) for certain of their transition related expenses (the “disentanglement
costs”), we recognized $2.5 million of such reimbursements as a reduction of our revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2014. We did not incur
any reimbursements of disentanglement costs during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and we do not anticipate incurring any additional
reimbursements of disentanglement costs going forward.

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, we had total revenues of $143.5 million compared to total revenues of $121.8 million (net of $2.5
million of reimbursement of disentanglement costs to Travelers) for the three months ended March 31, 2014, an increase of $21.7 million or 17.8%. Revenues
from operations management services were $110.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to $100.1 million (net of $2.5 million of
reimbursement of disentanglement costs to Travelers) for the three months ended March 31, 2014. Revenues from analytics and business transformation
services were $32.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to $21.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

We serve clients mainly in the U.S. and the U.K., with these two regions generating 78.0 % and 18.0 %, respectively, of our total revenues for the
three months ended March 31, 2015 and 74.2% and 19.2%, respectively, of our total revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, total revenues from our top ten clients accounted for 45.9 % and 54.2% of our total
revenues, respectively. None of our clients accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues during the three months ended March, 31, 2015 and
2014. Although we are continually increasing and diversifying our customer base, we expect in the near future that a significant portion of our revenue will
continue to be contributed by a limited number of large clients.

We derived revenues from eleven new clients for our services in the three months ended March 31, 2015, compared to eight new clients for our
services in the three months ended March 31, 2014.
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Our Business

Our business is divided into two reporting segments: Operations Management and Analytics and Business Transformation. RPM’s results are
included in our Analytics and Business Transformation segment. We market our services to our existing and prospective clients through our sales and client
management teams, which are aligned by key industry verticals and cross-industry domains such as finance and accounting. Our sales and client management
teams operate from the U.S. and Europe.

Operations Management: We provide our clients with a range of operations management solutions principally in the insurance, healthcare,
utilities, banking and financial services, and travel, transportation and logistics sectors, as well as cross-industry operations management solutions, such as
finance and accounting services.

Our Operations Management solutions typically involve the transfer to the Company of select business operations of a client such as claims
processing, clinical operations, or financial transaction processing, after which we administer and manage the operations for our client on an ongoing basis.
As part of this transfer, we hire and train employees to work at our operations centers on the relevant business operations, implement a process migration to
these operations centers and then provide services either to the client or directly to the client’s customers. Each client contract has different terms based on the
scope, deliverables and complexity of the engagement. The operations management solutions we provide to any of our clients (particularly under our general
framework agreements), and the revenues and income that we derive from those services, may decline or vary as the type and quantity of services we provide
under those contracts change over time, including as a result of a shift in the mix of products and services we provide. For most business process outsourcing
engagements we enter into long-term agreements with our clients with typical initial terms ranging from three to eight years. These contracts also usually
contain provisions permitting termination of the contract after a notice period set forth in the contract. Although these agreements provide us with a relatively
predictable revenue base for a substantial portion of our business, the long selling cycle for our operations management solutions and the budget and approval
processes of prospective clients make it difficult to predict the timing of new client acquisitions. Revenues under new client contracts also vary depending on
when we complete the selling cycle and the implementation phase.

To the extent our client contracts do not contain provisions to the contrary, we bear the risk of inflation and fluctuations in currency exchange
rates with respect to our contracts. We hedge a substantial portion of our Indian rupee/U.S. dollar, Philippine peso/U.S. dollar and U.S. dollar/ U.K. pound
sterling foreign currency exposure.

We have been observing a shift in industry pricing models toward transaction-based pricing, outcome-based pricing and other pricing models. We
believe this trend will continue and we have begun to use transaction-based, outcome-based and other pricing models with some of our current clients and are
seeking to move certain other clients from a billing rate model to a transaction-based or other pricing model. These transaction-based pricing models place the
focus on operating efficiency in order to maintain our operating margins. In addition, we have also observed that prospective larger clients are entering into
multi-vendor relationships with regard to their outsourcing needs. We believe that the trend toward multi-vendor relationships will continue. A multi-vendor
relationship allows a client to seek more favorable pricing and other contract terms from each vendor, which can result in significantly reduced operating
margins from the provision of services to such client for each vendor. To the extent our large clients expand their use of multi-vendor relationships and are
able to extract more favorable contract terms from other vendors, our operating margins and revenues may be reduced with regard to such clients if we are
required to modify the terms of our relationships with such clients.

Within our Operations Management solutions, we also offer software to provide BPaaS services for our insurance and healthcare clients. We
have added these capabilities through acquisitions over the last few years. Depending on the software, the fees derived may be based on licenses, installation,
support and maintenance, and/or recoveries from claims. We believe our proprietary software technology will be an important source of growth in the future
as clients choose to transfer certain business functions to a third-party-owned technology provider.

As we increase our capabilities utilizing technology service platforms and other software-based services, we expect that revenues from such
services will continue to grow in proportion to our total revenues. Revenues from annual maintenance and support contracts for our software platforms
provide us with a relatively predictable revenue base and are generally recognized ratably over the terms of the contracts. New license sales and
implementation projects have a long selling cycle and it is difficult to predict the timing of when such new contracts will be signed, which may lead to
fluctuations in our revenues over the short term.
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Analytics and Business Transformation: Our Analytics and Business Transformation solutions include our Analytics, Operations Consulting, and
Finance Transformation services. These services focus on improving our clients’ operating environments, whether or not they are managed by us, through
cost reduction, additional insight for business forecasting, enhanced efficiency and productivity, improved effectiveness of business decisions and creation of
an improved risk and control environment. We actively cross-sell and, where appropriate, integrate our Analytics and Business Transformation solutions with
Operations Management as part of a comprehensive solution for our clients. Our Analytics solutions involve accessing and analyzing large volumes of data
from multiple data sources to generate insights about past business performance or predict future business outcomes. In order to provide services, we leverage
a large pool of analytics professionals and data scientists who deploy our proprietary analytics tools and methodologies to help clients better utilize their data
to generate actionable business insights. These insights generated by our analytics tools, statistical models and data scientists assist clients in making quicker,
more accurate and data-driven business decisions, which we believe leads to better business outcomes and tangible financial benefits.

Our Analytics and Business Transformation solutions consist of both recurring and specific projects with contract terms generally not exceeding
one to three years. These contracts also usually contain provisions permitting termination of the contract after a short notice period. The short-term nature and
specificity of these projects could lead to further material fluctuations and uncertainties in the revenues generated from these businesses. Our analytics and
business transformation services can be affected by variations in business cycles. We have experienced a significant increase in demand for our annuity-based
analytics and business transformation solutions, with the majority of our revenue generated from engagements that are contracted for one- to three-year terms.

We anticipate that revenues from our analytics and business transformation services will grow as we expand our service offerings and client base,
both organically and through acquisitions.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

For a description of our critical accounting policies and estimates, refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations – Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2014
Annual Report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the three months ended on March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014:
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
   (dollars in millions)  
Revenues, net   $ 143.5    $ 121.8  
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)    93.1     74.9  

    
 

    
 

Gross profit  50.4   46.9  
    

 
    

 

Operating expenses:
General and administrative expenses  18.6   14.8  
Selling and marketing expenses  11.2   10.2  
Depreciation and amortization expenses  7.1   6.4  

    
 

    
 

Total operating expenses  36.9   31.4  
    

 
    

 

Income from operations  13.5   15.5  
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain  1.1   (0.8) 
Other income, net  1.2   1.0  

    
 

    
 

Income before income taxes  15.8   15.7  
Income tax expense  6.2   4.5  

    
 

    
 

Net income $ 9.6  $ 11.2  
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2015 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Revenues
 

   Three months ended March 31,        Percentage 
   2015    2014    Change   change  
   (dollars in millions)          
Operations Management   $ 110.7    $ 100.1    $ 10.6     10.6% 
Analytics and Business Transformation    32.8     21.7     11.1     51.3% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total revenues, net $ 143.5  $ 121.8  $ 21.7   17.8% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

The increase in revenues from operations management services of $10.6 million was primarily due to revenues from the Overland acquisition of
$16.9 million and net volume increases from our new and existing clients aggregating $3.1 million. This increase was primarily offset by a decrease in
revenues from Travelers of $8.9 million (net of $2.5 million of reimbursement of disentanglement costs) and $0.5 million due to the impact of the
depreciation of the Indian rupee and the U.K. pound sterling against the U.S. dollar during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2014.

The increase in revenues from analytics and business transformation services of $11.1 million was primarily driven by increased revenues in our
analytics services of $6.5 million (including $1.2 million from our RPM acquisition) and business transformation services of $5.3 million (including $2.1
million from our Blue Slate acquisition). The increase is partially offset by $0.7 million due to the depreciation of the U.K. pound sterling against the U.S.
dollar during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014. Revenues from new clients for business
transformation services were $0.7 million and $0.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Cost of Revenues.
 

   Three months ended March 31,       Percentage 
   2015   2014   Change   change  
   (dollars in millions)         
Total revenues   $ 143.5   $ 121.8   $ 21.7     17.8% 
Cost of revenues    93.1    74.9    18.2     24.3% 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Gross Profit $ 50.4  $ 46.9  $ 3.5   7.5% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

As a percentage of revenues  35.1%  38.5% 

The increase in cost of revenues was primarily due to an increase in employee-related costs of $15.5 million (including $12.6 million of
employee-related costs related to our recent acquisitions). The increase of $2.9 million in employee-related cost is due to annual wage increases and an
increase in our average headcount of personnel directly involved in providing services to our clients. We also experienced an increase in facilities, technology
and other operating expenses of $4.1 million (including $2.3 million related to our recent acquisitions) in connection with our new operations centers in India
and the Philippines and to support business growth. This increase is partially offset by a decrease in reimbursable expenses of $0.6 million, resulting in a
corresponding decrease in revenues, and by $0.8 million due to the net impact of depreciation of the Indian rupee and the U.K pound sterling and appreciation
of Philippine peso against the U.S. dollar during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased by $3.5 million, or 7.5% from $46.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $50.4 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase is primarily due to higher revenues, partially offset by higher cost of revenues and depreciation of the
Indian Rupee and the U.K. pound sterling against the U.S. dollar during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2014.
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Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses.
 

   Three months ended March 31,       Percentage 
   2015   2014   Change   change  
   (dollars in millions)         
General and administrative expenses   $ 18.6   $ 14.8   $ 3.8     25.8% 
Selling and marketing expenses    11.2    10.2    1.0     9.9% 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 29.8  $ 25.0  $ 4.8   19.3% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

As a percentage of revenues  20.8%  20.6% 

The increase in SG&A expenses was primarily due to an increase in employee-related costs of $2.8 million (including $2.4 million of employee-
related costs related to our recent acquisitions). The increase of $0.4 million in employee-related cost is due to annual wage increments and an increase in our
average headcount. We also experienced an increase in our other SG&A expenses of $2.2 million (including $0.8 million related to our recent acquisitions).
The increase in other SG&A was primarily due to an increase in legal and professional fees associated with our acquisition, increase in our facilities costs in
connection with our new operations centers in India and the Philippines and other marketing related costs. This increase was partially offset by a decrease of
$0.2 million due to the net impact of depreciation of the Indian rupee and the U.K. pound sterling and appreciation of Philippine peso against the U.S. dollar
during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Depreciation and Amortization.
 

   Three months ended March 31,       Percentage 
   2015   2014   Change   change  
   (dollars in millions)         
Depreciation expense   $ 5.0   $ 4.9   $ 0.1     2.4% 
Intangible amortization expense    2.1    1.5    0.6     26.0% 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Depreciation and amortization expense $ 7.1  $ 6.4  $ 0.7   11.0% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

As a percentage of revenues  4.9%  5.2% 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $0.7 million, or 11.0% from $6.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $7.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 2015.The increase in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily due to amortization of intangible
assets associated with our recent acquisitions.

Income from Operations. Income from operations decreased 13.0% from $15.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $13.5
million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. As a percentage of revenues, income from operations decreased from 12.7% for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 to 9.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, which is primarily due to lower gross margins and higher SG&A expense and
depreciation and amortization expenses as a percentage of revenue during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to three months ended March 31,
2014.

Foreign exchange gain / (loss)

Net foreign exchange gains and losses are attributable to movement of the U.S. dollar against the Indian rupee, the U.K. pound sterling and the
Philippine peso during the three months ended March 31, 2015. The average exchange rate of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar increased from 61.46
during the three months ended March 31, 2014 to 62.06 during the three months ended March 31, 2015. We recorded a net foreign exchange gain of $1.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to a net foreign exchange loss of $0.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014.
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Other Income
 

   Three months ended March 31,        Percentage 
   2015    2014    Change   change  
   (dollars in millions)          
Interest and dividend income    1.4     0.9     0.6     59.9% 
Interest expense    (0.3)    (0.1)    (0.2)    150.4% 
Others, net    0.1     0.2     (0.2)    -69.6% 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Other income, net $ 1.2  $ 1.0  $ 0.2   23.0% 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Increase in interest and dividend income was primarily due to higher yield on investments during the three months ended March 31, 2015
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014. This increase in interest and dividend income is partially offset by an increase in interest expense of
$0.2 million related to the Revolver Credit Facility and the amortization of related deferred financing cost.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense increased from $4.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $6.2 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2015. The effective tax rate increased from 28.6% during the three months ended March 31, 2014 to 39.4% during the three
months ended March 31, 2015 primarily due to immaterial errors related to prior years (individually as well as when aggregated) which was recorded during
the three months ended March 31, 2015, and resulted in an increase in income tax expense of approximately $1.8 million (including $1.3 million related to the
taxability of certain foreign income in those prior years for which we recorded a reserve for an unrecognized tax benefit). The effective tax rate further
increased due to the expiration of tax holiday in one of our operating centres registered with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (“PEZA”) (refer to Note
13 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further details).

Net Income. Net income decreased from $11.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $9.6 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, primarily due to a decrease in income from operations of $2.0 million and higher income tax expense of $1.7 million, partially offset by an
increase in other income and foreign exchange gain of $2.2 million. As a percentage of revenues, net income decreased from 9.2% for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 to 6.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

   Three months ended March 31,  
   2015    2014  
   (dollars in millions)  
Opening cash and cash equivalents   $ 176.5    $ 148.1  
Net cash provided by operating activities    0.1     5.0  
Net cash used for investing activities    (56.2)    (11.7) 
Net cash provided by financing activities    31.2     0.9  
Effect of exchange rate changes    (0.3)    1.4  

    
 

    
 

Closing cash and cash equivalents $ 151.3  $ 143.7  
    

 

    

 

As of March 31, 2015, we had $165.6 million in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments (including $104.9 million held by our
foreign subsidiaries). We do not intend to repatriate our overseas funds since our future growth partially depends upon continued infrastructure and
technology investments, geographical expansions and acquisitions outside of the U.S. Therefore, we need to continuously and permanently reinvest the
earnings generated outside of the U.S. If we were to repatriate our overseas funds, we would accrue and pay applicable taxes.

Operating Activities: Cash flows provided by operating activities decreased from $5.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $0.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Generally, factors that affect our earnings – including pricing, volume of services, costs and productivity
– affect our cash flows provided by operations in a similar manner. However, while management of working capital, including timing of collections and
payments affects operating results only indirectly, the impact on the working capital and cash flows provided by operating activities can be significant.
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The decrease in cash flows provided by operations for the three months ended March 31, 2015 was predominantly due to an increase in working
capital of $23.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to an increase of $20.5 million during the three months ended March 31,
2014 and a decrease in net income adjusted for non-cash expenses of $1.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2014.

Investing Activities: Cash flows used for investing activities increased from $11.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to $56.2
million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase was primarily due to cash paid for the RPM acquisition (net of cash acquired) of $44.5
million, net increase in short term investments of $1.9 million, partially offset by decrease in capital expenditure of $1.8 million related to networking
equipment, computers, software and our new operations centers in India and Philippines during the three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2014.

Financing Activities: Cash flows provided by financing activities increased from $0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 to
$31.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase was primarily due to $30.0 million of borrowings under the Credit Agreement (as
described below in “– Financing Arrangements”) during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

We expect to use cash from operating activities to maintain and expand our business. As we have focused on expanding our cash flow from
operating activities we continue to make capital investments, primarily related to new facilities and capital expenditures associated with leasehold
improvements to build our facilities and the purchase of telecommunications equipment and computer hardware and software in connection with managing
client operations. We incurred $8.8 million of capital expenditures in the three months ended March 31, 2015. We expect to incur capital expenditures of
between $10 million to $15 million in the remainder of 2015, primarily to meet the growth requirements of our clients, including additions to our facilities as
well as investments in technology applications and infrastructure. The timing and volume of such capital expenditures in the future will be affected by new
client contracts we may enter into or the expansion of business under our existing client contracts.

In connection with any tax assessment orders that have been issued or may be issued against us or our subsidiaries, we may be required to deposit
additional amounts with respect to such assessment orders (refer to Note 16 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements for further details).

We anticipate that we will continue to rely upon cash from operating activities to finance our smaller acquisitions, capital expenditures and
working capital needs. If we have significant growth through acquisitions, we may need to obtain additional financing.

Financing Arrangements (Debt Facility)

We and certain of our subsidiaries entered into a credit agreement with the lenders identified therein and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent, that became effective as of October 27, 2014 (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement provides for a $50 million revolving
credit facility and an option to increase the commitments under the Credit Agreement by an additional $50 million, subject to certain approvals and conditions
as set forth in the Credit Agreement. We exercised the option under the Credit Agreement on February 23, 2014 and increased our credit facility to $100
million. As on March 31, 2015, we had a total debt of $80 million under the Credit Agreement. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement may be used for
working capital and general corporate purposes of the Company and its subsidiaries and for acquisitions.

Depending on the type of borrowing, loans under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to the specified prime rate (alternate base
rate) or adjusted LIBO rate, plus, in each case, an applicable margin. The applicable margin is tied to our leverage ratio and ranges from 0.25% to 0.75% per
annum with respect to loans (“ABR Loans”) pegged to the specified prime rate, and 1.25% to 1.75% per annum on loans (“Eurodollar Loans”) pegged to the
adjusted LIBO rate (such applicable margin, the “Applicable Rate”). The revolving credit commitments under the Credit Agreement are subject to a
commitment fee. The commitment fee is also tied to our leverage ratio, and ranges from 0.20% to 0.30% per annum on the average daily amount by which the
aggregate revolving commitments exceed the sum of outstanding revolving loans and letter of credit obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements or obligations.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2015:
 
       Payment Due by Period          

   

Less
than

1 year    
1-3

years    
4-5

years    
After

5 years   Total  

           
(dollars in
millions)          

Capital leases   $ 0.8    $ 0.4    $ 0.1    $ —      $ 1.3  
Operating leases    10.8     11.4     4.6     0.3     27.1  
Purchase obligations    7.9     —       —       —       7.9  
Fair value of earn-out consideration    1.6     1.2     —       —       2.8  
Other obligations(a)    2.1     3.5     2.8     3.6     12.0  
Borrowings           

Principal payments    5.0     —       75.0     —       80.0  
Interest Payments(b)    1.2     2.3     1.9     —       5.4  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total contractual cash obligations(c) $29.4  $ 18.8  $ 84.4  $ 3.9  $136.5  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

 
(a) Represents estimated payments under the Gratuity Plan.
(b) Interest on borrowings is calculated based on the effective interest rate during the three months ended March 31, 2015.
(c) Excludes $4.0 million related to uncertain tax positions, since the extent of the amount and timing of payment is currently not reliably estimable or

determinable.

Certain units of our Indian subsidiaries were established as 100% Export-Oriented units under the “STPI” scheme promulgated by the
Government of India. These units are exempt from customs, central excise duties, and levies on imported and indigenous capital goods, stores, and spares. We
have undertaken to pay custom duties, service taxes, levies, and liquidated damages payable, if any, in respect of imported and indigenous capital goods,
stores, and spares consumed duty free, in the event that certain terms and conditions are not fulfilled. We believe, however, that these units have in the past
satisfied and will continue to satisfy the required conditions.

Our operations centers in the Philippines are registered with the PEZA. The registration provides us with certain fiscal incentives on the import
of capital goods and requires that Exl Philippines meet certain performance and investment criteria. We believe that these centers have in the past satisfied
and will continue to satisfy the required criteria.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 2 – “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” under Item 1 –“Financial
Statements” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, there were no material changes in our market risk exposure. For a discussion of our market risk
associated with exchange rate risk and interest rate risk, see Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act,”) is recorded, processed, summarized
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and reported within the time periods specified in the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), to allow timely decisions
regarding required financial disclosure. In connection with the preparation of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our management carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of the CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
March 31, 2015. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of March 31, 2015, our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

In making its assessment of the changes in internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2015, our management
excluded an evaluation of the disclosure controls and procedures of RPM which we acquired on March 20, 2015, Overland which we acquired on October 24,
2014 and Blue Slate which we acquired on July 1, 2014. See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for details of our acquisitions.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the course of our normal business activities, various lawsuits, claims and proceedings may be instituted or asserted against us. We believe that
the disposition of matters currently instituted or asserted will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. Please see Note 16 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements contained herein for details regarding our tax proceedings.

 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We have disclosed under the heading “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 a number of
risks which may materially affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. You should carefully consider the “Risk Factors” set forth in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the other information set forth elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
You should be aware that these risk factors and other information may not describe every risk facing our Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to us may also materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or results of operations.

 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Use of Proceeds

None.



Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, purchases of common stock were as follows:
 

Period  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
from employees

in connection
with withholding

tax payments   
Average Price

Paid per share (a)  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs   

Maximum Number of
Shares that May
Yet be Purchased
Under the Plans

or Programs  
January 1, 2015 through January 31, 2015   —     $ —      —      —    
February 1, 2015 through February 28, 2015   12,866   $ 30.83    —      —    
March 1, 2015 through March 31, 2015   —     $ —      —      —    

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total  12,866  $ 30.83   —     —    
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

 
(a) Average of high and low price of common stock on the trading day prior to the vesting date of the shares of restricted stock.
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ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are being filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:
 
  2.1* Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 23, 2015 by and among ExlService Holdings, Inc., ExlService.com LLC, RPM Direct LLC,

RPM Data Solutions, LLC and the security holders named therein.

  10.1 Letter Agreement, dated March 14, 2014, between ExlService Holdings, Inc. and Nancy Saltzman.

  10.2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Incremental Facility Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2015, by and among ExlService
Holdings, Inc., each of its subsidiaries party thereto, the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent for
the Lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2015).

  31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of ExlService Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of ExlService Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
 

* Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC, certain schedules to this agreement have been omitted. The Company hereby
agrees to furnish supplementally to the SEC, upon its request, any or all of such omitted schedules.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

Date: May 1, 2015 By: /s/ VISHAL CHHIBBAR

Vishal Chhibbar
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Signatory, Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 2.1

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

by and among

EXLSERVICE.COM, LLC,

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC. (solely with respect to Section 5.21),

RPM DIRECT LLC,

RPM DATA SOLUTIONS, LLC,

and

THE SELLERS IDENTIFIED HEREIN

Dated as of February 23, 2015
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EXECUTION COPY

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of February 23, 2015, is by and among EXLSERVICE.COM, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Purchaser”), EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware corporation, solely with respect to Section 5.21
(“Holdings”), RPM DIRECT LLC, a New Jersey limited liability company (“RPM”), RPM DATA SOLUTIONS, LLC, a New Jersey limited liability
company (“RDS” and, with RPM, each, a “Target Company” and, together, the “Target Companies”) and the securityholders of each of RPM and RDS listed
on Schedule 3.3 hereto (collectively, the “Sellers”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Sellers are the beneficial and record owners of all of the issued and outstanding limited liability company membership interests or
other equity securities of the Target Companies (the “Securities”); and

WHEREAS, the Sellers desire to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from the Sellers, the Securities upon the terms and subject to the
conditions, and for the consideration set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, and
subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE; CLOSING

1.1 Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, each Seller hereby severally agrees to sell, assign, transfer and
deliver to Purchaser on the Closing Date, and Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase and accept from each Seller on the Closing Date, all of the Securities
identified as owned by such Seller on Schedule 3.3, free and clear of any mortgage, pledge, lien, claim, encumbrance, restriction, purchase right, option, right
of first refusal, obligation, charge or other security interest of any kind or any agreements or commitments to create any of the same (each, an
“Encumbrance”), other than restrictions under federal or state securities laws.

1.2 Purchase Price.

(a) The aggregate purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) for all of the Securities, payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement (including Section 1.2(b) hereof), shall be (i) a cash amount equal to the sum of (A) $70,000,000 (the “Base Price”), plus (B) the Working
Capital Overage, if any, minus (C) the Working Capital Deficiency, if any, minus (D) the EBITDA Deficiency, if any (the sum of clauses (A), (B),
(C) and (D), the “Cash Purchase Price”), plus (ii) the Restricted Stock.



(b) At the Closing, Purchaser shall (i) pay the Cash Closing Payment to the Sellers, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account
or accounts designated in writing by the Seller Representative, (ii) cause Holdings to issue the Restricted Stock to David Denaci and James Arslan, and
(iii) cause Holdings to issue the Restricted Stock Units to the Non-Seller Recipients and the Other Participants, in each case, in accordance with the
allocations set forth on Schedule 1.2(b) of the Disclosure Schedule.

(c) The cash payments to be paid, and the Restricted Stock Units to be issued or awarded to the Non-Seller Recipients in accordance herewith
shall be in full consideration for the “phantom” economic interests in the Target Companies promised to the Non-Seller Recipients by the Sellers prior
to the date hereof. All such “phantom” economic interests outstanding immediately prior to the Closing shall be cancelled, retired and shall cease to
exist, and shall be converted into, and represent, upon the execution and delivery by each Non-Seller Recipient of a release agreement (each, a
“Release”) to the Seller Representative, the right to receive such amounts.

(d) Each Seller expressly acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser shall have no responsibility or liability to any Seller or any other Person
whatsoever for the manner in which the Sellers allocate and distribute the Closing Payment among the Sellers, and the Sellers will jointly and severally
defend, indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser from and against any and all Claims of any Person whatsoever based upon, relating to or arising out of
the allocation and distribution of the Purchase Price among the Sellers.

1.3 Closing. The closing of the purchase and sale contemplated hereby (the “Closing”) will take place at 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) at the offices
of Winston & Strawn LLP, 200 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10166, as promptly as practicable following, but in no event later than, the third
(3rd) Business Day following the satisfaction or waiver of each of the conditions set forth in Article VI hereof (other than, but subject to satisfaction of, the
conditions to be satisfied on the Closing Date), which the parties anticipate will be not later than March 31, 2015, or at such other time and place as may be
agreed to by the parties hereto. Immediately prior to the Closing, Purchaser shall wire the Transaction Bonuses to RPM’s payroll account, and, upon receipt of
such funds, RPM shall pay the Transaction Bonuses via payroll as set forth on Schedule 1.3 of the Disclosure Schedule, net of any applicable withholding or
other similar payroll Taxes or other required payments. Immediately thereafter, Purchaser shall wire the remainder of the Cash Closing Payment to the Seller
Representative. For the avoidance of doubt and notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Closing shall not be deemed to have occurred until after
the Transaction Bonuses have been paid by RPM and the remainder of the Cash Closing Payments have been made to the Seller Representative. Such time
and date are referred to in this Agreement as the “Closing Date.” Subject to the provisions of Article VIII of this Agreement, the failure to consummate the
purchase and sale provided for in this Agreement on the date and time and at the place determined pursuant to this Section 1.3 shall not result in the
termination of this Agreement and shall not relieve any party to this Agreement of any obligation under this Agreement.

1.4 Deliveries. At the Closing:

(a) The Sellers shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Purchaser:

(i) customary evidence (reasonably acceptable to Purchaser) as may be necessary to transfer the ownership of the Securities;
 

- 2 -



(ii) a properly completed and executed certificate of non-foreign status from each Seller in a form that complies with Treasury Regulation
section 1.1445-2(b)(2); and

(iii) Stock Transfer and Stockholder’s Agreements, by and between Holdings and each of David Denaci and James Arslan (duly executed
by each such individual), in each case, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (each, a “Stock Transfer and Stockholder’s Agreement”); and

(iv) Restricted Stock Unit Agreements, by and between Holdings and each Non-Seller Recipient or Other Participant (duly executed by
each of such Person).

(b) The Target Companies shall deliver to Purchaser:

(i) a certificate of the Secretary of State of the State of New Jersey as to the good standing as of the most recent practicable date of RPM;

(ii) a certificate of the Secretary of State of the State of New Jersey as to the good standing as of the most recent practicable date of RDS;

(iii) written resignations of the Members and officers of the Target Companies set forth in Schedule 1.4(b)(iii) of the Disclosure
Schedule;

(iv) evidence of the termination of the agreements identified in Schedule 1.4(b)(iv) of the Disclosure Schedule;

(v) evidence reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser (such as payoff letters and pro forma security interest termination statements), that all
indebtedness of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary will, upon receipt of the applicable discharge payment, release all Encumbrances on the assets and
properties of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary securing such indebtedness; and

(vi) evidence that the Target Companies have entered into valid and binding written statements of work enabling GAAP revenue
recognition for services provided to Metlife Property and Casualty Insurance Company or any Affiliate thereof (exclusive of Postage Revenue).

(c) Purchaser shall deliver, or cause to be delivered:

(i) the Escrow Amount to the Escrow Agent, to be held and disbursed in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement;

(ii) the amounts contemplated by Section 1.2(b);
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(iii) the Stock Transfer and Stockholder’s Agreements, in each case, duly executed by Holdings;

(iv) certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock, allocated in accordance with Schedule 1.2(b) of the Disclosure Schedule;

(v) the Restricted Stock Unit Agreements, in each case, duly executed by Holdings;

(vi) the Restricted Stock Units contemplated by Section 5.20, allocated and distributed in the manner set forth on Schedule 1.2(b) of the
Disclosure Schedule; and

(vii) a certificate of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware as to the good standing as of the most recent practicable date of
Purchaser.

(d) On or prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser and the Seller Representative shall enter into the Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent.

(e) The parties shall deliver such other certificates, instruments or documents as required by any other provisions of this Agreement.

1.5 Pre-Closing Purchase Price Adjustment. At least three (3) days prior to the Closing Date, the Seller Representative shall deliver to Purchaser an
estimate (the “Working Capital Estimate”) of the Net Working Capital as of the close of business on the day immediately preceding the Closing Date without
giving effect to any of the transactions contemplated hereby and determined in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles, together with related
supporting schedules, calculations and documentation and any resulting Working Capital Overage or Working Capital Deficiency. A “Working Capital
Overage” shall exist when (and shall be equal to the amount by which) the Working Capital Estimate exceeds the Target Working Capital, which amount shall
be added to the Base Price as contemplated in the definition of Closing Payment contained in Article X. A “Working Capital Deficiency” shall exist when
(and shall be equal to the amount by which) the Target Working Capital exceeds the Working Capital Estimate, which amount shall be subtracted from the
Base Price as contemplated in the definition of Closing Payment contained in Article X.

1.6 Post-Closing Purchase Price Adjustments.

(a) Final Working Capital Statement. As soon as practicable, but in no event later than seventy-five (75) days after the Closing Date, Purchaser
shall deliver to the Seller Representative a statement (the “Working Capital Statement”) of the Net Working Capital as of the close of business on the
day immediately preceding the Closing Date without giving effect to any of the transactions contemplated hereby and determined in accordance with
the Applicable Accounting Principles (the “Final Working Capital”), together with related supporting schedules, calculations and documentation.

(b) Dispute. Within thirty (30) days following receipt by the Seller Representative of the Working Capital Statement, the Seller Representative
shall either inform Purchaser in writing that the Working Capital Statement is acceptable, or deliver written notice
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(the “Notice of Disagreement”) to Purchaser of any dispute the Seller Representative has with respect to the preparation or content of the Working
Capital Statement or the Final Working Capital reflected therein. The Notice of Disagreement must describe in reasonable detail the items contained in
the Working Capital Statement that the Seller Representative disputes and the basis for any such disputes, including sufficient supporting
documentation. If the Seller Representative does not notify Purchaser of a dispute with respect to the Working Capital Statement within such thirty
(30)-day period, such Working Capital Statement and the Final Working Capital reflected in the Working Capital Statement will be final, conclusive
and binding on the parties. In the event a Notice of Disagreement is delivered to Purchaser, Purchaser and the Seller Representative shall negotiate in
good faith to resolve such dispute. If Purchaser and the Seller Representative, notwithstanding such good faith effort, fail to resolve such dispute within
fourteen (14) days after the Seller Representative delivers the Notice of Disagreement, then Purchaser and the Seller Representative jointly shall engage
the Arbitration Firm to resolve such dispute in accordance with the standards set forth in this Section 1.6(b). The Seller Representative and Purchaser
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Arbitration Firm to render a written decision resolving the matters submitted to the Arbitration
Firm within thirty (30) days of the making of such submission. The scope of the disputes to be resolved by the Arbitration Firm shall be limited to
whether the items in dispute that were properly included in the Notice of Disagreement were prepared in accordance with Applicable Accounting
Principles and the Arbitration Firm shall determine, on such basis, whether and to what extent, the Working Capital Statement and the Final Working
Capital, as applicable, reflected therein require adjustment. The Arbitration Firm is not to make any other determination, including any determination as
to whether the Target Working Capital or the Working Capital Estimate is correct. The Arbitration Firm’s decision shall be based solely on written
submissions by the Seller Representative and Purchaser and their respective representatives and not by independent review. The Arbitration Firm shall
address only those items in dispute and may not assign a value greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either party or smaller than the
smallest value for such item claimed by either party. Judgment may be entered upon the determination of the Arbitration Firm in any court having
jurisdiction over the party against which such determination is to be enforced. Any fees and expenses of the Arbitration Firm incurred in resolving the
disputed matter(s) pursuant to this Section 1.6(b) shall be borne by Purchaser, on the one hand, and the Seller Representative, on the other hand, in
inverse proportion to the respective percentages of the dollar value of disputed items determined in favor of Purchaser, on the one hand, and the Seller
Representative, on the other hand. All determinations made by the Arbitration Firm will be final, conclusive and binding on the parties.

(c) Access. For purposes of complying with the terms set forth in this Section 1.6, each party shall cooperate with and make available to the other
parties and their respective representatives all information, records, data and working papers, and shall permit reasonable access to its facilities and
personnel, as may be reasonably required in connection with the preparation and analysis of the Working Capital Statement or the Final Working
Capital reflected therein and the resolution of any disputes in connection therewith.

(d) Downward Adjustment. If Final Working Capital (as finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.6) is less than the Working Capital
Estimate, then the Purchase Price will be adjusted downward by the amount of such shortfall (the “Downward Adjustment
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Amount”), and the Seller Representative, on behalf of the Sellers, shall pay to Purchaser an amount equal to the Downward Adjustment Amount within
five (5) Business Days from the date on which the Final Working Capital is finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.6.

(e) Upward Adjustment. If Final Working Capital (as finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.6) is greater than the Working Capital
Estimate, then the Purchase Price will be adjusted upward by the amount of such excess (the “Upward Adjustment Amount”), and Purchaser shall pay
to the Seller Representative, on behalf of the Sellers, an amount equal to the Upward Adjustment Amount within five (5) Business Days from the date
on which the Final Working Capital is finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.6.

(f) No Adjustment. If the Final Working Capital (as finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.6) is equal to the Working Capital Estimate, then
there shall be no adjustment to the Purchase Price pursuant to this Section 1.6.

1.7 Earn-out Payments. The Purchaser shall, subject to the terms and conditions set forth on Schedule 1.7, pay the Sellers the Earn-out Payments (as
defined on Schedule 1.7), if any.

1.8 EBITDA Adjustment. The Base Price shall be reduced, if applicable, subject to the terms and conditions set forth on Schedule 1.8.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF EACH SELLER

Each Seller, severally, and not jointly and severally, represents and warrants to Purchaser with respect to itself only, that:

2.1 Capacity of the Sellers. Such Seller has all requisite legal right and capacity to enter into this Agreement and each other agreement contemplated by
this Agreement to be entered into by such Seller at Closing and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

2.2 Authorization of Transaction. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by such Seller, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
legally binding obligation of such Seller, enforceable against such Seller in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that such enforceability may be
subject to, and limited by, applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, receivership and similar laws affecting the enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally, and general equitable principles.

2.3 No Violation; Consents and Approvals. The execution and delivery by such Seller of this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated by this
Agreement to be entered into by such Seller at Closing do not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and compliance
with the terms hereof and thereof will not (a) conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both,
would constitute a default) under (i) any Order applicable to such Seller or the property or assets of such Seller, (ii) any Applicable Law applicable to such
Seller or the property or assets of such Seller, or (iii) its Fundamental Documents or (b) give rise to any right of termination, cancellation or acceleration
under, or result in the creation of any Lien (other than Permitted
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Liens) upon any of the properties of such Seller under, any material contract to which such Seller is a party or by which such Seller or any assets of such
Seller may be bound; provided that no representation or warranty is made in the foregoing clauses (a)(i), (a)(ii), or (b) with respect to matters that,
individually or in the aggregate, would not materially impair or delay such Seller’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. No
Governmental Approval of any Governmental Authority is required to be obtained or made by or with respect to such Seller in connection with the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby except as may be necessary as a result of any facts or circumstances relating to Purchaser and its
Affiliates.

2.4 Ownership of Securities. Such Seller is the record and beneficial owner of the Securities set forth opposite such Seller’s name on Schedule 3.3
hereto, which Securities will be free and clear of all Liens as of the Closing, other than Permitted Liens and Liens arising under applicable federal, state and
local securities laws.

2.5 Litigation. There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the actual knowledge of such Seller, actions, suits or proceedings threatened
against or affecting such Seller or its respective assets, at Law or in equity, by or before any Governmental Authority, or by or on behalf of any third party,
that are reasonably likely to impair such Seller’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

2.6 Brokers. Except for Petsky Prunier LLC, no broker, finder or financial advisor or other Person is entitled to any brokerage fees, commissions,
finders’ fees or financial advisory fees in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby by reason of any action taken by such Seller or any of its
respective partners, directors, officers, employees, representatives or agents.

2.7 Securities Law Compliance. Such Seller hereby represents and warrants that such Seller is an “accredited investor” as such term is defined in Rule
501 of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and is receiving the Restricted Stock for such Seller’s own account, for investment purposes only,
and has no current arrangements or understandings for the resale or distribution thereof to others, except as contemplated under this Agreement and pursuant
to Applicable Law. Such Seller acknowledges that the offer and sale of the Restricted Stock has not been registered under the Securities Act or the securities
laws of any state or other jurisdiction, and that the Restricted Stock is being offered and sold pursuant to an exemption from registration contained in the
Securities Act and cannot be disposed of unless the Restricted Stock is subsequently registered under the Securities Act and any applicable state laws or an
exemption from such registration is available. Such Seller agrees that Holdings may impose such further restrictions on the Restricted Stock as are deemed
advisable by Holdings, including, without limitation, restrictions relating to listing or trading requirements. Such Seller further agrees that the Restricted
Stock may bear such legends and statements as Holdings shall deem appropriate or advisable to ensure compliance with applicable securities laws, rules and
regulations.
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ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE TARGET COMPANIES

Except as set forth on the disclosure schedule delivered by the Target Companies to Purchaser simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement and
as supplemented pursuant to Section 5.8 (the “Disclosure Schedule”), the Target Companies represent and warrant to Purchaser as follows:

3.1 Organization; Good Standing; Qualification and Power. Each of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary is duly organized, validly existing and in
good standing under the laws of its state of formation. Each Target Company has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and each other
agreement contemplated by this Agreement to be entered into by such Target Company at Closing (collectively, the “Target Company Agreements”) and to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, to own, lease and operate its properties and to conduct its business. Each of the Target
Companies and the Subsidiary is duly qualified or licensed to do business as a foreign limited liability company and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in
which the property owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure
to obtain such qualification or license would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.

3.2 Authority of the Company. This Agreement has been, and each other Target Company Agreement will be, duly authorized by all necessary limited
liability company power or other action of each Target Company, as applicable, and this Agreement has been, and each other Target Company Agreement will
be, duly executed and delivered by each Target Company, as applicable, and constitutes or will constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of each such
Target Company, enforceable against each such Target Company in accordance with its terms, except to the extent such enforceability may be subject to, and
limited by, applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, receivership and similar Laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally, and general equitable principles.

3.3 Capitalization. Schedule 3.3(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the issued and outstanding equity securities of each Target Company. All of the
issued and outstanding equity securities were duly authorized for issuance and are validly issued. Other than as set forth on Schedule 3.3(b) of the Disclosure
Schedule, the Securities and except as set forth in the Operating Agreement of RPM dated as of March 19, 2001, as amended by the First Amendment to the
Operating Agreement of RPM dated February 19, 2004, and the Operating Agreement of RDS dated as of January 1, 2011, there are no membership interests
or other equity securities of the Target Companies issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding and no outstanding options, warrants, convertible or
exchangeable securities, subscriptions, rights (including any preemptive rights), stock or unit appreciation rights, calls, partnership or limited liability
company interests or other equity interests or commitments of any character whatsoever to which any Target Company is a party or may be bound requiring
the issuance or sale of any equity interest of any Target Company.

3.4 Subsidiaries. Schedule 3.4 of the Disclosure Schedule lists the issued and outstanding equity securities of the Subsidiary. All of the issued and
outstanding equity securities of the Subsidiary were duly authorized for issuance and are validly issued and are owned by RPM, free and clear of any Liens,
other than restrictions under federal or state securities laws. There are no membership interests or other equity securities of the Subsidiary
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issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding and no outstanding options, warrants, convertible or exchangeable securities, subscriptions, rights (including any
preemptive rights), stock or unit appreciation rights, calls, partnership or limited liability company interests or other equity interests or commitments of any
character whatsoever to which the Subsidiary is a party or may be bound requiring the issuance or sale of any equity interest of the Subsidiary. Except for the
Subsidiary, neither Target Company has any direct or indirect subsidiaries.

3.5 No Violation; Consents and Approvals. The execution and delivery by each Target Company of this Agreement do not, and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and compliance with the terms hereof will not (a) conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (or an event
which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under (i) the Fundamental Documents of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary,
(ii) any Order applicable to the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or the property or assets of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or (iii) any Law
applicable to the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or the property or assets of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or (b) give rise to any right of
termination, cancellation or acceleration under, or result in the creation of any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) upon any of the properties of the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary under, any Material Contract to which any Target Company or the Subsidiary is a party or by which the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary or any assets of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary may be bound. No Governmental Approval of any Governmental Authority is required to
be obtained or made by or with respect to the Target Companies in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, except as may
be necessary as a result of any facts or circumstances relating to Purchaser and its Affiliates, and no authorizations, consents, or approvals from any third
parties are required, other than those set forth on Schedule 3.5 of the Disclosure Schedule and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will
not trigger any termination provisions under any Material Contracts other than as set forth on Schedule 3.5.

3.6 Financial Statements.

(a) The Target Companies have heretofore delivered to Purchaser copies of (i) the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Target Companies as
of December 31, 2013 (the “Balance Sheet”) and the related audited consolidated statements of income, changes in members’ equity and cash flows for
the fiscal year then ended (collectively, the “Audited Financial Statements”), and (ii) an unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Target Company
and the Subsidiary as of December 31, 2014 (the “Latest Balance Sheet Date”) and the related unaudited consolidated statements of income and cash
flows for the twelve months then ended (collectively, the “Interim Financial Statements” attached as Schedule 3.6 hereto and, together with the Audited
Financial Statements, the “Financial Statements”). The Financial Statements (i) have been prepared from the books and records of the Target
Companies and the Subsidiary, (ii) fairly present, in all material respects, the consolidated financial condition and the results of income and cash flows
of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary as of the dates and for the periods indicated, and (iii) have been prepared consistent with past practice and
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) applied consistently throughout the periods covered thereby, in each case
subject, with respect to the Interim Financial Statements, to year-end adjustments and the absence of notes. The Interim Financial Statements have been
prepared consistently in all material respects with the Audited Financial Statements.
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(b) Neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary has, as of the Latest Balance Sheet Date, and none of them has incurred since the Latest Balance
Sheet Date to the date of this Agreement, any liability or obligation required under GAAP to be reflected in the Target Companies’ financial statements
(or the notes thereto) except such liabilities or obligations (i) as are reserved against or reflected in the Financial Statements (assuming for purposes
hereof that the Financial Statements reflect, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary (taken as a
whole)), (ii) incurred in the ordinary course of business since the Latest Balance Sheet Date, (iii) disclosed in this Agreement (or its exhibits or
schedules), (iv) which were incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby or permitted by the terms hereof or (v) that would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(c) The accounts receivable reflected on the Interim Financial Statements and the accounts receivable arising after the date thereof (i) have arisen
from bona fide transactions, in all material respects, entered into by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary involving the sale of goods or the rendering
of services in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (ii) constitute valid, undisputed claims of the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary not subject to claims of set-off or other defenses or counterclaims, other than normal cash discounts accrued in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice; and (iii) subject to a reserve for bad debts shown on the Interim Financial Statements or, with respect to accounts
receivable arising after the date of the Interim Financial Statements, on the accounting records of the Target Companies, the accounts receivable with
respect to (i)(A) Amica Mutual Life Insurance Company and Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company are 100% collectible within
ninety (90) days after billing and (i)(B) the remaining accounts receivable are 95% collectible within ninety (90) days after billing. The reserve for bad
debts shown on the Interim Financial Statements or, with respect to accounts receivable arising after the date of the Interim Financial Statements, on the
accounting records of the Target Companies have been determined in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied, subject to normal year-end
adjustments and the absence of disclosures normally made in footnotes.

3.7 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as contemplated by this Agreement, during the period from the Latest Balance Sheet Date to the date
of this Agreement, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary have operated their businesses in all respects in the ordinary course of business, consistent with
past practice. Since the Latest Balance Sheet Date there has been no: (a) change in the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, taken as a whole, that has had, or
could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect; (b) split, combination or reclassification of any shares of their capital stock; (c) redemption,
purchase or acquisition of their capital stock; (d) change in their cash management practices and its policies, practices and procedures with respect to
collection of accounts receivable, establishment of reserves for uncollectible accounts, accrual of accounts receivable, inventory control, prepayment of
expenses, payment of trade accounts payable, accrual of other expenses, deferral of revenue and acceptance of customer deposits; (e) entry into any
agreement that would constitute a Material Contract, other than in the ordinary course of business; (f) transfer,
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assignment or grant of any license or sublicense of any rights under or with respect to any Intellectual Property owned by either Target Company or the
Subsidiary; (g) material damage, destruction or loss (whether or not covered by insurance) to their property; (h) acceleration, termination, modification to or
cancellation of any Material Contract; (i) material capital expenditure, other than as contemplated by any business plan or forecast; (j) imposition of any
Encumbrance upon any of their material properties, capital stock or assets, tangible or intangible; (k) loan to (or forgiveness of any loan to), or entry into any
other material transaction with, any of its stockholders or current or former directors, officers and employees, other than in the ordinary course of business;
(l) entry into a new line of business or abandonment or discontinuance of existing lines of business; (m) action by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to
make, change or rescind any Tax election, amend any Tax Return, adopt or change any accounting method or period in respect of Taxes, enter into any Tax-
sharing, allocation, compensation or like agreement, settle any claim or assessment in respect of Taxes, request any Tax ruling or consent to any extension or
waiver of the limitation period applicable to any claim or assessment in respect of Taxes or take any position on any Tax Return, take any action, omit to take
any action or enter into any other transaction that would have the effect of increasing the Tax liability or reducing any Tax asset of Purchaser in respect of any
taxable period that ends after the Closing Date, or omit to take any action relating to the filing of any Tax Return or the payment of any Tax; (n) incur, assume
or guarantee any indebtedness for borrowed money, other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice or pursuant to that certain
Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2011, between RPM and TD Bank, N.A.; (o) issue, sell, deliver, redeem or purchase any of its equity
securities, or grant or enter into any options, warrants, rights, agreements or commitments with respect to the issuance of its securities, or amend any terms of
any such equity securities or agreements; (p) increase the rate of compensation or benefits of, or pay, agree to pay or accelerate any benefit (including
severance pay) to, any present or former members, managers, directors, officers or employees, except as may be required by any existing Company Benefit
Plan, or any agreement, policy, program or arrangement, or to employees in the ordinary course of business of such Target Company or the Subsidiary;
(q) enter into, adopt, terminate or amend any Company Benefit Plan, employment or severance agreement or any plan, agreement, program, policy, trust, fund
or other arrangement that would be a Company Benefit Plan if it were in existence as of the date of this Agreement; (r) suffered any strike, work stoppage,
slow-down or other labor disturbance, or hired, terminated, promoted or demoted any employee, consultant, independent contractor, executive officer,
director or other service provider, other than in the ordinary course of business; (s) sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any material capital assets, real,
personal or mixed, or mortgage or encumber any properties or assets, whether real or personal, other than (i) in the ordinary course of business or (ii) a sale,
transfer or disposition to a third party for fair market value; (t) acquire or agree to acquire by merging or consolidating with, or by purchasing the stock or a
substantial portion of the assets of, or by any other manner, any business or any corporation, partnership, association or other business organization or division
thereof or otherwise acquire or agree to acquire any assets, other than (i) in the ordinary course of business or (ii) in connection with the purchase of capital
equipment; (u) effectuate a “plant closing” or “mass layoff” (as those terms are defined under the WARN Act) affecting in whole or in part any “site of
employment” (as such term is defined under the WARN Act) of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary; (v) amend its Fundamental Documents; (w) change
any of its accounting principles, methods or practices other than as required by GAAP; or (x) agree, whether in writing or otherwise, to do any of the
foregoing.
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3.8 Personal Property.

(a) Except as may be reflected in, reserved against, or otherwise described in the Financial Statements, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary
have good and valid title to all items of personal property necessary to conduct the business as currently conducted, whether tangible or intangible,
owned by them, and a valid and enforceable right to use all tangible items of personal property necessary to conduct the business as currently
conducted leased by or licensed to them (collectively, the “Personal Property”), in each case, free and clear of all Liens, other than Permitted Liens.

(b) All Personal Property necessary for the operation or conduct of the businesses of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary as conducted on
the date hereof are in the aggregate in adequate operating condition and repair, normal wear and tear excepted, other than machinery and equipment
under repair or out of service in the ordinary course of business.

3.9 Real Property.

(a) Neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary owns any real property.

(b) Schedule 3.9(b) (i) lists each written lease to which a Target Company or the Subsidiary is a party and lease interests in real property,
including any capital leases and any operating leases (each, a “Real Property Lease”), and (ii) identifies real property locations not otherwise identified
pursuant to the foregoing subclause (i) where a Target Company operates without a written agreement (the real property and interests in real property
identified in this sentence, the “Real Property”). The Real Property constitutes all parcels of real property and interests in real property used in the
conduct of the businesses of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary.

(c) Neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary has received a written notice of any pending condemnation proceedings or eminent domain
proceedings of any kind against the Real Property.

3.10 Intellectual Property.

(a) Schedule 3.10(a) sets forth a complete and accurate list of all (i) Intellectual Property owned by the Target Companies and the Subsidiary and
(ii) Intellectual Property licensed by (other than commercial off-the-shelf Software (including Software offered as a service) with an annual license fee
less than $10,000) any Target Company or the Subsidiary for use in its business (the “Company Intellectual Property”), specifying as to each such item
of Company Intellectual Property that is owned by a Target Company or the Subsidiary, as applicable: (A) the nature of the item, including the title;
(B) the owner of the item; (C) the jurisdictions in which the item is issued or registered or in which an application for issuance or registration has been
filed; and (D) the issuance, registration or application numbers, filing dates and expiration dates. Complete copies of each scheduled license have been
made available to Purchaser.
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(b) The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not impair any right to use any Company Intellectual Property as
it is currently used by the Target Companies and the Subsidiary. The Target Companies or the Subsidiary owns and has good and marketable title to, or
possesses sufficient and legally enforceable rights to use, each item of Company Intellectual Property, free and clear of all Liens, other than Permitted
Liens. All registered Marks, issued Patents, and registered Copyrights owned by any Target Company or the Subsidiary are to the Company’s
Knowledge, valid, subsisting and enforceable. All registration, maintenance and renewal fees currently due in connection with registered Company
Intellectual Property owned by any of the Target Company or the Subsidiary have been made and all necessary documents, assignments, recordations
and certifications in connection with such registered Intellectual Property have been filed with the relevant patent, copyright, trademark or other
authorities in the United States or foreign jurisdictions, as the case may be, for the purpose of maintaining such registrations.

(c) No claims have been asserted in writing by a Person, or to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened by any Person, with respect to the
ownership or use by any Target Company or the Subsidiary of the Company Intellectual Property. To the Company’s Knowledge, no Person has or is
infringing on, diluting, violating, or misappropriating any Company Intellectual Property owned by any Target Company or the Subsidiary.

(d) Each Target Company and the Subsidiary have developed all Software owned or purported to be owned by a Target Company or the
Subsidiary (the “Company Software”) through its own efforts or its contractors and for its own account. No source code of any Company Software has
been licensed or otherwise provided to another Person, except as disclosed to a third party under a confidentiality agreement with Seller, and all such
source code at all times has been safeguarded and maintained in confidence. Seller’s current use of the Company Software, including the license of the
Company Software to customers and other third parties, does not breach any term of any license or other contract between Seller and any third party.
Except as disclosed on Schedule 3.10(d), the Company Software does not incorporate open source software code or standards or any source code or
standards developed or owned by any third party. None of the products sold or distributed by either Target Company or the Subsidiary contain any code
that is licensed pursuant to the provisions of any open source license agreement or any other license agreement that requires that source code be
distributed or made available in connection with the distribution of the licensed software in object code or that limits the amount of fees that may be
charged in connection with the sublicensing or distributing of such licensed software. The Company Software is free of any disabling codes or
instructions, and any virus or other intentionally created, undocumented, contaminant, that is intended to be used to access, modify, delete, damage or
disable any of the computer systems of any the Target Company or the Subsidiary. There are no programming defects, errors, or bugs in the Company
Software which results in substantial or material noncompliance with, or deviations from, the Company Software description and specifications, if any,
excluding any current ongoing or incomplete unreleased products identified as such on Schedule 3.10(d) of the Disclosure Schedule. Each Target
Company and the Subsidiary are in material compliance with the terms and conditions of all license agreements in favor of such Target Company or the
Subsidiary relating to such licensed Software.
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(e) The Company Intellectual Property owned by any Target Company or the Subsidiary was: (i) created or developed by employees of a Target
Company or the Subsidiary working within the scope of their employment at the time of such development, all of whom are and were obligated to
assign and did assign all rights to a Target Company or the Subsidiary, or (ii) created or developed by agents, consultants, contractors or other Persons
who have executed appropriate instruments of assignment in favor of a Target Company or the Subsidiary as assignee that have conveyed to a Target
Company or the Subsidiary ownership of all of such party’s respective Intellectual Property rights in such Company Intellectual Property. To the
Company’s Knowledge, no third party possesses any right, title or interest in the Company Software or any Company Intellectual Property owned by a
Target Company or the Subsidiary (other than nonexclusive licenses granted by a Target Company or the Subsidiary in the ordinary course of business)
and the Target Companies and the Subsidiary have not received written notice from any third party claiming any such right, title or interest.

3.11 Litigation. As of the date hereof, there are no actions, suits or proceedings pending, or, to the Company’s Knowledge, actions, suits or proceedings
threatened in writing against the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or their respective assets, at law or in equity, by or before any Governmental Authority, or
by or on behalf of any third party. The Target Companies have not received any written notice that the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or any of their
respective assets is subject to any Order.

3.12 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Schedule 3.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete list of all “employee benefit plans” (as that term is defined in Section 3(3)
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)), whether or not subject to ERISA, other than a multiemployer plan
(as defined in Section 3(37) of ERISA) as well as any bonus, severance, employment, consulting, retention, change in control, health or welfare,
pension, profit-sharing, retirement, stock option or other equity or equity-based and deferred, incentive compensation, fringe benefit plan, program,
agreement or arrangement (whether written or unwritten), under which either Target Company or the Subsidiary has any material present or future
obligations or material liability on behalf of any current or former employee of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or the dependents or
beneficiaries of such employees (all of the foregoing being referred to in this Agreement as the “Company Benefit Plans”).

(b) Each Company Benefit Plan has been operated and administered in material compliance with its terms, ERISA and the Code and any other
Applicable Law. Neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, any other “disqualified person” or “party in interest”
(as defined in Section 4975 of the Code and Section 3(14) of ERISA, respectively) with respect to a Company Benefit Plan has breached the fiduciary
rules of ERISA or engaged in a prohibited transaction that could subject the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to a material Tax or penalty imposed
under Section 4975 of the Code or Sections 502(i), (j) or (l) of ERISA.
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(c) Except as required under Section 4980B of the Code, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary do not have any obligation to provide health
benefits to any employee following termination of employment.

(d) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have made available to Purchaser or to Purchaser’s counsel true and complete copies of the
following documents relating to the Company Benefit Plans, to the extent applicable: (i) all Company Benefit Plan documents; (ii) all summary plan
descriptions and summaries of material modifications with respect to each Company Benefit Plan, (iii) the Form 5500 filed for each of the two most
recent plan years for each Company Benefit Plan for which a Form 5500 is required to be filed; (iv) any related trust agreements, insurance contracts or
documents of any other funding arrangements; (v) all amendments, modifications or supplements to any such document; (vi) the two most recent
actuarial reports; (vii) the most recent determination or opinion letter from the IRS; and (vii) any notices to or from the IRS or any office or
representative of the U.S. Department of Labor or any other Governmental Authority relating to any material compliance issues in respect of any such
Company Benefit Plan received within the past six (6) years.

(e) Neither the Target Companies, the Subsidiary nor any ERISA Affiliate of either does or has ever sponsored, maintained, contributed to, had
any obligation to make contributions to, incurred any liability or may incur any liability to any Company Benefit Plan or other employee benefit plan,
program, agreement or arrangement that: (i) is or was subject to the minimum funding standards set forth in Sections 302, 303, 304, or 305 of ERISA
and Section 412, 430, 431, 432, and 436 of the Code, including any “defined benefit plan” (as defined by Section 3(35) of ERISA) or any
“multiemployer plan” (as defined by Section 3(37) of ERISA) or (ii) is or was an employee benefit plan or arrangement that is governed by the laws of
any government outside of the United States.

(f) No claim, lawsuit, arbitration or other action is pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened, with respect to any of the Company
Benefit Plans (including claims, lawsuits, arbitrations or other actions with respect to fiduciaries, trustees or other individuals or entities, in each case,
who are employed by or affiliated with the Target Companies, based on their service to such plans) or the assets thereof (other than routine claims for
benefits and appeals of such claims), and no Company Benefit Plan is under, and the Target Companies (including the Subsidiary or any ERISA
Affiliate thereof) have not, within the past six (6) years, received any notice of, an audit or investigation by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), U.S.
Department of Labor or any other Governmental Authority and no such completed audit, if any, has resulted in the imposition of any material Tax or
penalty.

(g) Each Company Benefit Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code has received a favorable determination or
opinion letter from the IRS, and to the Company’s Knowledge, there are no circumstances that would reasonably be expected to result in revocation of
any such favorable determination letter. Each trust created under any Company Benefit Plan has been determined to be exempt from taxation under
Section 501(a) of the Code, and Target Companies and the Subsidiary are not aware of any circumstance that would reasonably be expected to result in
a revocation of such exemption. With respect to each Company Benefit Plan, no event has occurred or condition exists that would reasonably be
expected to give rise to a loss of any intended tax consequence or to any Tax under Section 511 of the Code.
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(h) Neither the execution or delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will, either
alone or in conjunction with any other event, (i) result in any payment or benefit becoming due or payable, or required to be provided, to any current,
former or retired director, executive officer, employee, consultant, independent contractor or other service provider of the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary or ERISA Affiliates (except as set forth in Section 5.20); (ii) increase the amount or value of any benefit or compensation otherwise payable
or required to be provided to any such director, employee or independent contractor; (iii) result in the acceleration of the time of payment, vesting or
funding of any such benefit or compensation; (iv) result in any amount failing to be deductible by reason of Section 280G of the Code or be subject to
the sanctions imposed under Section 4999 of the Code; (v) require the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to create any new employee benefit plan,
program, agreement or arrangement; or (vi) conflict with the terms of any Company Benefit Plan.

(i) Each Company Benefit Plan that is a “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (as defined in Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code), including
each award thereunder, has been maintained and operated in documentary and operational compliance in all material respects with the applicable
provisions of Section 409A of the Code and the Treasury Regulations and other official guidance issued thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”).
Neither the Target Companies nor the Subsidiary have any indemnity or gross-up obligation for any Taxes or interest imposed or accelerated under
Section 409A.

3.13 Taxes.

(a) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have timely filed (after giving effect to applicable extensions) with the appropriate Governmental
Authority all material Tax Returns required to be filed by or with respect to the Target Companies and/or the Subsidiary, on or prior to the Closing
Date, and such Tax Returns (as relating to the Taxes shown as due and payable on such Tax Return) were true, correct and complete in all material
respects when filed and prepared and filed in accordance with Applicable Laws. True, correct and complete copies of all income Tax returns of the
Target Companies and the Subsidiary filed since December 31, 2010 have been made available to Purchaser.

(b) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have timely paid all material Taxes of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary that are due and
payable.

(c) No waivers or extensions of statutes of limitation have been given or requested with respect to the Target Companies or the Subsidiary in
connection with any Tax Returns covering the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or with respect to any Taxes payable by them.

(d) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have or have caused to be duly and timely withheld or collected all material Taxes required by
Applicable Laws to have been withheld or collected, including sales and use Taxes and amounts required to be withheld
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or collected in connection with payments to their employees, agents and contractors and to nonresidents, and have paid over to the appropriate
Governmental Authority all amounts so withheld or collected.

(e) There are no Liens with respect to Taxes, other than Permitted Liens, upon any assets of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary.

(f) No audits for Taxes are in progress or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened in writing with regard to any Tax Return of the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary.

(g) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary are and have at all times since their respective dates of formation been treated as either a
partnership or disregarded entity for U.S. federal income Tax purposes.

(h) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary will not be required to include any amount in taxable income or exclude any item of deduction or
loss from taxable income for any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date as a result of (i) any change in method of accounting
for a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, including any change in accounting method or Code Section 481 adjustments required by
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) any “closing agreement” as described in Section 7121 of the Code (or any
corresponding or similar provision of state, local or non-U.S. income Tax Law) executed on or prior to the Closing Date, (iii) any deferred
intercompany gain or excess loss account described in Treasury Regulations under Section 1502 of the Code (or any corresponding or similar provision
or administrative rule of federal, state, local or non-U.S. income Tax Law), (iv) any installment sale or open transaction disposition made on or prior to
the Closing Date, (v) any prepaid amount received on or prior to the Closing Date, or (vi) any election under Section 108(i) of the Code.

(i) None of the assets of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary (i) constitutes “tax-exempt use property” within the meaning of Section 168(h)
of the Code, (ii) is “tax-exempt bond financed property” within the meaning of Section 168(g) of the Code, (iii) is subject to a lease, safe harbor lease
or other arrangement as a result of which the Target Companies or the Subsidiary is not treated as the owner for U.S. federal income Tax purposes,
(iv) secures any debt the interest of which is tax-exempt under Section 103(a) of the Code, or (v) is subject to a “section 467 rental agreement” as
defined in Section 467 of the Code.

(j) In the past three (3) years, no Governmental Authority in a jurisdiction in which any Target Company or Subsidiary does not file Tax Returns
has asserted in writing that such Target Company or Subsidiary may be subject to Tax in such jurisdiction or is required to file such Tax Returns.

(k) Neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary is bound by or is currently subject to (i) any Tax allocation or Tax sharing agreement (or similar
agreement) or any other contract (other than pursuant to contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business that normally include Tax allocation or
sharing provisions, such as leases, credit agreements, and licenses), or (ii) any potential obligation to indemnify any other Person with respect to Taxes,
whether as a transferee or successor, by contract, or otherwise.
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(l) No Seller is a “foreign person” within the meaning of Sections 1445 and 7701 of the Code.

(m) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have not participated in any (i) “tax shelter” within the meaning of Section 6111 of the Code (as in
effect prior to the enactment of P.L. 108-357 or (ii) “reportable transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4 (as in effect at
the relevant time).

(n) Within the past five years, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary have not: (i) applied for a ruling concerning Taxes from any
Governmental Authority; (ii) entered into a closing agreement concerning Taxes with any Governmental Authority; or (iii) granted a power of attorney
with respect to any Tax matter that is outstanding or has any continuing effect.

(o) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary do not have and in the past five years have not had, a permanent establishment, as defined in any
applicable Tax treaty or convention, in any country other than the United States.

3.14 Contracts and Commitments.

(a) Schedule 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of all Material Contracts.

(b) Each Material Contract is valid and binding on the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, as applicable, and is in full force and effect. To the
Company’s Knowledge, each Material Contract is valid and binding on the counterparties thereto. As of the date hereof, with respect to all Material
Contracts, neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, any other party to any such Material Contract, is in material
breach thereof or default thereunder and there does not exist under any event thereof which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time, would
constitute such a material breach or default. Complete and correct copies of each Material Contract (including all modifications, amendments and
supplements thereto and waivers thereunder) have been made available to Purchaser.

(c) Schedule 3.14(c) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of all operating leases of equipment and all Real Property
Leases.

3.15 Compliance with Laws. Each of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary is in material compliance with all Applicable Laws and all Orders of,
and agreements with, any Governmental Authority applicable to the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, except for such non-compliance as would not,
individually or in the aggregate, result in a Material Adverse Effect. The Target Companies and the Subsidiary have all permits, certificates, licenses,
approvals and other authorizations required under Applicable Laws or necessary in connection with the conduct of their businesses.
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3.16 Labor Matters. The Target Companies and the Subsidiary are (a) in compliance, in all material respects, with all Applicable Laws regarding
employment and employment practices; (b) to the Company’s Knowledge, there is no unfair labor practice charge or complaint against a Target Company or
the Subsidiary pending before the National Labor Relations Board nor is there any grievance nor any arbitration proceeding arising out of or under collective
bargaining agreements pending with respect to the businesses of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary; (c) there is no labor strike, slowdown, work
stoppage or lockout in effect or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened against a Target Company or the Subsidiary; (d) there is no charge or complaint
pending against a Target Company or the Subsidiary before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs or any similar state, local or foreign agency; (e) neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary is a party to, or otherwise bound by, any consent decree
with, or citation by, any Governmental Authority relating to employees or employment practices; (f) the Target Companies and the Subsidiary will not have
any liability under any benefit or severance policy, practice, agreement, plan or program which exists or arise, or may be deemed to exist or arise, under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, as a result of the transactions contemplated hereunder; (g) neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary is a party to any
collective bargaining agreement; and (h) the Target Companies and the Subsidiary are in compliance with their respective obligations pursuant to the Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act of 1988 (“WARN Act”). Schedule 3.16 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of all
employees of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary as of the date hereof. Neither of the Target Companies nor the Subsidiary engage any independent
contractors or consultants. All employees of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary classified as exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act and state and
local wage and hour laws, if any, are properly classified.

3.17 Environmental Matters. (a) There are no Environmental Claims pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened against the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary, (b) the Target Companies and the Subsidiary are and have been in the past five years in compliance with all applicable
Environmental Laws, except for such non-compliance as would not result in a Material Adverse Effect, (c) the Target Companies and the Subsidiary have
obtained, and are and have been in the past five years in compliance with, all governmental environmental permits, registrations and authorizations required
under Environmental Laws for the operation of the businesses of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, except for such non-compliance as would not
result in a Material Adverse Effect, (d) no Hazardous Substance has been released, transported, stored, treated or disposed of by the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary on the real estate presently and formerly owned, operated or otherwise used by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary so as to give rise to a
Material Adverse Effect and (e) neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary has entered into, agreed to or is subject to any Order of any Governmental
Authority under any Environmental Laws.

3.18 Brokers. Except for Petsky Prunier LLC, no broker, finder or financial advisor or other Person is entitled to any brokerage fees, commissions,
finders’ fees or financial advisory fees in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby by reason of any action taken by the Target Companies or any
of their directors, officers, employees, representatives or agents.
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3.19 Insurance.

(a) Set forth in Schedule 3.19(a) is a list of all policies of property, fire and casualty, product liability, general liability, workers’ compensation
and other forms of insurance held by the Target Companies and the Subsidiary. Copies of such policies have been made available to Purchaser.

(b) (i) The policies listed in Schedule 3.19(a) are in full force and effect and, to the Company’s Knowledge, are free from any right of termination
on the part of the insurance carriers, (ii) all premiums and retained losses within deductibles or self-insured retentions due with respect thereto have
been paid or accrued, (iii) no written notice of termination or cancellation has been received by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary with respect to
any such policy, (iv) no written notice has been received by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary with respect to changes in any such policy that are
required in the conduct of the business of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary as a condition to the continuation of coverage under, or renewal of,
any such policy and (v) such policies, with respect to their amounts and types of coverage, are adequate to insure against risks to which the Target
Companies and the Subsidiary are normally exposed in the ordinary course of business.

3.20 Affiliate Transactions. There are no contracts between either Target Company or the Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any Seller or Affiliate of the
Sellers (other than the Target Companies), on the other hand.

3.21 Customers and Suppliers.

(a) Schedule 3.21(a) sets forth: (i) each of the top ten customers to the Target Companies and the Subsidiary for each of the two most recent fiscal
years (collectively, the “Material Customers”); and (ii) the amount of consideration paid by each Material Customer during such periods. Neither of the
Target Companies nor the Subsidiary has received any notice (written or verbal) that any of, and to the Company’s Knowledge, none of the Material
Customers have ceased, or intends to cease after the Closing, to use its goods or services or to otherwise terminate or materially reduce or alter its
relationship with the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, whether as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
or otherwise.

(b) Schedule 3.21(b) sets forth (i) each supplier to whom the Target Companies or the Subsidiary has paid consideration for goods or services
rendered in an amount greater than or equal to $250,000 for each of the two most recent fiscal years (collectively, the “Material Suppliers”); and (ii) the
amount of purchases from each Material Supplier during such periods. Neither of the Target Companies nor the Subsidiary has received any notice
(written or verbal) that any of, and to the Company’s Knowledge, none of the Material Suppliers have ceased, or intends to cease, to supply goods or
services to the Target Companies or the Subsidiary or to otherwise terminate or materially reduce or alter its relationship with the Target Companies or
the Subsidiary, whether as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise.
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3.22 Data Protection and Compliance.

(a) Schedule 3.22(a) lists the countries in which the database(s) containing Personal Data that are maintained or processed by or for the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary (the “Target Databases”) are stored, maintained, or accessed.

(b) There has been no “breach” relating to any of the Personal Data or other data or information in connection with the Target Databases, Target
IT Systems, or the business of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, as “breach” or terms of similar import are defined by any applicable data breach
notification laws (a “Data Breach”), and no claim of a Data Breach has been communicated to or identified by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary,
and there is no basis for any claims relating to a Data Breach.

(c) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary (and their subcontractors, to the Company’s Knowledge) have developed, implemented, maintained
and used appropriate administrative, organizational, technical and physical safeguards, procedures and training relating to the business of Target
Companies and the Subsidiary as set forth in the Target Privacy and Security Policy. Such safeguards of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary (and
their subcontractors, to the Company’s Knowledge) (i) meet all applicable requirements imposed by any applicable contract with a client or licensor of
the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, all requirements relating to the implementation, maintenance and certification of
such safeguards and (ii) have been audited by an independent third party reviewer using currently accepted standards; except, in the case of either (i) or
(ii), where the applicable client, licensor or prospect has agreed in writing to conduct its own audit or assessment in lieu of such requirements or third
party certification.

(d) The Target Companies and the Subsidiary own or have a valid right to use all Target IT Systems and all use of Target IT Systems is within the
scope of any applicable third party licenses or other agreements. The Target IT Systems are sufficient for the business of the Target Companies and
Subsidiary as currently conducted, including without limitation any obligations in client or licensor agreements, and do not contain any material
deficiencies and do not require any material upgrades in the twelve (12) months following the Closing. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.22(d), the
consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Agreement will not impair or interrupt the Target Companies or the Subsidiary from accessing
or using any Target IT Systems as the Target IT Systems are currently accessed and used by the Target Companies and the Subsidiary.

(e) Each counterparty to the Direct Mail Contracts is in compliance with all Laws applicable to the mailing and marketing activities conducted by
such counterparty for or on behalf of a Target Company or the Subsidiary, or it or their clients, including, but not limited to, CAN-SPAM and any other
Laws relating to consumer protection, disclosure or notice.

3.23 Full Disclosure. Sellers have not made any misstatement or omitted any material fact to the Purchaser, which misstatement or omission would,
individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.
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ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER

Purchaser represents and warrants to the Target Companies as follows:

4.1 Organization. Purchaser is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware. Purchaser has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the other agreements contemplated by this
Agreement to be entered into by Purchaser at Closing (collectively, the “Purchaser Agreements”) and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby.

4.2 Authority. This Agreement has been, and each other Purchaser Agreement will be, duly authorized by all necessary limited liability company power
or other action of Purchaser, and this Agreement has been, and each other Purchaser Agreement will be, duly executed and delivered by Purchaser, and
constitutes or will constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of Purchaser, enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with its terms, except to the
extent such enforceability may be subject to, and limited by, applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, receivership and similar laws
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, and general equitable principles.

4.3 No Violation; Consents and Approvals. The execution and delivery by Purchaser of this Agreement and the other Purchaser Agreements to which
Purchaser is a party do not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and compliance with the terms hereof and thereof will
not (a) conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under (i) any
provision of the Fundamental Documents of Purchaser, (ii) any Order applicable to Purchaser or the property or assets of Purchaser or (iii) any Applicable
Law applicable to Purchaser or the property or assets of Purchaser or (b) give rise to any right of termination, cancellation or acceleration under, or result in
the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties of Purchaser under, any material contract to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser or any
assets of Purchaser may be bound. No Governmental Approval of any Governmental Authority is required to be obtained or made by or with respect to
Purchaser in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

4.4 Litigation. As of the date hereof, there are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Purchaser, actions, suits or proceedings
threatened in writing against or affecting Purchaser or its assets, at law or in equity, by or before any Governmental Authority, or by or on behalf of any third
party, except those which, if adversely determined, would impair Purchaser’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Purchaser has not
received any written notice that Purchaser or any of its assets is subject to any material Order.

4.5 Funding. Purchaser has the necessary funding to meet all of its obligations under this Agreement and the other Purchaser Agreements, including,
without limitation, the Purchase Price, any adjustments thereto and all of its fees and expenses incurred in order to consummate the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.
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4.6 Investment Intent. Purchaser is acquiring the Securities for its own account and not with a view to their distribution within the meaning of
Section 2(11) of the Securities Act. Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to be capable of evaluating the merits
and risks of its investment in the Securities, and Purchaser is capable of bearing the economic risks of such investment, including a complete loss of its
investment in the Securities. Purchaser acknowledges that the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act, or any state securities laws, and
understands and agrees that it may not sell or dispose of any of the Securities except pursuant to a registered offering in compliance with, or in a transaction
exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and any other applicable state, foreign or federal securities laws.

4.7 Solvency.

(a) Immediately after giving effect to the acquisition of the Securities and the consummation of the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement (including the debt and equity financings, to the extent applicable, being entered into in connection therewith):

(i) the fair value (determined on a going concern basis) of the assets of Purchaser and its subsidiaries (including the Target Companies and
the Subsidiary) shall be greater than the total amount of their liabilities (including all liabilities, whether or not reflected in a balance sheet
prepared in accordance with GAAP, and whether direct or indirect, fixed or contingent, secured or unsecured, disputed or undisputed);

(ii) each of Purchaser, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary shall be able to pay their debts and obligations in the ordinary course of
business as they become due; and

(iii) each of Purchaser, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary shall have adequate capital to carry on their businesses and all businesses
in which they are about to engage.

(b) In completing the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, Purchaser does not intend to hinder, delay or defraud any present or future
creditors of Purchaser, the Target Companies or the Subsidiary.

4.8 Brokers. No broker, finder or financial advisor or other Person is entitled to any brokerage fees, commissions, finders’ fees or financial advisory
fees in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby by reason of any action taken by Purchaser or any of its partners, directors, officers, employees,
representatives or agents.

ARTICLE V
COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES

5.1 Conduct of the Company’s Business. Except (i) as contemplated by this Agreement or (ii) as required by Applicable Law, during the period from
the date hereof to the
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Closing Date, unless Purchaser otherwise consents in advance (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), each of the Target Companies
will, and will cause the Subsidiary to, conduct its business and operations in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, (i) except as contemplated by or necessary to effectuate this Agreement or (ii) as required by Applicable Law, during the period
from the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, without the prior written consent of Purchaser (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed), neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary will cause any of the changes, events or conditions described in Section 3.7 to occur.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Target Companies may (at their sole discretion) at any time or from time to
time prior to the Closing use any cash on hand for any purpose (including a distribution or dividend to the Sellers or any of their Affiliates), and such use shall
not in any circumstance result in an adjustment to the Purchase Price.

5.2 Access.

(a) During the period from the date of this Agreement through the Closing Date, the Target Companies shall give Purchaser and its agents and
authorized representatives (including prospective lenders) full and complete access to all offices, facilities, books and records, officers, employees and
advisors (including audit and tax working papers prepared by its independent accountants, provided that Purchaser will execute releases reasonably
requested by the independent accountants if requested to do so) of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary as Purchaser may reasonably request
during normal business hours; provided that neither Target Company nor the Subsidiary is under any obligation to disclose to Purchaser or any such
representative any information the disclosure of which is restricted by contract or Applicable Law or would be reasonably likely to compromise the
attorney-client privilege. Purchaser covenants that any investigation shall be conducted in such a manner as not to unreasonably disrupt the normal
operations of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary.

(b) From and after the Closing Date, (i) for any reasonable business purpose, (ii) to the extent necessary for the preparation of financial
statements, regulatory filings or Tax returns of the Sellers or their Affiliates, (iii) in connection with any legal proceeding or (iv) in connection with the
determination of any matter relating to the rights or obligations of the Sellers or any of their Affiliates under this Agreement or any of the Target
Company Agreements, Purchaser shall give the Sellers and their agents and authorized representatives reasonable access to all offices, facilities, books
and records, officers, employees and advisors of Purchaser as it relates to the Target Companies as any Seller may reasonably request (upon reasonable
prior notice) during normal business hours; provided that Purchaser is not under any obligation to disclose to the Sellers or any such representative any
information the disclosure of which is restricted by contract or Applicable Law or could compromise any applicable privilege (including the attorney-
client privilege). The Sellers covenant that any investigation shall be conducted in such a manner as not to unreasonably disrupt the normal operations
of Purchaser.
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(c) Any information provided to or obtained by Purchaser pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be deemed confidential information as described
in the agreement dated September 18, 2014 between Petsky Prunier LLC, as the authorized representative of the Target Companies, and Purchaser (the
“Confidentiality Agreement”), and shall be held by Purchaser in accordance with, and be subject to the terms of, the Confidentiality Agreement.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the terms and provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement shall survive the termination of this
Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof. In the event of the termination of this Agreement for any reason, Purchaser shall comply with the
terms and provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement, including returning or destroying all confidential information and the non-soliciting of
employees of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary.

5.3 Preservation of Records. The Sellers and Purchaser agree that each of them shall preserve and keep the records held by them or their Affiliates
relating to the respective businesses of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary for a period of seven (7) years from the Closing Date and shall make such
records and personnel available to the other as may be reasonably required by such party in connection with, among other things, any insurance claims by,
legal proceedings or Tax audits against or governmental investigations of the Sellers or Purchaser or any of their Affiliates or in order to enable the Sellers or
Purchaser to comply with their respective obligations under this Agreement and each other agreement, document or instrument contemplated hereby or
thereby. In the event the Sellers or Purchaser wishes to destroy such records after that time, such party shall first give ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to
the other and such other party shall have the right at its option and expense, upon prior written notice given to such party within that ninety (90)-day period, to
take possession of the records within one-hundred eighty (180) days after the date of such notice.

5.4 Commercially Reasonable Efforts. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each of the parties hereto will use its commercially
reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under Applicable Laws to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement at the earliest practicable date. Without limiting the foregoing, each party shall use its
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Closing to occur on March 1, 2015.

5.5 Consents. Without limiting the generality of Sections 5.4 and 5.7, each of the parties hereto will use its commercially reasonable efforts to (a) prior
to the Closing, obtain the consent set forth on Schedule 6.2(f) of the Disclosure Schedule and any authorizations, consents and approvals of any
Governmental Authorities necessary in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and (b) following the Closing,
obtain the authorizations, consents and approvals set forth on Schedule 5.5 of the Disclosure Schedule. Each of the parties hereto will make or cause to be
made all filings and submissions under Applicable Laws as may be required for the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The
parties hereto will coordinate and cooperate with each other in exchanging such information and assistance as any of the parties hereto may reasonably
request in connection with the foregoing.

5.6 Public Announcements. The parties hereto shall not issue any report, statement or press release or otherwise make any public statement with respect
to this Agreement and the
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transactions contemplated hereby without prior consultation with and approval of the other parties, except as may be required by Applicable Law, in which
case such party shall advise the other parties and discuss the contents of the disclosure before issuing any such report, statement or press release.

5.7 Filings and Authorizations; Consummation. Each party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to furnish to each other all information
required for any application or other filing to be made pursuant to any Applicable Law in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

5.8 Notice of Events.

(a) During the period from the date hereof to the Closing Date or the earlier termination of this Agreement, Purchaser shall promptly notify the
Target Companies in writing if Purchaser becomes aware of (i) the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or the existence of any fact or condition
that would cause or constitute a breach of any of its representations or warranties had any such representation or warranty been made as of the time of
Purchaser’s discovery of such event, fact or condition and (ii) any material failure on its part to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or
agreement to be complied with or satisfied by it hereunder.

(b) During the period from the date hereof to the Closing Date or the earlier termination of this Agreement, the Seller Representative shall
promptly notify Purchaser in writing if the Target Companies or any Seller becomes aware of (i) the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or the
existence of any fact or condition that would cause or constitute a breach of any of the Target Companies’ or any Seller’s representations or warranties
contained herein had such representation or warranty been made as of the time of the discovery of such event, fact or condition and (ii) any material
failure on the part of the Target Companies or any Seller to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or
satisfied by it hereunder. If any such event, fact or condition should arise (A) during the period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the
Closing Date, and (B) that would require a change to the Disclosure Schedule, then the Seller Representative shall promptly deliver to Purchaser a
supplement to the Disclosure Schedule specifying such change. Any such supplement to the Disclosure Schedule shall cure any such misrepresentation,
breach or non-compliance of any representation, warranty or covenant that otherwise exists hereunder, and, from and after the Closing Date, no
Purchaser Indemnitee shall have the right to seek indemnification for any Damages arising from or relating to any such events, facts or conditions. For
the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Section 5.8 shall limit Purchaser’s ability to claim that a Material Adverse Effect has occurred pursuant to
Section 6.2(a).

5.9 Exculpation, Etc.

(a) After the Closing, the Target Companies shall exculpate (to the greatest extent permitted by applicable Law) and shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless, each of the members, managers, officers and controlling Persons of the Target Companies (each of them acting in such capacity at or
prior to the Closing) against all Damages with respect to all acts and omissions by them, or arising out of any violations or alleged violations of the
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fiduciary duty of care to the Target Companies (excluding willful misconduct), as the case may be, in their capacities as members, managers, officers or
controlling Persons of the Target Companies, as the case may be, occurring at or prior to the Closing to the extent such persons had the right to be
exculpated by the Target Companies prior to the Closing. Purchaser agrees that all rights of such Persons to indemnification and exculpation from
liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Closing Date if and as provided in the respective Fundamental Documents of the Target
Companies are now in effect, and along with any other indemnification agreements or arrangements of the Target Companies shall survive the Closing
Date and shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms.

(b) For a period of at least six (6) years commencing from the Closing Date, the Target Companies shall maintain officers’ and directors’ liability
insurance covering the Persons who are, as of and prior to the Closing Date, covered by the Target Companies’ officers’ and directors’ liability
insurance policies with respect to actions and omissions occurring prior to and on the Closing Date, on terms which are no less favorable to such
Persons than the terms of such current insurance in effect for the Target Companies prior to the Closing, and such insurance shall name such Persons as
“loss payees”. The cost of such insurance required pursuant to this Section 5.9(b) shall not exceed 150% of the current amount and shall be borne
equally by each of Purchaser and the Sellers. In the event that any Person is or would have been entitled to coverage under an officers’ and directors’
liability insurance policy pursuant to this Section 5.9(b) and such policy has lapsed, not been purchased, terminated or is otherwise in breach or default
or affords lesser coverage than is required by this Section 5.9(b) as a result of the Target Companies’ failure to maintain and fulfill their obligations
pursuant to this Section or for any other reason, Purchaser and the Target Companies, jointly and severally, on the one hand, and the Sellers, jointly and
severally, on the other hand, shall pay to such Persons one half of such amounts and provide any other coverage or benefits as such Persons would have
received pursuant to such policy.

(c) In the event the Target Companies or any of their respective subsidiaries, successors or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other
Person and is not the continuing or surviving entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers all or substantially all of its properties and assets to
any Person, Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Target Companies to, ensure that proper provisions shall be made so that the successors and assigns of
the Target Companies or their respective subsidiaries (as applicable) assume the obligations set forth in this Section 5.9.

(d) The provisions of this Section 5.9 are intended to be for the benefit of, and will be enforceable by, each such Person entitled to
indemnification, his or her heirs and his or her representatives. The obligations of Purchaser and the Target Companies under this Section 5.9 shall not
be terminated or modified in such a manner as to adversely affect any indemnitee to whom this Section 5.9 applies without the express written consent
of such affected indemnitee.
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5.10 Tax Covenants.

(a) Tax Returns.

(i) The Sellers shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, and shall timely file, or cause to be filed, (1) all Tax Returns of the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary due (after taking into account all appropriate extensions) on or prior to the Closing Date and (2) the IRS Form 1065 (and any
comparable state and local Tax Returns and related K-1s) for each Target Company for any Pre-Closing Tax Period, whether to be filed before, on or after the
Closing Date (collectively with those set forth in clause (1), the “Seller Prepared Returns”). Seller Prepared Returns shall be prepared on a basis consistent
with existing procedures and practices and accounting methods to the extent a change could have an adverse Tax impact on Purchaser or on the Target
Company or the Subsidiary for any period (or portion of a Straddle Period) beginning after the Closing Date. At least ten (10) days prior to the due date of
any Seller Prepared Return that needs to filed after the Closing Date and signed by an officer of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary, the Seller
Representative shall submit such Seller Prepared Return to Purchaser, and Purchaser shall cause the applicable Target Company or the Subsidiary to sign and
timely file the Seller Prepared Return in the form submitted by the Seller Representative.

(ii) Purchaser, at its sole cost and expense, shall cause the Target Companies and the Subsidiary to prepare and timely file all Tax Returns
(other than Seller Prepared Returns) due after the Closing Date (after taking into account appropriate extensions) (the “Purchaser Prepared Returns”). To the
extent that a Purchaser Prepared Return relates to a Pre-Closing Tax Period or a Straddle Period, such Tax Return shall be prepared on a basis consistent with
existing procedures and practices and accounting methods. At least ten (10) days prior to the due date of any Purchaser Prepared Return that shows an
Indemnified Tax, Purchaser shall provide a draft of such Tax Return to the Seller Representative for the Seller Representative’s review and comment.
Purchaser shall cause the applicable Target Companies to incorporate all reasonable comments of the Seller Representative prior to filing such Tax Return.

(iii) Purchaser shall not, and shall not allow the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to amend any Tax Return of the Target Companies or
the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period or otherwise initiate (or agree to) any other Seller Tax Matter without the prior written consent
of the Seller Representative, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

(iv) With respect to certain Tax matters, the Sellers and Purchaser agree as follows:

A. To treat the Sellers as selling their interests in the Target Companies and Purchaser shall be treated as acquiring the assets of the Target
Companies for all federal income Tax purposes, including any state or local Tax jurisdiction that follows the federal income tax system, and for
all other purposes, including for purposes of Transfer Taxes, Purchaser shall be treated as acquiring all the Securities from the Sellers.

B. To treat each Target Company as having a year for income tax purposes that ends as of the close of the day on the Closing Date and to
file a final IRS Form 1065 for such year.
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C. To treat any income Tax deduction with respect to any Seller Expense as being reported on the IRS Form 1065 of the applicable Target
Company ending on the Closing Date.

D. To treat any gains, income, deductions, losses, or other items realized by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary with respect to any
transaction engaged on the Closing Date, but after the Closing, that is outside of the ordinary course or business as occurring the “next day.”

Unless otherwise required by a determination of a Governmental Authority that is final, the Sellers and Purchaser shall prepare and file all Tax Returns
(and cause the Target Companies to file all Tax Returns), including timely and properly making all agreed elections, consistently with the agreements set forth
in this Section 5.10(a)(iv) and neither the Sellers nor Purchaser shall take any position during the course of any audit or other legal proceedings with respect
to any Taxes or Tax Returns that is inconsistent with the agreements set forth above.

(b) Straddle Period Tax Returns. To the extent permissible under Applicable Law, the parties agree to elect (and have each Target Company elect)
to have each Tax year of the Target Companies end on the Closing Date and, if such election is not permitted or required in a jurisdiction with respect to a
specific Tax such that a Target Company is required to file a Tax Return for a Straddle Period, to utilize the following conventions for determining the amount
of Taxes attributable to the portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date: (i) in the case of property Taxes and other similar Taxes imposed on a
periodic basis, the amount attributable to the portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date shall equal the Taxes for the entire Straddle Period by
a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of calendar days in the portion of the period ending on the Closing Date and the denominator of which is the
number of calendar days in the entire Straddle Period; provided that if as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the value of any asset is
reassessed for purposes of determining the amount of any property or other Tax, any resulting increase in Tax for such Straddle Period shall be treated as
being solely with respect to the portion of the Straddle Period beginning on the date after the Closing Date; and (ii) in the case of all other Taxes (including
income Taxes, sales Taxes, employment Taxes, withholding Taxes), the amount attributable to the portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date
shall be determined as if the applicable Target Company or the Subsidiary filed a separate Tax Return with respect to such Taxes for the portion of the
Straddle Period ending on as of the end of the day on the Closing Date using a “closing of the books methodology.” For purposes of clause (ii), (A) any item
determined on an annual or periodic basis (including amortization and depreciation deductions) shall be allocated to the portion of the Straddle Period ending
on the Closing Date based on the relative number of days in such portion of the Straddle Period as compared to the number of days in the entire Straddle
Period; and (B) the parties shall use the conventions provided for in Section 5.10(a)(iv) with respect to allocating the deductions for Seller Expenses and for
purposes of allocating items resulting from a transaction engaged in on the Closing Date, but after the Closing, that is outside of the ordinary course of
business. The Sellers shall pay or cause to be paid to Purchaser any Indemnified Tax that are shown as due on a Straddle Period Tax Return prepared by
Purchaser and provided to the Seller Representative in accordance with Section 5.10(a)(ii) no later than five (5) days before the due date with respect to any
such Tax Return (but no earlier than three (3) days after receiving written demand for payment accompanied by a reasonable computation of the amount of
Indemnified Taxes shown as due).
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(c) Cooperation. Purchaser, each Target Company, and the Sellers shall (i) assist in the preparation and timely filing of any Tax Return of any
Target Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; (ii) assist in any audit or other proceeding with respect to Taxes or Tax
Returns of any Target Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; (iii) make available any information, records, or other
documents relating to any Taxes or Tax Returns of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary (including copies of Tax Returns and related work papers) for a
Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; and (iv) provide certificates or forms, and timely execute any Tax Returns, that are necessary or appropriate to
establish an exemption for (or reduction in) any Transfer Tax.

(d) Tax Contests. If any Governmental Authority issues to any Target Company or the Subsidiary (A) a notice of its intent to audit or conduct any
proceeding with respect to Taxes or Tax Returns of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for any Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period or (B) a notice of
deficiency for Taxes for any Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period, Purchaser shall notify the Seller Representative of the receipt of such communication
from the Governmental Authority within ten (10) days of receipt. The applicable Target Company or the Subsidiary shall control any audit or other
proceeding in respect of any Taxes or Tax Returns of such Target Company or the Subsidiary (a “Tax Contest”); provided that (x) the Seller Representative, at
the Sellers’ sole cost and expense, shall have the right to control any Tax Contest (including the settlement or resolution thereof) to the extent it relates to a
Pre-Closing Tax Period; (y) the Seller Representative, at Sellers’ sole cost and expense, shall have the right to participate in any Tax Contest to the extent it
relates to a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; and (z) Purchaser shall not, and shall not allow the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to, settle,
resolve, or abandon a Tax Contest (whether or not the Sellers control or participate in such Tax Contest) for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period
without the prior written consent of the Seller Representative, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

(e) Transfer Taxes. All transfer, excise, sales, use, value added, registration, stamp, recording, property and similar Taxes or fees applicable to,
imposed upon, or arising out of the transfer of the interests in the Target Company or any other transaction contemplated by this Agreement and all related
interest and penalties (collectively, “Transfer Taxes”) shall be paid one-half by Purchaser and one-half by the Sellers.

(f) Tax Refunds. All refunds of Taxes of the Target Companies or the Subsidiary for any Pre-Closing Tax Period (or portion of a Straddle Period
ending on the Closing Date, as determined in accordance with the same principles provided for in Section 5.10(b)) (whether in the form of cash received or a
credit or other offset against Taxes otherwise payable) shall be for the sole benefit of the Sellers and the Non-Seller Recipients to the extent not included in
the computation of Net Working Capital. To the extent that Purchaser, the Target Companies or the Subsidiary receives a refund that is for the benefit of the
Sellers and the Non-Seller Recipients, Purchaser shall pay to the Seller Representative (for the benefit of the Sellers and the Non-Seller Recipients) the
amount of such refund (and any interest received from the
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Governmental Authority with respect to such portion of the refund). The amount due for the benefit of the Sellers and the Non-Seller Recipients shall be
payable not later than ten (10) days after receipt of the refund from the applicable Governmental Authority (or, if the refund is in the form of direct credit, not
later than ten (10) days after the due date of the Tax Return realizing such credit or offset).

(g) Purchase Price Allocation. Within seventy-five (75) days of the final determination of the Net Working Capital, Purchaser shall deliver to the
Seller Representative a draft schedule allocating the Purchase Price (other than the Earn-out Payments) among the assets of the Target Companies and its
Subsidiaries (the “Purchase Price Allocation Schedule”) and a draft appraisal from an independent valuation firm supporting the Purchase Allocation
Schedule. If, within fifteen (15) days of receiving the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule prepared by Purchaser, the Seller Representative has not objected,
then the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule prepared by Purchaser shall be final and binding on all parties hereto, and, subject to changes to the Purchase
Price Allocation Schedule to reflect adjustments to the Purchase Price (including payments of the Earn-out Payments), the Sellers and Purchaser shall file all
Tax Returns consistently with the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule and shall not take any position during the course of any audit or other proceeding that is
inconsistent with the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule, unless otherwise required by a determination of a Governmental Authority that is final. If, within
fifteen (15) days of receiving the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule prepared by Purchaser, the Seller Representative objects to the Purchase Price
Allocation Schedule, then the Seller Representative and Purchaser shall cooperate in good faith to resolve their dispute; provided that if after fifteen (15) days
the Seller Representative and Purchaser are unable to agree, the parties will each allocate the Purchase Price in any manner they see fit. If, within such fifteen
(15) day period, Purchaser and the Seller Representative agree to a Purchase Price Allocation Schedule, then such Purchase Price Allocation Schedule, as
finalized, shall be binding on all parties hereto, and, subject to appropriate changes to the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule to reflect adjustments, the
Sellers and Purchaser shall file all Tax Returns consistently with the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule and shall not take any position during the course of
any audit or other proceeding that is inconsistent with the Purchase Price Allocation Schedule, unless otherwise required by a determination of a
Governmental Authority that is final.

5.11 Employee Matters. Purchaser agrees to employ all of the Target Companies’ and the Subsidiary’s employees listed on Schedule 3.16 (“Business
Employees”) as of the Closing and to continue to employ the Business Employees for ninety (90) days following the Closing; provided that during such
ninety (90)-day period, termination of employment may occur through discharge for cause, voluntary departure or resignation, and Purchaser shall not, on or
after the Closing, otherwise take any action that would cause the Seller, the Target Companies or the Subsidiary to have had any obligation under the WARN
Act, or any similar state or local Law, prior to the Closing.

5.12 Escrow Agreement. On the Closing Date, Purchaser and the Seller Representative (on behalf of the Sellers) shall enter into the Escrow Agreement.

5.13 Payoff Letters; Seller Expenses. Prior to the Closing Date, the Seller Representative shall provide Purchaser with appropriate payoff letters (or
other satisfactory evidence) and forms of Lien releases with respect to all Indebtedness of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary.
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5.14 No Solicitation of Transactions. Neither the Target Companies nor the Subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, take (and the Target Companies shall
not authorize their managers, officers, employees, accountants, consultants, legal counsel, advisors, agents and other representatives or, to the extent within
the Target Companies’ control, other Affiliates to take) any action to (a) solicit, initiate or facilitate any Acquisition Proposal, (b) enter into any agreement
with respect to any Acquisition Proposal or enter into any agreement requiring it to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the transaction contemplated by
this Agreement or (c) participate in any way in negotiations with, or furnish any information to, any Person in connection with, or the making of any proposal
that constitutes an Acquisition Proposal. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Target Companies shall cease immediately and cause to be terminated any
and all existing discussions or negotiations with any Persons conducted heretofore with respect to an Acquisition Proposal.

5.15 Solvency After Closing. After the Closing, subject to the representations of the Target Companies and each Seller being true and correct in all
material respects and the projections of the Target Companies being substantially accurate, Purchaser agrees that it shall not, and that it shall cause its
Affiliates and the Target Companies and the Subsidiary not to, take or cause to be taken or omit to take any action that could result in a determination
pursuant to Applicable Law that, after giving effect to the transactions contemplated hereby (or after giving effect to such transactions and to such other
subsequent actions or omissions), Purchaser or any of its Affiliates including the Target Companies and the Subsidiary (a) became insolvent as a result of the
transactions contemplated hereby, (b) was left with unreasonably small capital with which to engage in its business or (c) incurred debts beyond its ability to
pay such debts as they mature, such that the payment of the Closing Payment, the other amounts to be paid pursuant to Section 1.2(b) and the Escrow Amount
may be deemed a “fraudulent conveyance” or impermissible dividend or distribution under Applicable Law or otherwise subject to claims of certain creditors
of Purchaser or any of its Affiliates including the Target Companies or its trustees in a bankruptcy proceeding.

5.16 Post-Closing Conduct of Business. Until January 1, 2017, Purchaser will (i) use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the value of the
business, operations, client and other third party relationships and franchise of the Target Companies, and (ii) refrain from taking any actions that would
reasonably be expected to have a material negative impact on the Target Companies’ ability to achieve the Earn-outs. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Purchaser may, in its sole discretion: merge RPM into its existing operations; utilize shared services in areas such as human resources, technology and
finance; change the branding and positioning of the Target Companies; change titles of the Target Companies’ management team; change the organizational
structure and reporting relationships for employees of the Target Companies; alter the compensation and benefit structure of the Target Companies’
employees; direct the Target Companies to develop new products and services, and meet with existing and prospective clients of Purchaser; incorporate the
Target Companies’ products and services into new products and services or otherwise modify the product or service offering; establish budgets and ensure
pricing consistent with past practices of the Target Companies; implement new legal and compliance frameworks; implement procurement policies and
procedures; and take other, similar
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actions in the normal course of business. In addition, prior to January 1, 2017, Purchaser may not terminate the employment of David Denaci or James Arslan
with Purchaser, other than for Cause.

5.17 Confidentiality. From and after the Closing, Sellers shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates to, hold, and shall use their commercially
reasonable efforts to cause its or their respective Representatives to hold, in confidence any and all information, whether written or oral, concerning the Target
Companies and the Subsidiary, except to the extent that Sellers can show that such information (a) was in the public domain or publicly known or available
prior to the date of disclosure, (b) is publicly disclosed on or after the date of disclosure, other than by Sellers in violation of this Agreement, or (c) is already
in the possession of the Sellers prior to the delivery thereof by the Company, as can be demonstrated by internal documentation by the Sellers; provided that
such information is not known by the Sellers, after due inquiry, to be subject to another confidentiality agreement or other obligation of secrecy to the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary. If a Seller or any of its Affiliates or their respective Representatives are compelled to disclose any information by judicial or
administrative process or by other requirements of Law, such Seller shall promptly notify Purchaser in writing and shall disclose only that portion of such
information which such Seller is advised by its counsel in writing is legally required to be disclosed; provided that such Seller shall use commercially
reasonable efforts, at Purchaser’s sole cost, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reasonable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded
such information.

5.18 Non-competition; Non-solicitation; Non-disparagement.

(a) For a period of five (5) years (and with respect to James Arslan, a period of four (4) years) commencing on the Closing Date (each, a
“Restricted Period”), no Seller, shall, and shall not permit any of his Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, (i) engage in or assist others in engaging in the
technology-enabled database, data analytics and marketing solutions industry (the “Restricted Business”) in the United States of America and its
territories (the “Territory”), (ii) have an interest in any Person that engages directly or indirectly in the Restricted Business in the Territory in any
capacity, including as a partner, shareholder, member, director, officer, employee, principal, agent, trustee or consultant, or (iii) intentionally interfere in
any material respect with the business relationships (whether formed prior to or after the date of this Agreement) between the Target Companies and
customers or suppliers of the Target Companies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Seller may own, directly or indirectly, solely as an investment,
securities of any Person traded on any national securities exchange if such Seller is not a controlling Person of, or a member of a group which controls,
such Person and does not, directly or indirectly, own two percent (2%) or more of any class of securities of such Person.

(b) During the Restricted Period, no Seller shall, and shall not permit any of his Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, hire or solicit any employee of
the Target Companies or encourage any such employee to leave such employment or hire any such employee who has left such employment, except
pursuant to a general solicitation which is not directed specifically to any such employees.
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(c) During the Restricted Period, no Seller shall, and shall not permit any of his Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, solicit or entice, or attempt to
solicit or entice, any clients or customers of the Target Companies or potential clients or customers of the Target Companies for purposes of diverting
their business or services from the Target Companies.

(d) Each Seller acknowledges that a breach or threatened breach of this Section 5.18 would give rise to irreparable harm to Purchaser, for which
monetary damages would not be an adequate remedy, and hereby agrees that in the event of a breach or a threatened breach by a Seller of any such
obligations, Purchaser shall, in addition to any and all other rights and remedies that may be available to it in respect of such breach, be entitled to seek
equitable relief, including a temporary restraining order, an injunction, specific performance and any other relief that may be available from a court of
competent jurisdiction (without any requirement to post bond).

(e) Each Seller acknowledges that the restrictions contained in this Section 5.18 are reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of
Purchaser and constitute a material inducement to Purchaser to enter into this Agreement and consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. In the event that any covenant contained in this Section 5.18 should ever be adjudicated to exceed the time, geographic, product or service,
or other limitations permitted by Applicable Law in any jurisdiction, then any court is expressly empowered to reform such covenant, and such
covenant shall be deemed reformed, in such jurisdiction to the maximum time, geographic, product or service, or other limitations permitted by
Applicable Law. The covenants contained in this Section 5.18 and each provision hereof are severable and distinct covenants and provisions. The
invalidity or unenforceability of any such covenant or provision as written shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the remaining covenants or
provisions hereof, and any such invalidity or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such covenant or
provision in any other jurisdiction. For the avoidance of doubt, this Section 5.18 is not intended to, and does not, limit any obligations a Seller may
have as a part of their employment with Purchaser or its Affiliates.

(f) During the Restricted Period, no Seller shall, and shall not permit any of his Affiliates to, directly or indirectly, take any action which is
intended, or would reasonably be expected, to materially harm Purchaser or its reputation or which would reasonably be expected to lead to material
unwanted or unfavorable publicity to Purchaser.

5.19 Fiscal Year 2014 Audit. The Sellers and the Target Companies will use reasonable best efforts to ensure the audit for fiscal year 2014 will be
completed as soon as possible, and in no event later than March 31, 2015.

5.20 Restricted Stock Unit Award Grant. On the Closing Date, Holdings shall issue and award the Restricted Stock Units to the Non-Seller Recipients
and the Other Participants in the amounts set forth on Schedule 1.2(b) of the Disclosure Schedule opposite each such Person’s name. It shall be a condition to
the distribution and delivery of the Restricted Stock Units hereunder that each Non-Seller Recipient and each Other Participant shall have executed and
delivered a Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, in substantially the same form attached hereto as Exhibit F.
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5.21 Guaranty.

(a) Holdings hereby fully and irrevocably guarantees (the “Guaranty”) the indemnities and performance of Purchaser (including the payment of
the Purchase Price) now existing or hereafter arising under this Agreement or any agreement related hereto to which Purchaser is party (whether or not
Purchaser at any time in question then exists) (collectively, the “Obligations”). The Guaranty is a full, unconditional, irrevocable, absolute and continuing
guaranty of performance and payment when due and not merely of collection, and Holdings shall remain liable with respect to the Obligations hereunder until
the performance or payment, as the case may be, of such Obligations.

(b) Holdings’ guarantee and responsibility shall not be discharged, released, diminished, or impaired in whole or in part by any setoff,
counterclaim, defense, act or occurrence which Holdings may have against Purchaser as a result of or arising out of this Agreement, any agreement related
hereto to which Holdings is party or any other transaction.

(c) The obligations of Holdings hereunder are independent of the Obligations, and a separate action or actions may be brought and prosecuted
against Holdings regardless of whether any action is brought against Purchaser or whether Purchaser is joined in any such action or actions. The obligations
of Holdings hereunder shall be unconditional, and shall not be released, discharged, diminished or impaired by (i) the renewal, extension, modification or
alteration by Purchaser, the Target Companies and the Seller Representative, with or without the knowledge or consent of Holdings, of this Agreement or any
agreement related hereto to which Purchaser is party or of any liability or obligation of Purchaser thereunder or of any document or instrument under which
Holdings’ obligations hereunder arise, (ii) any forbearance or compromise granted to Purchaser by the Seller Representative when dealing with Purchaser,
except to the extent of such forbearance or compromise, (iii) any change in corporate structure or ownership of Purchaser or the bankruptcy, insolvency,
liquidation, receivership, dissolution, winding-up or termination of Purchaser or the fact that at any time Purchaser does not exist, (iv) the inaccuracy of any
of the representations and warranties of Purchaser under this Agreement or any agreement related hereto to which Purchaser is party, (v) any neglect, delay,
omission, failure or refusal of Purchaser to take or prosecute any action in connection with this Agreement or any agreement related hereto to which
Purchaser is party, (vi) the full or partial release of Purchaser on any Obligation, except that Holdings shall be released pro tanto to the extent the Seller
Representative expressly releases Purchaser from liability with respect to the Obligations, (vii) the lack of enforceability of this Agreement or any agreement
related hereto to which Purchaser is party, or (viii) any other circumstance relating to Holdings’ obligations hereunder that might otherwise constitute a legal
or equitable discharge of or defense to Holdings not available to Purchaser, who is liable for such Obligations.

(d) If Purchaser fails to perform Obligations requiring payment, in whole or in part, when such Obligations are due, then Holdings shall promptly
pay such Obligations in lawful money of the United States within five (5) Business Days of receipt of demand for payment from the Seller Representative.

(e) Holdings represents and warrants for and as to itself that it has received, or will receive, direct or indirect benefit from the making of this
Guaranty.
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ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

6.1 Conditions to the Sellers’ Obligations. The obligations of the Sellers to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to
the fulfillment at or prior to the Closing of each of the following conditions (any or all of which may be waived in whole or in part by the Seller
Representative).

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Purchaser in this Agreement shall be true and correct on and as of the
Closing Date as though such representations and warranties were made at and as of the Closing Date (except for such representations and warranties
expressly stated to relate to a specific date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct as of such date); provided that
this condition shall be deemed to be satisfied unless any failure of any such representation or warranty to be true and correct has a material adverse
effect on Purchaser’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) Performance. Purchaser shall have, in all material respects, performed and complied with all agreements, obligations, covenants and
conditions required by this Agreement to be so performed or complied with by Purchaser at or prior to the Closing Date.

(c) Certificates. Purchaser shall have delivered to the Seller Representative a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, executed on its behalf by an
executive officer, certifying the fulfillment of the conditions specified in Sections 6.1(a) and 6.1(b). The Seller Representative shall have received a
certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, signed by the Secretary of Purchaser, and certifying as to (i) Purchaser’s Fundamental Documents and the
incumbency of its officers executing this Agreement and each Purchaser Agreement to which it is a party and (ii) the resolutions of the board of
managers of Purchaser authorizing the execution, delivery and performance by Purchaser of this Agreement and each Purchaser Agreement to which it
is a party.

(d) Closing Deliveries. Purchaser shall have complied with its obligations pursuant to Section 1.4.

(e) Escrow Agreement. The Seller Representative shall have received a copy of the Escrow Agreement, duly executed by Purchaser.

(f) No Injunctions or Restraints. No Applicable Law or injunction enacted, entered, promulgated, enforced or issued by any Governmental
Authority or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby shall be in effect; provided that
the Target Companies, the Seller Representative and Purchaser shall have used their respective commercially reasonable efforts to prevent the entry of
any such injunction or other order and to appeal as promptly as possible any such injunction or other order that may be entered.

6.2 Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligations. The obligations of Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to
the fulfillment at or prior to the Closing of each of the following conditions (any or all of which may be waived in whole or in part by Purchaser):

(a) Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of this Agreement, there shall be no Material Adverse Effect.
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(b) Performance. The Target Companies and the Sellers shall have, in all material respects, performed and complied with all agreements,
obligations, covenants and conditions required by this Agreement to be so performed or complied with by the Target Companies and the Sellers at or
prior to the Closing; provided that with respect to agreements, covenants and conditions that are qualified by materiality, the Target Companies and the
Sellers shall have performed such agreements, covenants and conditions, as so qualified, in all respects.

(c) Certificates. Each Target Company shall have delivered to Purchaser a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, executed on its behalf by an
executive officer, certifying the fulfillment of the conditions specified in Sections 6.2(a) and 6.2(b). Purchaser shall have received a certificate, dated as
of the Closing Date, signed by an officer of each Target Company, and certifying as to (i) each of the Target Companies’ Fundamental Documents and
the incumbency of its officers executing this Agreement and each Target Company Agreement to which it is a party and (ii) the resolutions of the
members of each Target Company authorizing the execution, delivery and performance by each Target Company of this Agreement and each Target
Company Agreement to which it is a party.

(d) Closing Deliveries. The Sellers, the Seller Representative and the Target Companies shall have complied with their respective obligations
pursuant to Section 1.4.

(e) Escrow Agreement. Purchaser shall have received a copy of the Escrow Agreement, duly executed by the Seller Representative.

(f) Consent. The consent listed on Schedule 6.2(f) of the Disclosure Schedule shall have been received, and executed counterparts thereof shall
have been delivered to Purchaser at or prior to the Closing.

(g) Intercompany Debt. All debts owed by any of the Target Companies and/or the Subsidiary to any of the Sellers shall have been paid in full.

(h) No Injunctions or Restraints. No Applicable Law or injunction enacted, entered, promulgated, enforced or issued by any Governmental
Authority or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby shall be in effect; provided that
the Target Companies, the Seller Representative and Purchaser shall have used their respective commercially reasonable efforts to prevent the entry of
any such injunction or other order and to appeal as promptly as possible any such injunction or other order that may be entered.
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ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 Survival. The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Sellers and the Target Companies, on the one hand, and Purchaser, on
the other hand, contained in this Agreement and the certificates delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall not survive the Closing except to the extent
specified below:

(a) All covenants contained in this Agreement that contemplate performance thereof following the Closing Date will survive the Closing in
accordance with their terms.

(b) Except as set forth below, the representations and warranties contained in Article II, Article III and Article IV of this Agreement will survive
the Closing until 15 months after the Closing Date, at which point such representations and warranties and any claim for indemnification or
reimbursement from the Escrow Amount by any Purchaser Indemnitee and/or any claim for indemnification by any Seller Indemnitee on account
thereof will terminate (such date, the “Representation Termination Date”). The representations and warranties contained in (i) Sections 3.12 (Employee
Benefit Plans) and 3.13 (Taxes) (together, the “Benefit and Tax Representations”) shall survive for the full period of all applicable statutes of limitations
(giving effect to any waiver, mitigation or extension thereof) plus sixty (60) days and (ii) (A) Sections 2.1 (Capacity of the Sellers), 2.2 (Authority of
the Sellers), 2.4 (Ownership of the Securities) and 2.6 (Brokers) (collectively, the “Sellers Excluded Representations”), (B) Sections 3.1 (Organization;
Good Standing; Qualification and Power), 3.2 (Authority of the Target Companies), 3.3 (Capitalization), 3.4 (Subsidiaries) and 3.18 (Brokers)
(collectively, the “Target Companies Excluded Representations”), and (C) Sections 4.1 (Organization), 4.2 (Authority), 4.6 (Investment Intent), 4.8
(Brokers) (collectively, the “Purchaser Excluded Representations” and, together with the Seller Excluded Representations and the Target Companies
Excluded Representations, the “Excluded Representations”), shall survive indefinitely.

7.2 Indemnification of Purchaser Indemnitees.

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, from and after the Closing and ending on the Representation Termination Date (other
than with respect to the Target Companies Excluded Representations and the Benefit and Tax Representations, in which case the applicable survival
period set forth in Section 7.1(b) shall apply, as well as any breach by a Target Company or the Subsidiary of any of its covenants contained in this
Agreement that survive the Closing), Purchaser and the Target Companies and their respective successors and permitted assigns (collectively, the
“Purchaser Indemnitees”), shall be entitled to reimbursement solely out of the Escrow Amount (except as otherwise provided for herein) and subject to
the terms of the Escrow Agreement, for the amount of any and all out-of-pocket losses, costs, damages, claims, fines, penalties, expenses (including
reasonable fees and expenses of outside attorneys), reasonable costs of investigation (including reasonable fees and expenses of outside accountants,
consultants and experts reasonably engaged), amounts paid in settlement, court costs, and other expenses of litigation (but excluding any and all
internal costs and expenses incurred by any party entitled to indemnification under this Article VII) (collectively, “Damages”) actually incurred by a
Purchaser Indemnitee arising out of any breach of any representation or warranty of the Target Companies contained in this Agreement.
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(b) Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, from and after the Closing and ending on the Representation Termination Date (other
than with respect to the Sellers Excluded Representations), each Seller will severally indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser Indemnitees for the
amount of any Damages actually incurred by a Purchaser Indemnitee arising out of:

(i) any breach of any representation or warranty of such Seller contained in this Agreement; or

(ii) any breach by such Seller of any of its covenants contained in this Agreement that survive the Closing.

(c) Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, from and after the Closing, each Seller will severally indemnify and hold harmless the
Purchaser Indemnitees for the amount of any Damages actually incurred by a Purchaser Indemnitee arising out of any breach of any Seller’s Excluded
Representation of such Seller.

(d) Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, from and after the Closing, the Sellers will jointly and severally indemnify and hold
harmless the Purchaser Indemnitees for the amount of any Damages actually incurred by a Purchaser Indemnitee that are in excess of the Escrow
Amount or that are incurred after the Representation Termination Date, in each case, solely arising from any breach of the Target Companies Excluded
Representations or the Benefit and Tax Representations; provided that the aggregate amount the Sellers shall be obligated to pay collectively hereunder
shall in no event exceed the Purchase Price, other than with respect to claims pursuant to the Excluded Fundamental Representations, which shall not
be subject to such limitation.

7.3 Indemnification of Seller Indemnitees Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, from and after the Closing and ending on (i) in the case
of claims brought with respect to any covenant of Purchaser contained herein that survives the Closing, until the expiration of such covenant or agreement in
accordance with its terms and (ii) in the case of claims brought with respect to the representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in Article IV of this
Agreement, the Representation Termination Date (or indefinitely, with respect to the Purchaser Excluded Representations), Purchaser and the Target
Companies will jointly and severally indemnify and hold harmless the Seller Representative, the Sellers and their respective successors and permitted assigns
(collectively, the “Seller Indemnitees”) for, and will pay to the Seller Indemnitees the amount of, any Damages actually incurred by a Seller Indemnitee
arising out of (a) any breach of any representation or warranty of Purchaser contained in Article IV of this Agreement, (b) any breach by Purchaser of any of
its covenants contained in this Agreement that survive the Closing, (c) any fees, expenses or other payments incurred or owed by Purchaser (as of the Closing
Date) to any brokers, financial advisors or comparable other Persons retained or employed by it in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, or (d) the ownership and operation of the Target Companies, the Subsidiary and their respective businesses from and after the Closing.
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7.4 Exclusive Remedy. Other than in the case of fraud or intentional misrepresentation, the parties agree that, from and after the Closing, the exclusive
remedies of the parties for any Damages arising out of or based upon the matters set forth in this Agreement are the indemnification and/or reimbursement
obligations of the parties set forth in this Article VII. In furtherance of the foregoing, each of the parties hereby waives, from and after the Closing, to the
fullest extent permitted under Applicable Law, any and all rights and claims (other than claims of fraud or intentional misrepresentation) for Damages it may
have against any other party arising under, based upon or relating to this Agreement, any Target Company Agreement or Purchaser Agreement, any document
or certificate delivered in connection herewith, any Applicable Law, common law or otherwise (except pursuant to the indemnification provisions set forth in
this Article VII). The provisions of this Section 7.4 shall not, however, prevent or limit a cause of action under Section 9.14 to obtain an injunction or
injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof.

7.5 Limitations on Reimbursement to and Indemnification of Purchaser Indemnitees. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the rights of the
Purchaser Indemnitees to reimbursement from the Escrow Amount and indemnification are limited as follows:

(a) Except with respect to Damages relating to claims brought with respect to the Seller Excluded Representations, the Benefit and Tax
Representations, the Target Companies Excluded Representations and the covenants of the Sellers, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, the
Purchaser Indemnitees will not be entitled to indemnification or reimbursement from the Escrow Amount with respect to the matters described in
Section 7.2 for any Damages until the total of all such Damages suffered by the Purchaser Indemnitees exceeds $250,000 (the “Basket”), in which
event the Purchaser Indemnitees will be entitled to indemnification or reimbursement from the Escrow Amount for all Damages in excess of the Basket
and up to a maximum of the Escrow Amount (the “Cap”).

(b) Except for claims pursuant to the Seller Excluded Representations, the Benefit and Tax Representations, the Target Companies Excluded
Representations and the covenants of the Sellers, the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, all claims for Damages made by any Purchaser Indemnitee
pursuant to Section 7.2(a) shall be satisfied solely out of the Escrow Amount, subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement. All
claims for Damages made by any Purchaser Indemnitee pursuant to Section 7.2(b) or Section 7.2(c) shall be made against the applicable Seller from
whom indemnification is sought. Claims for Damages made by any Purchaser Indemnitee pursuant to Section 7.2(d) shall first be satisfied out of the
Escrow Amount to the extent thereof; provided that the aggregate amount the Sellers shall be obligated to pay collectively hereunder shall in no event
exceed the Purchase Price, other than with respect to claims pursuant to the Excluded Fundamental Representations, which shall not be subject to such
limitation.

(c) The Purchaser Indemnitees’ right to reimbursement from the Escrow Amount or indemnification pursuant to Section 7.2 on account of any
Damages shall be (i) reduced by all insurance or other third party indemnification proceeds actually received by the Purchaser Indemnitees (net of
enforcement costs, deductibles, premium increases and other similar items) and (ii) reduced by the amount of any Tax benefit realized by any Purchaser
Indemnitee in the tax year the Damages were incurred (or in an immediately subsequent tax
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year). To the extent the Purchaser Indemnitees realize any Tax benefit in the year the damages were incurred (or the immediately subsequent tax year)
on account of Damages that were not initially included in the amounts paid under Section 7.2, Purchaser shall pay to the Sellers the amount of such Tax
benefit within ten (10) days of realizing the Tax benefit. Purchaser and the Target Companies shall use commercially reasonable efforts to claim and
recover any Damages suffered by the Purchaser Indemnitees under any such insurance policies then in effect or other third party indemnities, and to
realize any such Tax benefit; provided that Purchaser shall be under no obligation to acquire or maintain any insurance policies to cover such
indemnities.

(d) The Purchaser Indemnitees shall not have any claim for Damages under Section 7.2 to the extent that any liability or obligation arises
primarily as a result of any action taken or omitted to be taken by Purchaser.

(e) The Purchaser Indemnitees shall not be entitled to reimbursement from the Escrow Amount or indemnification pursuant to this Agreement for
(i) lost profits, consequential, exemplary or special damages, or (ii) punitive damages (except, in either case, with respect to Damages actually awarded
to a third party in an action brought against a Purchaser Indemnitee). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, no diminution in value,
multiple of profits or multiple of cash flow or similar valuation methodology shall be used in calculating the amount of any Damages under this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in addition to any other limitation, the Purchaser Indemnitees’ right to be
indemnified with respect to any Tax matter shall be limited to resulting Tax Losses.

(f) If any representation or warranty contained herein is limited or qualified based on materiality, including the terms “material,” “Material
Adverse Effect” or similar qualifications, such limitation or qualification shall be ignored in all respects and given no effect for purposes of determining
the amount of Damages resulting from any breach of any such representation or warranty, but shall in no event be ignored for purposes of determining
if there has been such a breach.

7.6 Limitations on Indemnification of Seller Indemnitees.

(a) Except with respect to claims brought with respect to the Purchaser Excluded Representations, the Seller Indemnitees will not be entitled to
indemnification pursuant to Section 7.3 hereof for any Damages until the total of all such Damages suffered by the Seller Indemnitees exceeds the
Basket, in which event the Seller Indemnitees will be entitled to indemnification for all Damages in excess of the Basket and up to a maximum of the
Cap; provided that the foregoing limitations shall not apply to the obligations of Purchaser under Article I hereof.

(b) The Seller Indemnitees’ right to indemnification pursuant to Section 7.3 on account of any Damages shall be (i) reduced by all third party
indemnification proceeds actually received by the Seller Indemnitees (net of enforcement costs, deductibles, premium increases and other similar
items) and (ii) reduced by the amount of any Tax benefit actually realized by any Seller Indemnitee in the tax year in which such Damages were
incurred (or in the immediately succeeding tax year).
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(c) The Seller Indemnitees shall not be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Agreement for (i) lost profits, consequential, exemplary or
special damages, or (ii) punitive damages (except with respect to Damages actually awarded to a third party in an action brought against a Seller
Indemnitee). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, no diminution in value, multiple of profits or multiple of cash flow or similar
valuation methodology shall be used in calculating the amount of any Damages under this Agreement.

7.7 Procedures. The following procedures shall apply to all claims for indemnification and reimbursement pursuant to this Article VII, other than those
relating to Tax matters, which are governed by Section 5.10:

(a) Notice of Damages by Indemnified Parties.

(i) Claims For Damages. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, if any party seeking indemnification or reimbursement, as
applicable, hereunder (the “Indemnified Party”) believes in good faith that it has a claim for reimbursement (a “Claim”), the Indemnified Party
shall, promptly after it becomes aware of such Claim but in any event prior to the Representation Termination Date (other than with respect to the
Excluded Representations), notify the party against whom indemnification or reimbursement, as applicable, may be sought hereunder (the
“Indemnifying Party”) of such Claim by means of a written notice specifying the nature, circumstances and amount (estimated, if necessary and
to the extent feasible) of such Claim and setting forth with reasonable particularity the underlying facts actually known or in good faith believed
by the Indemnified Party to exist sufficient to establish such Claim and the Indemnified Party’s good faith calculation of the Damages incurred
by the applicable Indemnified Party with respect thereto, and including copies of all written documentation in the possession of the Purchaser
Indemnitees relating to the circumstances or events giving rise to such Claim (a “Claim Notice”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Indemnified
Party may not make a Claim or deliver a Claim Notice regarding Damages which it believes may arise from a claim by a third party (whether
private or governmental) unless such third party has actually commenced a lawsuit, action or regulatory proceeding. The failure by an
Indemnified Party to promptly deliver an Claim Notice under this Section 7.7(a)(i) will not adversely affect the applicable Indemnified Party’s
right to reimbursement except to the extent that any Indemnifying Party is actually prejudiced thereby. Notwithstanding anything else set forth
herein, the Seller Representative is the only Indemnified Party that may deliver a Claim notice on behalf a Seller Indemnitee.

(ii) Disputes. If the Indemnifying Party delivers a notice in writing that the Indemnifying Party objects to the Claim (or the amount of
Damages set forth therein) asserted in such Claim Notice (a “Dispute Notice”), Purchaser and the Seller Representative shall promptly meet and
use their commercially reasonable efforts to settle the dispute as to whether and to what extent the Indemnified Parties are entitled to
reimbursement on account of such Claim. If Purchaser and the Seller Representative are able to reach agreement within thirty (30) days after the
Indemnified Party receives such Dispute Notice, Purchaser and the Seller Representative shall, (i) in the event that one or more Purchaser
Indemnitees is entitled
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to indemnification, deliver a joint written instruction to the Escrow Agent setting forth such agreement and instructing the Escrow Agent to
release funds from the Escrow Amount subject to the limitations contained in this Article VII or (ii) in the event that one or more Seller
Indemnitees is entitled to indemnification, Purchaser shall promptly make such payment to the Seller Indemnitee(s). If Purchaser and the Seller
Representative are unable to reach agreement within thirty (30) days after Purchaser receives such Dispute Notice, then the dispute may be
submitted to a court of competent jurisdiction by either Purchaser or the Seller Representative. For all purposes of this Article VII, Purchaser and
the Seller Representative shall cooperate with and make available to the other party and its representatives all information, records and data, and
shall permit reasonable access to its facilities and personnel, as may be reasonably required in connection with the resolution of such disputes.

(b) Opportunity to Defend Third Party Claims. In the event of any claim by a third party against any Purchaser Indemnitee or Seller Indemnitee
for which indemnification or reimbursement is or may be available under this Article VII (whether pursuant to a lawsuit, other legal action or
otherwise, a “Third Party Claim”), the Indemnifying Party shall be entitled and, if it so elects, shall be obligated at its own cost and expense, (i) to take
control of the defense and investigation of such Third Party Claim and (ii) to pursue the defense thereof in good faith by appropriate actions or
proceedings promptly taken or instituted and diligently pursued, including, without limitation, to employ and engage attorneys of its own choice
reasonably acceptable to the Indemnified Party to handle and defend such Third Party Claim, and the Indemnifying Party shall be entitled (but not
obligated), if it so elects, to compromise or settle such claim, which compromise or settlement shall be made only with the written consent of the
Indemnified Party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, except that such written consent shall not be required if (x) such settlement
or compromise includes an unconditional release of the Indemnified Party from all liability arising out of such claim, (y) such settlement or
compromise does not contain any equitable order, judgment or term which in any manner encumbers the assets of any Indemnified Party or affects,
restrains or interferes with the business of the Indemnified Party and (z) the Indemnifying Party has agreement to pay all amounts due pursuant to the
settlement or judgment concurrently with the effectiveness of the settlement or judgment. In the event the Indemnifying Party elects to assume control
of the defense and investigation of such Third Party Claim in accordance with this Section 7.7(b), the Indemnified Party may, at its own cost and
expense, participate in the investigation, trial and defense of such Third Party Claim; provided that if the named Persons to a lawsuit or other legal
action include both the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party and the Indemnified Party has been advised by counsel that there may be one or
more legal defenses available to such Indemnified Party that are different from or additional to those available to the Indemnifying Party, the
Indemnified Party shall be entitled, at the Indemnifying Party’s cost, risk and expense, to retain one firm of separate counsel of its own choosing (along
with any required local counsel). In the event the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of the claim, the Indemnifying Party shall keep the
Indemnified Party reasonably informed of the progress of any such defense, compromise or settlement, and in the event the Indemnified Party assumes
the defense of the claim, the Indemnified Party shall keep the Indemnifying Party reasonably informed of the progress of any such defense,
compromise or settlement.
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7.8 Mitigation. Each party shall take all reasonable steps to mitigate any of its Damages upon becoming aware of any event which would reasonably be
expected to, or does, give rise thereto. Each of the parties hereto shall cooperate with the others with respect to resolving any claim or liability with respect to
which one party is obligated to indemnify the other party hereunder, including by using commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate or resolve any such claim
or liability; provided that such party shall not be required to make such efforts if they would be detrimental in any material respect to such party. In the event
that any party shall fail to use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate or resolve any claim or liability, then (unless the proviso to the foregoing sentence
shall be applicable) notwithstanding anything else to the contrary contained herein, the other party shall not be required to indemnify any Person for any
Damages that could have been avoided if such party had made such efforts.

7.9 Adjustment to Purchase Price. Any payments made pursuant to this Article VII shall be construed as an adjustment to the Purchase Price.

ARTICLE VIII
TERMINATION

8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the transactions contemplated hereby may be abandoned:

(a) at any time, by mutual written agreement of the Seller Representative and Purchaser;

(b) at any time after March 31, 2015 (the “Outside Date”), by the Seller Representative upon written notice to Purchaser, if the Closing shall not
have occurred for any reason other than a breach of this Agreement by the Target Companies or the Sellers;

(c) at any time after the Outside Date, by Purchaser upon written notice to the Seller Representative, if the Closing shall not have occurred for
any reason other than a breach of this Agreement by Purchaser;

(d) by the Seller Representative, if Purchaser materially breaches any of its representations, warranties or obligations under this Agreement and
such breach is not cured within ten (10) days after written notice to Purchaser by the Seller Representative; provided that no cure period will be
required for any such breach that by its nature cannot be cured or if, as a result of such breach, one or more of the conditions to the Sellers’ obligations
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby would not be satisfied at or prior to the Outside Date;

(e) by Purchaser, if the Target Companies or the Sellers breach any of their representations, warranties or obligations under this Agreement such
that the condition to close set forth in Section 6.2(a) is not met and such breach is not cured within ten (10) days after written notice to the Seller
Representative by Purchaser; provided that no cure period will be required for any such breach that by its nature cannot be cured or if, as a result of
such breach, one or more of the conditions to the obligations of Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby would not be satisfied
at or prior to the Outside Date; or

(f) by either Purchaser or the Seller Representative if a court of competent jurisdiction shall have issued an Order permanently restraining or
prohibiting the transactions contemplated by the Agreement, and such Order shall have become final and nonappealable.
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8.2 Procedure and Effect of Termination. In the event of termination by the Seller Representative or Purchaser pursuant to Section 8.1, written notice
thereof shall be given to the other party and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be terminated, without further action by any party. If the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement are terminated as provided herein, (i) Purchaser shall return all documents and other material received from the
Sellers or the Target Companies or any of their respective representatives relating to the transactions contemplated hereby, whether so obtained before or after
the execution hereof, and (ii) all confidential information received by Purchaser with respect to the business of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary shall
be treated in accordance with the Confidentiality Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement. In
the event of the termination of this Agreement and the abandonment of the transactions contemplated hereby pursuant to Section 8.1 hereof, this Agreement
shall become void and there shall be no liability on the part of any party hereto except (a) the obligations provided for in this Section 8.2 (Procedure and
Effect of Termination), Section 5.2(c) (Confidentiality), Section 5.6 (Public Announcements), Article IX (Miscellaneous) and Article X (Definitions) hereof
shall survive any such termination of this Agreement and (b) nothing herein shall relieve any party from liability for breach of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 Further Assurances. From time to time after the Closing Date, at the request of the other party hereto and at the expense of the party so requesting,
the parties hereto shall execute and deliver to such requesting party such documents and take such other action as such requesting party may reasonably
request in order to give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

9.2 Seller Representative.

(a) Appointment. David Denaci has been authorized to act as agent and attorney-in-fact for and on behalf of the Sellers (the “Seller
Representative”) regarding any matter under this Agreement or otherwise relating to the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) Liability. The Seller Representative will not be liable for any act done or omitted under any Target Company Agreement as Seller
Representative while acting in good faith, and any act taken or omitted to be taken pursuant to the advice of counsel will be conclusive evidence of
such good faith. The Seller Representative shall be entitled to rely, and shall be fully protected in relying, upon any statements furnished to it by any
Seller, the Target Companies, Purchaser, any third party or any other evidence deemed by the Seller Representative to be reliable, and the Seller
Representative shall be entitled to act on the advice of counsel selected by it. The Seller Representative shall be fully justified in failing or refusing to
take any action under the Target Company Agreements or any related document or agreement unless it shall have received such advice or concurrence
as it deems appropriate or it
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shall have been expressly indemnified to its satisfaction, against any and all liability and expense that the Seller Representative may incur by reason of
taking or continuing to take any such action.

(c) Reliance. From and after the Closing, each of Purchaser and the Target Companies is entitled to deal exclusively with the Seller
Representative on all matters relating to this Agreement and the other Target Company Agreements and agrees to deal with the Seller Representative on
an exclusive basis. A decision, act, consent or instruction of the Seller Representative constitutes a decision of all the Sellers. Such decision, act,
consent or instruction is final, binding and conclusive upon each Seller, and the Escrow Agent and Purchaser and the Target Companies may rely upon
any decision, act, consent or instruction of the Seller Representative. Notices or communications to or from the Seller Representative will constitute
notice to or from each of the Sellers.

9.3 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, waivers and communications required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered (i) by hand (including by reputable overnight courier (with evidence of delivery and postage and
other fees prepaid), (ii) by mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt requested) or (iii) by facsimile or other electronic transmission (receipt of which is
confirmed):
 

 (a) If to Purchaser or, after the Closing, the Target Companies, to:

ExlService.com, LLC
c/o EXL Service Holdings, Inc.
280 Park Avenue, 38th Floor
New York, NY 10017
Facsimile: (212) 277-7111
Attention: Nancy Saltzman, Esq.
Email: nancy.saltzman@exlservice.com

with a copy to:

McGuireWoods LLP
1345 Avenue of the Americas, 7th Floor
New York, NY 10105
Facsimile: (212) 751-6291
Attention: Stephen E. Older, Esq. and Jeffrey L. Rothschild, Esq.
Email: solder@mcguirewoods.com; jrothschild@mcguirewoods.com

 

 (b) If to the Target Companies prior to the Closing, to:

24 Arnett Avenue, Suite 100
Lambertville, NJ 08530
Facsimile: (609) 566-7155
Attention: David Denaci
Email: dave@rpmdirectllc.com

 
- 46 -



with a copy to:

Winston & Strawn LLP
200 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10166
Facsimile: (212) 294-4700
Attention: Bradley C. Vaiana, Esq. and Jared A. Hershberg, Esq.
Email: bvaiana@winston.com; jhershberg@winston.com

 

 (c) If to the Seller Representative, to:

David Denaci
223 Holcombe Way
Lambertville, NJ 08530
Telephone: (908) 391-0718
Email: Dave@rpmdirectllc.com

with a copy to:

Winston & Strawn LLP
200 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10166
Facsimile: (212) 294-4700
Attention: Bradley C. Vaiana, Esq. and Jared A. Hershberg, Esq.
Email: bvaiana@winston.com; jhershberg@winston.com

or to such other Person or address as any party shall specify by notice in writing to the other party. All such notices, requests, demands, waivers and
communications shall be deemed to have been given (i) on the date on which so hand-delivered, (ii) on the third Business Day following the date on which so
mailed and (iii) on the date on which the facsimile or other electronic transmission is confirmed, except for a notice of change of address, which shall be
effective only upon receipt thereof.

9.4 Exhibits and Schedules. The inclusion of any matter, information or item in any Disclosure Schedule shall not be deemed to constitute an admission
that such information is of a material nature to the contemplated transaction.

9.5 Amendment, Modification and Waiver. This Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented at any time by written agreement of the
parties hereto. Any failure of the Sellers or the Target Companies to comply with any term or provision of this Agreement may be waived by Purchaser, and
any failure of Purchaser to comply with any term or provision of this Agreement may be waived by the Seller Representative, at any time by an instrument in
writing signed by or on behalf of such other party, but such waiver shall not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any subsequent or other failure
to comply.

9.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Disclosure Schedule and the exhibits, schedules and other documents referred to herein (including, without
limitation, the Confidentiality Agreement) which form a part hereof contain the entire understanding of the
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parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral and written, with respect to
its subject matter (other than the Confidentiality Agreement).

9.7 Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement for any reason be declared invalid or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity
or enforceability of any of the other provisions of this Agreement, which other provisions shall remain in full force and effect and the application of such
invalid or unenforceable provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable shall be valid and be enforced
to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law.

9.8 Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective heirs, executors, successors and permitted assigns, but except as contemplated herein, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or
obligations hereunder shall be assigned, directly or indirectly, by any party without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto.

9.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Other than the Seller Representative, the Sellers and the current and former officers, directors and employees of the
Target Companies pursuant to Section 9.9 hereof, this Agreement is not intended and shall not be deemed to confer upon or give any Person not a party or a
permitted assign of a party to this Agreement.

9.10 Fees and Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in Article I, whether or not the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated pursuant
hereto, each party hereto shall pay all fees and expenses incurred by it or on its behalf in connection with this Agreement, and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby.

9.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original instrument and all of which
together shall constitute a single instrument. Execution and delivery of this Agreement by electronic exchange bearing the copies of a party’s signature shall
constitute a valid and binding execution and delivery of this Agreement by such party. Such electronic copies shall constitute enforceable original documents.

9.12 Interpretation.

(a) For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Agreement” shall mean this agreement together with all Disclosure Schedules, Annexes and
Exhibits hereto, as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, supplemented or restated in accordance with the terms hereof. Unless the
context otherwise requires, words importing the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa. The use in this Agreement of the term “including”
means “including, without limitation.” The words “herein”, “hereof’, “hereunder”, “hereby”, “hereto”, “hereinafter”, and other words of similar import
refer to this Agreement as a whole, including the Disclosure Schedules, Annexes and Exhibits, as the same may from time to time be amended,
modified, supplemented or restated, and not to any particular article, section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph or clause contained in this
Agreement. All references to articles, sections, subsections, clauses, paragraphs, schedules and exhibits mean such
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provisions of this Agreement and the Disclosure Schedules, Annexes and Exhibits attached to this Agreement, except where otherwise stated. The use
herein of the masculine, feminine or neuter forms shall also denote the other forms, as in each case the context may require.

(b) The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of
strict construction shall be applied against any party.

(c) Any fact or item disclosed on any Disclosure Schedule to this Agreement shall be deemed disclosed on all other Disclosure Schedule to this
Agreement to which such fact or item may reasonably apply so long as such disclosure is in sufficient detail to enable a party hereto to reasonably
identify the facts or items to which it applies from the face of the applicable Disclosure Schedule.

(d) Accounting terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them under GAAP.

9.13 Legal Representation. Purchaser and the Target Companies hereby agree, on their own behalf and on behalf of their directors, stockholders,
members, partners, officers, employees and Affiliates, and each of their successors and assigns (all such parties, the “Waiving Parties”), that (i) Winston &
Strawn LLP may represent the Seller Representative, the Sellers, and each of their respective Affiliates (individually and collectively, the “Seller Group”), on
the one hand, and the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, on the other hand, in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the other agreements contemplated hereby and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (such representation, the
“Current Representation”), and (ii) Winston & Strawn LLP (or any successor) may represent (a) the Seller Group or any director, member, partner, officer,
employee or Affiliate of the Seller Group or (b) the Seller Representative in the event such Person so requests, in each case in connection with any dispute,
litigation, claim, proceeding or obligation arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any agreements contemplated by this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby (any such representation, the “Post-Closing Representation”) notwithstanding such representation (or any continued
representation) of the Target Companies and/or the Subsidiary, and each of Purchaser and the Sellers on behalf of itself and the Waiving Parties hereby
consents thereto and irrevocably waives (and will not assert) any conflict of interest or any objection arising therefrom or relating thereto. Purchaser and the
Target Companies acknowledge that the foregoing provision applies whether or not Winston & Strawn LLP provides legal services to the Target Companies
or the Subsidiary after the Closing Date. Each of Purchaser and the Target Companies, for itself and the Waiving Parties, hereby irrevocably acknowledges
and agrees that all communications between the Seller Group and their counsel, including Winston & Strawn LLP, made in connection with the negotiation,
preparation, execution, delivery and performance under, or any dispute or proceeding arising out of or relating to, this Agreement, any agreements
contemplated by this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or any matter relating to any of the foregoing, are privileged
communications between the Seller Group and such counsel and neither Purchaser, the Target Companies, nor any Person purporting to act on behalf of or
through Purchaser, the Target Companies or any of the Waiving Parties, will seek to obtain the same by any process. From and after the Closing, each of
Purchaser and the Target Companies,
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on behalf of itself and the Waiving Parties, waives and will not assert any attorney-client privilege with respect to any communication between Winston &
Strawn LLP and the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or any Person in the Seller Group occurring during the Current Representation in connection with any
Post-Closing Representation.

9.14 Enforcement of Agreement. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement
was not performed in accordance with its specific terms or was otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties will be entitled to an injunction or
injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, this being in addition to any other remedy to
which they are entitled at law or in equity.

9.15 Forum; Service of Process. Any legal suit, action or proceeding brought by any party or any of its Affiliates arising out of or based upon this
Agreement shall only be instituted in any federal or state court in New York County, New York, and each party waives any objection which it may now or
hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such proceeding, and irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of such courts in any such suit, action or proceeding.

9.16 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, excluding choice of law principles that would require
the application of the laws of a jurisdiction other than the State of New York.

9.17 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE THEIR
RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR
ANY DEALINGS BETWEEN THEM RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS TRANSACTION. THE SCOPE OF THIS WAIVER IS
INTENDED TO BE ALL-ENCOMPASSING OF ANY AND ALL DISPUTES THAT MAY BE FILED IN ANY COURT AND THAT RELATE TO THE
SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, CONTRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, BREACH OF DUTY
CLAIMS, AND ALL OTHER COMMON LAW AND STATUTORY CLAIMS. THE PARTIES HERETO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS WAIVER IS A
MATERIAL INDUCEMENT TO ENTER INTO A BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP, THAT EACH HAS ALREADY RELIED ON THE WAIVER IN
ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT EACH WILL CONTINUE TO RELY ON THE WAIVER IN THEIR RELATED FUTURE
DEALINGS. THE PARTIES HERETO FURTHER WARRANT AND REPRESENT THAT EACH HAS REVIEWED THIS WAIVER WITH ITS, HIS OR
HER, AS THE CASE MAY BE, LEGAL COUNSEL, AND THAT EACH KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ITS JURY TRIAL RIGHTS
FOLLOWING CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL. THIS WAIVER IS IRREVOCABLE, MEANING THAT IT MAY NOT BE MODIFIED
EITHER ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND THE WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, RENEWALS, SUPPLEMENTS
OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT OR TO ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS A WRITTEN CONSENT TO A TRIAL BY
THE COURT.
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ARTICLE X
DEFINITIONS

“Acquisition Proposal” means any offer or proposal concerning any (i) merger, consolidation, business combination or similar transaction involving a
Target Company, (ii) liquidation, dissolution or recapitalization or similar transaction involving a Target Company, (iii) sale, lease or other disposition directly
or indirectly by merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture, or otherwise of assets of a Target Company representing 25% or
more of the consolidated assets of the Target Company, (iv) issuance, sale, or other disposition of (including by way of merger, consolidation, business
combination, share exchange, joint venture or any similar transaction) securities (or options, rights or warrants to purchase, or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for, such securities) representing 25% or more of the voting power of a Target Company, (v) transaction in which any Person shall acquire
beneficial ownership, or the right to acquire beneficial ownership or any group shall have been formed which beneficially owns or has the right to acquire
beneficial ownership of 25% or more of the outstanding voting capital stock of a Target Company or (vi) any combination of the foregoing (other than the
transactions contemplated hereby).

“Adjusted EBITDA” means earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, after excluding any and all fees and expenses related to the
sale of the Target Companies and excluding extraordinary items unrelated to the day to day operations of the Target Companies. Earnings in 2014 will also be
adjusted to include a payroll expense adjustment in the amount of $475,000 to normalize salary expense for the CEO. Exhibit D reflects items that are
representative of the adjustments described herein.

“Adjusted Revenue” means, for the purpose of computing an Earn-Out Payment, with respect to any applicable fiscal year and calculated in a manner
consistent with the Target Companies’ financial results for 2013 and 2014, Reported Revenues less adjustments for the following amounts: (i) any and all
amounts of Postage Fees, where such amounts are included in Reported Revenue; and (ii) any and all amounts of Media Fees over and above the Target
Companies’ share of commissions where such amounts are included in Reported Revenues. For the avoidance of doubt, where a client of the Target
Companies is invoiced on a consolidated basis including Postage Fees and Media Fees in unit pricing, those fees will be deducted from the Reported
Revenues to arrive at Adjusted Revenues based on the Postage Fees or Media Fees required to be incurred to recognize the Reported Revenue during the
applicable period.

“Affiliate” has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”).

“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Applicable Accounting Principles” means the accounting principles set forth on Exhibit A.

“Applicable Law” means any statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation of a Governmental Authority applicable to the Sellers, the Target Companies,
Purchaser or any of their respective assets, as the case may be.
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“Arbitration Firm” means McGladrey LLP or, if such firm is unable or unwilling to act, such other nationally recognized independent public accounting
firm as shall be agreed upon by Purchaser and the Seller Representative in writing.

“Audited Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

“Balance Sheet” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6(a).

“Base Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2(a).

“Basket” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a).

“Benefit and Tax Representations” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which banks in New York are authorized or obligated by Applicable Law or
executive order to close.

“Cap” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a).

“Cash Closing Payment” means an amount equal to, subject to adjustment as provided in Article I, (a) the sum of (i) the Base Price and (ii) the Working
Capital Overage, if any, minus (b) the sum of (i) the aggregate amount of Indebtedness of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary outstanding immediately
prior to the Closing, (ii) the Seller Expenses, to the extent unpaid prior to the Closing Date, (iii) the Reserve Amount, (iv) the Escrow Amount, (v) the Seller
Representative Amount, and (vi) the Working Capital Deficiency, if any, and (vii) the Transaction Bonuses.

“Cause” means (A) a final non-appealable conviction of, or a pleading of no contest to, (I) a crime of moral turpitude which causes serious economic or
reputational injury to the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or Purchaser, or (II) a felony; (B) fraud, embezzlement, gross negligence, self-dealing, dishonesty
or other gross and willful misconduct which has caused serious and demonstrable injury to the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or Purchaser; (C) material
violation of any policy of the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or Purchaser, except for violations that by their nature are not curable, failure to cure such
breach within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice thereof; (D) willful and continuing failure to substantially perform his duties (other than for
reason of physical or mental incapacity) which failure to perform continues beyond fifteen (15) days after a written demand for substantial improvement in
such Person’s performance, identifying specifically and in detail the manner in which improvement is sought, is delivered to such Person by the Target
Companies, the Subsidiary or Purchaser; provided that a failure to achieve performance objectives shall not by itself constitute Cause and no act or failure to
act by such Person shall be considered “willful” unless done or failed to be done by such Person in bad faith and without a reasonable belief that such
Person’s action or omission was in the best interest of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary; (E) such Person’s failure to reasonably cooperate in an
investigation involving the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or Purchaser by any governmental authority; (F) such Person’s material, knowing and
intentional failure to comply with Applicable Laws with respect to the execution of the business operations of the Target Companies, the Subsidiary or
Purchaser, including, without limitation, a knowing and intentional failure to comply with the Prevention of Corruption Act of India, 1988,
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or the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended; provided that if all of the following conditions exist, there will be a presumption that
such Person has acted in accordance with such Applicable Laws: such Person is following, in good faith, the written advice of counsel, such counsel having
been approved by the Board of Directors of Purchaser (the “Board”) as outside counsel to Purchaser for regulatory and compliance matters, in the form of a
legal memorandum or a written legal opinion, and such Person has, in good faith, provided to such counsel all accurate and truthful facts necessary for such
counsel to render such legal memorandum or written legal opinion; (G) consistent failure of such Person to follow the lawful instructions of the Board or his
direct superiors, which failure is not remedied within fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice from the Purchaser; or (H) use of alcohol or drugs that materially
interferes with the performance of his duties.

“Change of Control” means any transaction that results in any Person or group directly or indirectly acquiring legal or beneficial ownership of (i) equity
securities of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary possessing the majority of the voting power under normal circumstances to elect a majority of directors
or similar governing body (whether by merger, consolidation or sale or transfer of the equity securities of the Target Companies and Subsidiary) or (ii) all or
substantially all of the Target Companies and Subsidiary’s assets, determined on a consolidated basis.

“Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(a)(i).

“Claim Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(a)(i).

“Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3.

“Closing Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company Benefit Plans” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

“Company Intellectual Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.10(a).

“Company Software” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.10(d).

“Company’s Knowledge” means the actual knowledge, after reasonable inquiry, of the persons set forth on Exhibit B.

“Confidentiality Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2(c).

“Current Assets” means, as of any date, the consolidated current assets of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, determined in accordance with the
Applicable Accounting Principles.

“Current Liabilities” means, as of any date, the consolidated current liabilities of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary, determined in accordance
with the Applicable Accounting Principles.
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“Current Representation” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.13.

“Damages” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2.

“Data Breach” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.22(b).

“Data Laws” means all Applicable Laws concerning the privacy and/or security of data, including, without limitation, Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, state data breach notification Laws, state social
security number protection Laws, the European Union Directive 95/46/EC, the Federal Trade Commission Act, Canada’s Personal Information Protection and
Electronic Documents Act and Canada’s Anti-Spam Law (CASL), the Gramm Leach Bliley Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Telephone Consumer
Protection Act, the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act, CAN-SPAM and state consumer protection laws, any successors or amendments relating
thereto, and any implementing regulations of any of the foregoing, together with the PCI DSS, including in jurisdictions where PCI DSS has not been
expressly adopted by the legislature.

“Disclosure Schedule” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph to Article III.

“Dispute Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(a)(ii).

“Downward Adjustment Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(d).

“Earn-out Payment” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 1.7.

“EBITDA Deficiency Amount” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 1.8.

“Encumbrance” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.

“Environmental Claims” means any written action, claim, demand or order against the Target Companies or the Subsidiary alleging material
noncompliance with or potential material liability under Environmental Laws.

“Environmental Laws” means any Applicable Law or Order related to the protection of human health or the environment, or the use, treatment, storage,
disposal, release or transportation of Hazardous Substances, including, without limitation, the federal statutes Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act, the Solid Waste Disposal Act, the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, the Clean Air Act, the Water Pollution Control Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act and the
Occupational Safety and Health Act, each as amended and supplemented, and any regulations promulgated pursuant to such laws, and any analogous state or
local statutes or regulations.

“ERISA” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).
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“ERISA Affiliate” means any entity that is a member of (i) a controlled group of corporations (as defined in Section 414(b) of the Code), (ii) a group of
trades or businesses under common control (as defined in Section 414(c) of the Code), (iii) an affiliated service group (as defined under Section 414(m) of the
Code or the regulations under Section 414(o) of the Code) or (iv) a “controlled group” within the meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA, any of which includes
any of the Sellers, any Target Company or any of their subsidiaries.

“Escrow Agent” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA.

“Escrow Agreement” means an agreement by and among Purchaser, the Seller Representative and the Escrow Agent substantially in the form of
Exhibit C, to be executed and delivered at the Closing.

“Escrow Amount” means $4,125,000.

“Excluded Fundamental Representations” means Sections 2.1 (Capacity of the Sellers), 2.2 (Authority of the Sellers), 2.4 (Ownership of the Securities),
3.1 (Organization; Good Standing; Qualification and Power), 3.2 (Authority of the Target Companies) and 3.3 (Capitalization).

“Excluded Representations” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Final Working Capital” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(a).

“Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

“Fundamental Documents” means (i) in the case of a corporation, its certificate of incorporation (or analogous document) and bylaws; (ii) in the case of
a limited liability company, its certificate of formation (or analogous document) and operating agreement; or (iii) in the case of a Person other than a
corporation or limited liability company, the documents by which such Person (other than an individual) establishes its legal existence or which govern its
internal affairs.

“GAAP” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

“Governmental Approval” means any consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, any Governmental
Authority.

“Governmental Authority” means any government or political subdivision, whether federal, state, local or foreign, or any agency or instrumentality of
any such government or political subdivision, or any federal, state, local or foreign court or arbitrator.

“Guaranty” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.21(a).

“Hazardous Substance” means any hazardous waste, hazardous substance, pollutant or contaminant, including, without limitation, petroleum and
petroleum products, asbestos and any other material regulated by, or that can result in liability under, applicable Environmental Laws.
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“Holdings” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Indebtedness” means, with respect to any Person, but without duplication, (a) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money and all accrued
interest thereon (other than accounts payable in the ordinary course of business), including without limitation, arising from loans, advances, letters of credit,
surety bonds and obligations related thereto, (b) all obligations of such Person for the deferred purchase price of assets, property or services other than
operating or other leases of property (except as set forth in (d)), trade payables and other non-ordinary course third party payables, accrued expenses and
liabilities to current and/or former employees incurred in the ordinary course of business, (c) all obligations of such Person evidenced by notes, bonds,
debentures, hedging and swap arrangements or contracts or other similar instruments other than trade payables, accrued expenses and liabilities to current
and/or former employees incurred in the ordinary course of business, (d) all capital lease obligations of such Person, (e) all accrued and unpaid interest on any
Indebtedness referred to in clauses (a) through (d) above through the Closing Date and any prepayment penalties, premiums, consent or other fees, breakage
costs on interest rate swaps and any other hedging obligations (including, but not limited to, foreign exchange contracts) or other costs incurred in connection
with the repayment or assumption of such Indebtedness and (f) all Indebtedness of others referred to in clauses (a) through (e) above guaranteed directly or
indirectly in any manner by such Person.

“Indemnified Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(a)(i).

“Indemnified Tax” means any Taxes of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for (i) a Pre-Closing Tax Period (or portion of a Straddle Period ending on
the Closing Date) and (ii) Taxes of the Target Company or the Subsidiary for any Tax period resulting from a breach of a representation or warranty in
Section 3.13(g), (h) or (k). Indemnified Taxes shall exclude (i) any Tax included in the computation of Net Working Capital, (ii) resulting from a breach of a
covenant of Purchaser provided in this Agreement, or (iii) relating to a transaction following the Closing, but on the Closing Date, that is outside the ordinary
course of business.

“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(a)(i).

“Initial Earn-out Period” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 1.7.

“Intellectual Property” means: (i) all trademarks, service marks, trade dress, logos, slogans, and trade names, together with all goodwill associated
therewith, and all applications, registrations, and renewals in connection therewith (collectively, “Marks”); (ii) all patents and patent applications, together
with all reissuances, continuations, continuations-in-part, revisions, extensions, and reexaminations thereof (collectively, “Patents”); (iii) all copyrightable
works and copyrights in both published works and unpublished works, including related registrations and applications (collectively, “Copyrights”); (iv) all
trade secrets and confidential business information (including ideas, research and development, all inventions (whether patentable or unpatentable and
whether or not reduced to practice), invention disclosures, know-how, business and marketing plans and proposals, formulae, compositions, assembly
processes and techniques, manufacturing processes and techniques, production processes and techniques, technical data, designs, drawings, specifications,
customer and supplier information, including customer and supplier identities, contact information, pricing and cost information); (v) all software, software
versions and releases and underlying technology and all source code, executable code, data, databases, and related documentation (collectively, “Software”);
and (vi) all domain names.
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“Interim Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

“IRS” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(f).

“Latest Balance Sheet Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

“Law” means any federal, state or local order, determination, directive, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, law, decision, common law, statute,
ordinance, rule, requirement, regulation, plan, guidance or ruling of any Governmental Authority.

“Liens” means, with respect to any specified asset, any and all liens, claims, Encumbrances, options, pledges and security interests thereon except for
Permitted Liens.

“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations of the Target Companies and the
Subsidiary taken as a whole; provided that any adverse effect arising out of, resulting from or attributable to (a) an event or series of events or circumstances
affecting (i) the United States or global economy generally or capital, credit or financial markets generally, including (A) changes in interest or exchange rates
and (B) any suspension of trading in securities, (ii) political conditions generally of the United States or any other country or jurisdiction in which the Target
Companies and the Subsidiary operate or (iii) any of the industries generally in which the Target Companies and the Subsidiary operate or in which services
of the Target Companies and the Subsidiary are used, (b) the negotiation, execution or the announcement of, the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by, or the performance of obligations under, this Agreement or the Target Company Agreements or the Purchaser Agreements, including effects
related to the identity of Purchaser, compliance with the covenants contained herein or therein or the failure to take any action as a result of any restrictions or
prohibitions set forth herein or therein, and any adverse effect proximately caused by (A) shortfalls or declines in revenue, margins or profitability, (B) loss of,
or disruption in, any customer, supplier and/or vendor relationships or (C) loss of personnel (other than David Denaci, James Arslan, Lucy Zhu, Shawn
Morris, Kevin McKenna or Sagar Naraparaju); for the avoidance of doubt, the loss of any of such personnel would constitute a Material Adverse Effect),
(c) any changes in Applicable Law or GAAP or the enforcement or interpretation thereof, (d) actions specifically permitted to be taken or omitted pursuant to
this Agreement or taken with Purchaser’s consent, (e) the effect of any action taken by Purchaser or its Affiliates with respect to the transactions contemplated
hereby or with respect to the Target Companies or the Sellers, (f) any acts of God, (g) any hostilities, acts of war, sabotage, terrorism or military actions, or
any escalation or worsening of any such hostilities, act of war, sabotage, terrorism or military actions, (h) any failure to meet internal or published projections,
estimates or forecasts of revenues, earnings, or other measures of financial or operating performance for any period (provided that the underlying causes of
such failures (subject to the other provisions of this definition) shall not be excluded), or (i) the availability or cost of equity, debt or other financing to
Purchaser or its Affiliates, and otherwise shall not be taken into account in determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred or would be
reasonably likely to occur; provided further that any event, occurrence, fact, condition or change referred to in
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clauses (a) or (g) immediately above shall be taken into account in determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred or could reasonably be
expected to occur to the extent that such event, occurrence, fact, condition or change has a disproportionate effect on the Target Companies compared to other
participants in the industries in which the Target Companies conduct their businesses.

“Material Contract” means each of the following written contracts or written agreements to which a Target Company or the Subsidiary is a party:
(a) any agreement involving aggregate consideration payable to or by a Target Company or the Subsidiary of $75,000 or more payable or received in calendar
year 2013 or 2014 (other than (i) purchase orders in the ordinary course of the business, (ii) Real Property Leases, and (iii) contracts that by their terms may
be terminated by a Target Company or the Subsidiary in the ordinary course of its business upon less than ninety (90) days’ notice without penalty or
premium); (b) Real Property Leases that, as of the date hereof, provide for annualized rent payments (for the fiscal year 2014) by a Target Company or the
Subsidiary in excess of $50,000; (c) employment agreements with respect to employees with an annual base compensation in excess of $100,000 per year that
are not terminable at will by a Target Company or the Subsidiary without penalty; (d) severance agreements and employee termination arrangements, in either
such case, that provide for more than two (2) months of severance pay or other severance benefits; (e) change of control agreements; (f) agreements or
contracts containing any covenant limiting the ability of a Target Company or the Subsidiary to engage in any line of business or to compete with any
business or Person; (g) agreements or contracts under which a Target Company or the Subsidiary has borrowed or loaned money, or any note, bond, indenture,
mortgage, installment obligation or other evidence of indebtedness for borrowed or loaned money or any guarantee of such indebtedness, in each case relating
to amounts in excess of $150,000; (h) guaranties, suretyships or other contingent agreements of a Target Company; (i) any agreement or contract relating to
the acquisition of assets (other than in the ordinary course of business) or any capital stock of any business enterprise by a Target Company or the Subsidiary,
in each case relating to amounts in excess of $150,000; (j) all agreements or contracts that provide for the indemnification by the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary of any Person or the assumption of any tax, environmental or other liability of any Person, other than in the ordinary course of business; (k) any
contracts or agreements to which a Target Company or the Subsidiary is a party that provide for any joint venture, partnership or similar arrangement by any
of them; (l) all agreements or contracts between or among a Target Company or the Subsidiary, on the one hand, and a Seller or any Affiliate of a Seller (other
than a Target Company or the Subsidiary), on the other hand; (m) all collective bargaining agreements or agreements or contracts with any union to which a
Target Company or the Subsidiary is a party; (n) any contract or agreement with a credit bureau or credit reporting agency; (o) all contracts or agreements
with any party that provides direct mail or related services for or on behalf of a Target Company or the Subsidiary, or its or their clients (collectively, the
“Direct Mail Contracts”); or (p) any other agreement or contract that is material to a Target Company or the Subsidiary and not previously disclosed pursuant
to Section 3.14(a).

“Material Customer” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.21(a).

“Material Supplier” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.21(b).
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“Media Fees” means any revenue related to the purchase of time or space on television, radio, outdoor properties or other forms of media.

“Net Working Capital” means, at any date, the excess of (i) all Current Assets as of such date, over (ii) all Current Liabilities as of such date,
determined in accordance with the Applicable Accounting Principles.

“Non-Seller Recipient” means each of Lucy Zhu, Thomas Murray and Marty Thomas.

“Notice of Disagreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(b).

“Obligations” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.21(a).

“Order” means any award, decision, judgment, injunction, order, ruling subpoena, or verdict entered, issued, made or rendered by any Governmental
Authority.

“Other Participants” means each of Lucy Zhu, Thomas Murray, Marty Thomas, Shawn Morris, Kevin McKenna, Rita Huff, Lynn Morano, Michael
Giampietro, Scott Watkins and Sagar Naraparaju.

“Outside Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3.

“PCI DSS” means the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, Version 3.0.

“Permitted Liens” means: (i) mechanics’, carriers’, workmen’s, repairmen’s or similar Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business;
(ii) Liens for Taxes, assessments and any other governmental charges which are not due and payable or which may hereafter be paid without penalty or which
are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings; (iii) other imperfections of title or Encumbrances, if any, which imperfections of title or other
Encumbrances, individually or in the aggregate, do not materially impair the use or value of the property to which they relate; (iv) any other Liens that will be
terminated at or prior to Closing in accordance with this Agreement; and (v) Liens relating to the operating leases of equipment of the Target Companies or
the Subsidiary.

“Person” means and includes an individual, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a limited liability company, a trust, an unincorporated
organization and government or any department or agency thereof.

“Personal Data” means any information pertaining to an individual, including (a) data that identifies or, alone or in combination with other available
information, could reasonably be used to identify a natural person, whether living or deceased, and (b) any other information pertaining to a specific
individual that is regulated or protected by one or more of the Data Laws, including, without limitation, Protected Health Information.

“Personal Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.8(a).

“Pre-Closing Tax Period” means any taxable period that ends on or before the Closing Date.
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“Post-Closing Representation” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.13.

“Postage Fees” means any revenue related to the purchase of postage from the United States Postal Service or any other revenue related to the delivery
of marketing collateral, letters or other content by third-party delivery services.

“Protected Health Information” has the meaning ascribed to it in the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 C.F.R. Parts
160 and 164.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2(a).

“Purchase Price Allocation Schedule” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(g).

“Purchaser” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Purchaser Agreements” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“Purchaser Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2.

“Purchaser Excluded Representations” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Purchaser Prepared Returns” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a)(ii).

“RDS” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Real Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.9(b).

“Real Property Lease” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.9(b).

“Release” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2(b).

“Reported Revenues” means, with respect to any applicable fiscal year, the net revenues recognized by the Target Companies, as determined in
accordance with GAAP and reported in their audited financial statements for that fiscal year.

“Representation Termination Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Reserve Amount” means $23,000,000.

“Restricted Business” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.18(a).

“Restricted Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.18(a).

“Restricted Stock” means an aggregate number of unregistered, restricted shares of common stock of Holdings, par value $0.001, equal to $4,150,000,
to be issued and awarded to David Denaci and James Arslan pursuant to, and subject to the terms of, their respective Stock Transfer and Stockholder’s
Agreements. The number of shares of Restricted Stock to be so issued shall be based on the volume weighted average price of Holdings’ publicly traded
shares of common stock for the thirty (30) days immediately preceding the Closing Date.
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“Restricted Stock Units” means an aggregate number of “Restricted Stock Units” equal to $3,850,000 to be issued and awarded to the Non-Seller
Recipients and the Other Participants pursuant to that certain ExlService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan, with each such “Restricted Stock Unit”
representing a hypothetical investment equivalent to one (1) share of Holdings’ common stock, par value $0.001 per share. The number of “Restricted Stock
Units” to be so issued shall be based on the volume weighted average price of Holdings’ publicly traded shares of common stock for the thirty (30) days
immediately preceding the Closing Date.

“Restricted Stock Unit Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.4(a)(iii).

“RPM” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Second Earn-out Payment” has the meaning set forth in Schedule 1.7.

“Section 409A” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(i).

“Securities” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Seller Excluded Representations” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Seller Expenses” means all costs, fees and expenses incurred by the Target Companies, or by the Target Companies on behalf of any Seller, in each
case in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and unpaid at the Closing, including, without limitation (a) any brokerage
fees, commissions, finders’ fees or financial advisory fees, and (b) the fees and expenses of advisors and consultants, including the fees and expenses relating
to or arising out of professional services provided by Petsky Prunier LLC and Winston & Strawn LLP and the Target Companies’ and the Sellers’ other
bankers, counsel, accountants, advisors, agents and representatives.

“Seller Group” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.13.

“Seller Indemnitees” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.

“Seller Prepared Returns” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a)(i).

“Seller Released Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.7.

“Seller Representative” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.2(a).

“Seller Representative Amount” means $500,000.

“Seller Tax Matter” means (i) amending a Tax Return of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period;
(ii) extending or waiving the
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applicable statute of limitations with respect to a Tax of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; (iii) engaging in
any voluntary disclosures or discussions with, any Governmental Authority regarding any Tax or Tax Returns of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for a
Pre-Closing Tax Period or portion Straddle Period; (iv) filing any private letter ruling or similar request with respect to Taxes or Tax Returns of a Target
Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period; or (v) changing any election that could have an impact on the Tax or Tax Returns
of a Target Company or the Subsidiary for a Pre-Closing Tax Period or Straddle Period.

“Sellers” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Stock Transfer and Stockholder’s Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.4(a)(iii).

“Straddle Period” means any taxable period that includes, but does not end on, the Closing Date.

“Subsidiary” means JCG New Media, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company.

“Target Companies” and “Target Company” have the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Target Companies Excluded Representations” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1(b).

“Target Company Agreements” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Target Databases” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.22(a).

“Target IT Systems” means all computer systems, programs, networks, hardware, software, software engines, databases, third party licensed data and
other content, operating systems, websites, website content and links and equipment used to process, store, maintain and operate data, information and
functions owned or held for use by the Target Companies or the Subsidiary in connection with its business or provided by the Target Companies or the
Subsidiary.

“Target Privacy and Security Policy” shall mean each published external or internal, past or present privacy or security policy of any of the Target
Companies or the Subsidiary, including any published policy relating to: (a) the privacy of any Person, (b) financial records or information pertain to any
Person, (c) the collection, storage, disclosure, transfer, disposal, other processing or security of any Personal Data, or (d) personally identifying information,
financial records, security records and associated information, about Persons.

“Target Working Capital” means $1,450,000.

“Tax” (including “Taxes”) means all U.S. federal, state, local, non-U.S. and other net income, gross income, gross receipts, sales, use, ad valorem,
transfer, franchise, profits, license, withholding, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, property,
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windfall profits, customs, duties or other taxes of any kind whatsoever imposed by any Governmental Authority, together with any interest and any penalties,
additions to tax or additional amounts with respect thereto.

“Tax Contest” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(d).

“Tax Losses” means (i) an Indemnified Tax; and (ii) any reasonable out-of-pocket costs or expenses incurred by a Purchaser Indemnitee to the extent
relating to controlling a Tax Contest with respect to an Indemnified Tax.

“Tax Return” means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, statement, information return or statement or other document with respect to
Taxes required to be filed with any Governmental Authority including any schedule thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

“Territory” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.18(a).

“Third Party Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.7(b).

“Transaction Bonuses” means the cash bonuses to be paid immediately prior to Closing in accordance with Section 1.3 in an aggregate amount equal to
the dollar amount set forth in the row titled “Total” on Schedule 1.3 of the Disclosure Schedule, to be allocated as set forth on Schedule 1.3.

“Transfer Taxes” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(e).

“Upward Adjustment Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(e).

“WARN Act” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.16.

“Working Capital Deficiency” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.5.

“Working Capital Estimate” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.5.

“Working Capital Overage” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.5.

“Working Capital Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(a).

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
 

TARGET COMPANIES:

RPM DIRECT LLC

By: /s/ David W. Denaci
Name: David W. Denaci
Title: Chief Executive Officer

RPM DATA SOLUTIONS, LLC

By: /s/ David W. Denaci
Name: David W. Denaci
Title: Chief Executive Officer

SELLERS:

/s/ David W. Denaci
DAVID DENACI

/s/ Peter Pala
PETER PALA

/s/ James Arslan
JAMES ARSLAN

Signature Page to Securities Purchase Agreement



PURCHASER:

EXLSERVICE.COM, LLC

By: /s/ Rohit Kapoor
Name: Rohit Kapoor
Title: Chief Executive Officer

 
Signature Page to Securities Purchase Agreement



HOLDINGS:

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
Solely with respect to Section 5.21

By: /s/ Rohit Kapoor
Name: Rohit Kapoor
Title: Chief Executive Officer

 
Signature Page to Securities Purchase Agreement



The undersigned hereby agrees to serve as the Seller Representative in connection with the Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”), by and among ExlService.com, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, RPM DIRECT LLC, a New Jersey limited liability company, RPM
DATA SOLUTIONS, LLC, a New Jersey limited liability company, and the Sellers identified therein, dated as of February 23, 2015, and the Escrow
Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), by and among Purchaser, the Seller Representative and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, NA, as escrow agent, and hereby agrees to act and perform its obligations thereunder.
 

SELLER REPRESENTATIVE:

/s/ David Denaci
David Denaci



Exhibit 10.1

March 14, 2014

Nancy Saltzman
7 Adrian Circle
Scarsdale, NY 10583

Re: Employment Offer Letter

Dear Nancy:

We are pleased to offer you employment with EXLservice.com, Inc. in the positions of General Counsel and Executive Vice President of
EXLservice.com, Inc. In addition, you have been offered the positions of General Counsel, Secretary and Executive Vice President of ExlService Holdings,
Inc. (the “Company”), the parent company of EXLservice.com, Inc., and this employment offer letter is between you and the Company. As General Counsel,
Secretary and Executive Vice President of the Company, you will be reporting directly to the Company’s Vice Chairman & CEO, and you will be generally
responsible for the legal affairs of the Company.

The minimum annual salary for this position on and after the date of this employment offer letter is $325,000 (the “Base Salary”), payable as per the
Company’s payroll policies. Currently, the payroll periods end on the 15th and 30th of each month. This offer of employment is not to be considered a
contract guaranteeing employment for any specific duration. As an at-will employee, both you and, subject to the severance terms in this letter, the Company,
have the right to terminate your employment at any time,

Incentive Compensation: You will be eligible to earn an annual performance bonus for each calendar year of your employment with the Company.
The target annual bonus will be 50% of your Base Salary for the year (the “Target Bonus”). This Target Bonus will be earned based upon the terms of the
Company’s bonus policy as approved by the Board of Directors of the Compensation Committee thereof. In accordance with the current Company’s bonus
policy, you must be employed and must not be serving any notice period on the date bonuses are paid for you to be eligible for receipt.

Restricted Stock Units: Employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates are generally eligible to participate in the Company’s 2006
Omnibus Award Plan (as amended from time to time) (the “Plan”). You will be recommended for a grant of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) with respect to
20,000 shares of Company common stock (the “Initial Equity Grant”) at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Compensation Committee”). The Initial Equity Grant will be subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee in its
sole discretion. The terms and conditions of the Initial Equity Grant will be determined and approved by the Compensation Committee and shall be evidenced
by the Company’s standard form restricted stock unit award agreement (with a schedule that provides for vesting of 10%, 20%, 30% and the remaining 40%
of the RSUs on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of your date of hire, subject to your continued employment through each such vesting date),
and other terms set forth in the award agreement and the Plan.
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Annual performance reviews by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company will be conducted to assess professional development opportunities as
well as to consider increases to your compensation (including, without limitation, increasing Base Salary and the percentage Target Bonus as well as granting
of additional equity compensation).

Benefits: As an employee of the Company, you will be eligible to participate in health, dental, vision, life insurance and disability plans generally
available to senior management of the Company residing in the United States.

You will also be eligible to participate in the Company’s 401(k) plan, in accordance with its terms.

You will also be covered by the Company’s director and officer insurance and be indemnified on the same basis as other officers in the Company. The
foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any right to Indemnification to which you may be entitled under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or By-Laws, as a matter of law or otherwise, or any other power that the Company may have to indemnify you or hold you harmless.

Vacation and Sick Leave: You will be entitled to four weeks accrued vacation per calendar year to be taken in accordance with the policies in your
employee’s handbook. Refer to your employee’s handbook for sick leave allowances.

Business Expenses: The Company will pay for or reimburse authorized and proper business related expenses that you may incur in discharging your
duties, including expenses in connection with maintaining your license to practice law.

Confidentiality and Non-Compete Agreement: Prior to commencement of employment, as a condition of your employment, you will be required to
execute additional documentation relating to confidentiality, non-disclosure, non-competition and other restrictive covenants. The form of this agreement is
attached to this letter as [Attachment A.]

Outside Employment: Your position with the Company is a full time responsibility requiring your full loyalty and dedication. So that you can do your
best, we require that you do not work for another employer while you are employed with the Company. Furthermore, the Company prohibits its employees
from working for or investing money in any competitor of the Company or conducting their own business in competition with the Company whether during
the Company’s working hours or after the Company’s work hours.

Termination: The Company shall give you 30 days advance notice of any termination of your employment without Cause. You shall give the
Company 30 days advance notice of any voluntary resignation of your employment. If the Company terminates your employment other than for “Cause”
(which is defined below), subject to the execution (an non-revocation during any applicable revocation period) of a standard release of all employment-related
claims against the Company and its subsidiaries and each of their employees, officers and directors (a
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“Release”), you shall be entitled to (i) a one-time lump sum severance payment, payable within three business days of termination of employment, equal to
three (3) months of your Base Salary then in effect, and (ii) a continuing payment (per the Company’s payroll policies) of your then current Base Salary for a
nine-month period commencing on the third month anniversary of termination of employment; provided, however, that during such nine-month severance
period you actively seek comparable employment and upon subsequent employment the Company’s obligation to you shall be reduced by any base salary you
earn (whether paid currently or deferred) during such severance period from your subsequent employer. In addition, the Company shall maintain your health
and dental insurance coverage until the last day of such foregoing severance period or, if earlier and in respect of each of health and dental coverage
considered separately, until such time as you and your eligible dependents are covered under a future employer’s health or dental insurance coverage. At the
Company’s option such continued health and dental coverage shall be through its payment of your COBRA premiums for the applicable period and, if the
Company elects that method of satisfying this obligation, you agree to timely make any elections required in order to secure COBRA coverage. “Cause” shall
mean (A) a final non-appealable conviction of, or a pleading of no contest to, (i) a crime of moral turpitude which causes serious economic injury or serious
injury to the Company’s reputation or (ii) a felony; or (B) fraud, embezzlement, gross negligence, self-dealing, dishonesty or other gross and willful
misconduct which has caused serious and demonstrable injury to the Company; (C) material violation by you of any material Company policy and, except for
violations that by their nature are not curable, your failure to cure such breach within 30 days after receiving written notice thereof; (D) willful and continuing
failure to substantially perform your duties (other than for reason of physical or mental incapacity) which failure to perform continues beyond fifteen
(15) days after a written demand for substantial improvement in your performance, identifying specifically and in detail the manner in which improvement is
sought, is delivered to you by the Company; provided that a failure to achieve performance objectives shall not by itself constitute Cause and no act or failure
to act by you shall be considered “willful” unless done or failed to be done by you in bad faith and without a reasonable belief that your actions or omission
was in the best interest of the Company; (E) your failure to reasonably cooperate in an investigation involving the Company by any governmental authority;
(F) your material, knowing and intentional failure to comply with applicable laws with respect to the execution of the Company’s business operations,
including, without limitation, a knowing and intentional failure to comply with the Prevention of Corruption Act of India, 1988, or the United States Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended; provided, that, if all of the following conditions exist, there will be a presumption that you have acted in
accordance with such applicable laws: you are following, in good faith, the written advice of counsel, such counsel having been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company as outside counsel to the Company for regulatory and compliance matters, in the form of a legal memorandum or a written legal
opinion, and you have, in good faith, provided to such counsel all accurate and truthful facts necessary for such counsel to render such legal memorandum or
written legal opinion; (G) your failure to follow the lawful directives of the Board which is not remedied within fifteen (15) days after your receipt of written
notice from the Company specifying such failure; or (H) your use of alcohol or drugs which materially interferes with the performance of your duties.

In the event that (i) your employment with the Company is terminated without Cause (other than on account of your disability) (a) within one (1) year
following a Change in Control or (b) in specific contemplation of a Change in Control or (ii) you resign with “Good Reason”
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(as defined below) within one (1) year following a Change of Control, you shall, upon and subject to your execution (an non-revocation during any applicable
revocation period) of a Release, be entitled, in addition to the severance specified above, to immediate vesting as of the termination date of any portion of the
RSUs which is unvested as of the termination date. “Change in Control” has the meaning given to such term in the Plan. Unless otherwise specified in the
applicable grant agreement, the term “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence, without the Participant’s prior written consent, of any of the following
events: (A) a substantial reduction of the Participant’s duties or responsibilities, or the Participant being required to report to any person other than the Board
or the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or President; provided that, if there is a Change in Control and the Participant retains a similar title and similar
duties with the Company or any entity that acquires the Company (or any affiliate or subsidiary of such entity) following such Change in Control, any change
in the Participant’s title shall not a constitute a significant reduction of the Participant’s duties and authorities hereunder; (B) the Participant’s job title is
adversely changed, provided that if there is a Change in Control and the Participant retains a similar title and similar duties with the Company or any entity
that acquires the Company (or any affiliate or subsidiary of such entity) following such Change in Control, any change in the Participant’s title shall not
constitute a significant reduction of the Participant’s duties and authorities hereunder; (C) following a Change in Control, a change in the office or location
where the Participant is based of more than thirty (30) miles, which new location is more than thirty (30) miles from the Participant’s primary residence; or
(D) following a Change in Control, a breach by the Company of any material term of the Participant’s employment letter or any successor thereto; provided
that, a termination by the Participant with Good Reason shall be effective only if, within thirty (30) days following the Participant’s first becoming aware of
the circumstances giving rise to Good Reason, the Participant delivers a “notice of termination” for Good Reason to the Company, and the Company within
fifteen (15) days following its receipt of such notification has failed to cure the circumstances giving rise to Good Reason. The release of claims referred to in
the foregoing must be delivered and have become irrevocable in accordance with its terms not later than 60 days following your termination date. Any
severance payments that were not paid pending the delivery of such irrevocable release shall be paid within 5 days following the date on which the release
becomes irrevocable.

Nondisparagement: During your employment with the Company and for a period of one (1) year thereafter you shall make no unfavorable,
disparaging or negative comment, remark or statement, whether written or oral (a “Disparaging Statement”), about the Company or any of its affiliates,
officers, directors, shareholders, consultants, or employees; provided that you may give truthful testimony before a court, governmental agency, arbitration
panel, or similar person or body with apparent jurisdiction and may discuss such matters in confidence with your attorney(s) and other professional advisors.
During the foregoing period, the Company and its officers and directors (acting in their capacity as officers and directors of the Company) shall make no
Disparaging Statement about you; provided that any officer or director may give truthful testimony before a court, governmental agency, arbitration panel, or
similar person or body with apparent jurisdiction and may discuss such matters in confidence with their or the Company’s attorney(s) and other professional
advisors.

This letter agreement supersedes any prior oral or written understanding about the terms of your employment with the Company and any change to
such terms must be in writing and signed by you and the Company.
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All issues and questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this letter agreement shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without regard to the conflict of laws principles of such State. Any dispute regarding this
letter agreement shall be resolved by binding confidential arbitration, to be held in New York, New York in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration
Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Judgment upon the award rendered by arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

This letter agreement may be executed and delivered via facsimile in two or more counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original, but all of
which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

To indicate your acceptance of the terms of this agreement, please sign and date this Employment Letter in the space provided below, and return it to
any of the undersigned on behalf of the Company.
 

Regards,

/s/ Rohit Kapoor
Rohit Kapoor
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

 
Accepted:

/s/ Nancy Saltzman

Date: March 14, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rohit Kapoor, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of ExlService Holdings, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: May 1, 2015

/S/ ROHIT KAPOOR

Rohit Kapoor
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vishal Chhibbar, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of ExlService Holdings, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: May 1, 2015

/S/ VISHAL CHHIBBAR

Vishal Chhibbar
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Rohit Kapoor, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

 (a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/S/ ROHIT KAPOOR

Rohit Kapoor
Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 1, 2015



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Vishal Chhibbar, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

 (a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/S/ VISHAL CHHIBBAR

Vishal Chhibbar
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 1, 2015


